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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

sft Ta. T, we
eTe] 9 gy R v
Shri S.A. BHAT

Chairman & Managing Director

a 2007-2008 & fTC 39k S 1 anfifes e S facdta ggives medgfr_eat pl_elasE[Jr;a to prss?nt ¥€ur Banl;’g 0A7n8gall
N s s eport and financial statements for the year -08.

ferern W\m T AT gﬁf dwel dai s ?T{H Rkl would like to briefly highlight some key issues and

IUATHAT I FB Fe@YT! a1l T FHRT ST AR achievements of the Bank during the year.

smfta § enfdfs w, o F FHd F gig & WG W FAd o ;Lhe |ndiago%cfggm¥tgegﬁrd§d algroi[/_vth Oftts_-g‘%; %llJrif][Q

AeeR ST AT FeE oA o : e year -08 wi e deceleration attributable to

N Skl a\“ Hed % e & a 2007-2008 global factors such as economic slowdown in the US,
o QI AT sreferaen § 8.7% # qfE o gd W 2008 high oil prices combined with rising food prices. Foreign
% 37 T faaelt qa1 STfRfoa 9% R uE SR 309.7 faferm exchange reserves increased to USD 309.7 billion by

St 2007-08 F T G5t F B LEC Gl ot 81 end March 2008 indicative of the sustained strength of
@ (?;ﬁ 08 am;% " g;; - _i'. capital flows during 2007-08. Merchandise exports
2007-08 (sH@-HTd) P &I hreres @ FIH STelt increased by 22.8% in US dollar terms during 2007-08
22.8% T3 w&fs | 30.1% # gfg g3 duwg aa (April — February) while imports showed an increase of
a5 & 2 A 2007 & SFd F 13072 § A 2008 F AT 7 30.1?. The1gg$28f5:tnse>é irﬁfreaﬁezdo% 1t 9.?’5A>6izrintg thg
S : year from at end Marc (o at en
15644 T 19.7% e % Sl 2008 F W fer 21207 7 March 2008 and touched an all time high of 21207 in
Rl January 2008.
3 P AfYasH HRFR 31 A 2008 T 1,45,384 HUg 7 TgAT The Bank’s global business reached Rs 1,45,384 crore
SafE BEd o1 3y % o7 a5 5.1202.34 FIT 7% T st ad as at 31 March 2008 while the Net Profit reached a level
- s = ) ’ of Rs 1202.34 crore at the end of the year registering an
T A 19.23% #1 3fe o increase of 19.23% y-o-y.
Ig aTad § 9gd & T 9 € fF 3k S it Sepredn $it It is indeed a matter of great pride that your Bank has
TS § HheAdT i AT 3 F e received acknowledgment of our success in the quest
i i : f I Your Bank i d to star in the Indi
- st S - T or excellence. Your Bank is proud to star in the India
e At . - 33’} A fop T efe o i ?ﬁ growth story being ranked No. 1 among Public Sector
Feft WS & % A He WA W g3 € R A oF Banks in India by Business Today — KPMG survey and
NG % 46 % Se F1 I N o= T4 2| Financial Express — Ernst & Young survey.

: o : B S : N Coming to the performance of the Bank, the Deposits
= a;o =  a Fﬁ;j 2007-08 % iﬁm A% F el of the Bank registered an healthy y-o0-y growth of 22.67%
22.67% ! 3=t g4 g3 AL TE %.84,326 TS W HAI T a% during the year 2007-08 and stood at Rs. 84,326 crore,
&Y ¥ %.15586 FUE Ft If5 g8 o {6 Ther I # O X af an increase in absolute terms of Rs. 15,586 crore while
27.41% % 9f5 &t 1 T 3N 78 .61058 FU3 W refq a8 & Gross Advances registered a y-o-y growth of 27.41%

3 : ’ 0 and stood at Rs. 61,058 crore, an increase of Rs. 13,135
3 %.13135 TS A ki gsc 7 SIS % fere 22.29% S A crore during the year. This compares favourably with
QT 3R % AT 22.3% % S AR 915 6 qor & 9 3% the industry-wise growth rates of 22.2% for Deposits and
@ R safy #it gfa | 3R S o9 ¥ 72.41% & 22.3% for Non-food Credit. The CD Ratio registered high
359 TR IS R T aF #1 fEe G as 2006-07 3 level of 72.41% as at the end of the reporting period.

%ﬁ 3 = Net investments of the Bank increased to Rs. 28,475
®.23,974 HUS ¥ T .28,475 HUS g crore from Rs. 23,974 crore in 2006-07.
3




St 6 e & gfea fovan T 2 6 3o SR wR ®.1,45,384
Fg @, fad e af & siieel 9 24.62% 31fos 1 a9
W | FHER MHR | o7 i T Fb B AT A9YE T |
a% = ared # a8 2007-08 F I B FROR Fi gfag o e
T 3TeT FER fse I fHer

% 7 £.2000 FE F T B UNH €.2002 TS F Sea@HT
Afyas ufared @ &t fhar, S f% 9% & gfoew § gqa
ITAf &1 FWER & qRAwT F R 3T amar ') § gUR &
HROT YR A1 TUEHT &9 § 28.32% Wl S &l fae
@ S G A S A 3 F IR F SR a9 2006-07
F %.1008 HUT § Tgt a8 2007-08 H %.1202 Fg @11 =R
HEd g a8 2007-08 & T 329% iy &t fAwiy # 7 2

deh o foTu fgfa SUR e hiwd &9 a1 @I d% & fafd
W A 2008 F FHIRT W £.2517 HUS W@

TRt Rd g & FoEa fRemEeER, 9% 3 oUR & &9
¥ 7 2007 & fAaat 9% 3R I @d gC ad 2007-08 F faw
YTafieRar &1 SUR § fefRa T T AMeuel & R 9T
T T | fae mafier &7 9w § fad 9% SUR #1 ufeerd
45.85% T P AYA & ufy gEEiSa o g% 3UR H
I 18% HHEUS § A 18.93% e @Il SF & H
YR TEHIerl § £.589.43 FUS & g af &t 7, S wfienefia
a § £.8099.47 T T g €.8688.90 FS g3 | % 7 &9
&7 H YN YATE T4 2q 3 HeW 33T | 31 7 2008 H
T &7 § S B FA IUN 87541 BIE W 99 & A, T
3N fadae AEel-ate . (30 areh for. & &9 & it ot 2)
& WY ST A IE A TS| T WA T F TFIt
g2 3R AT, Sl g9 YF & T, & STeen g9 3% TS
# oft @ e T 2

# 2 ST W YH SO AR S % I g ¥ o
F feen #1 I W R F

e, e dead W 3| e dead i ufavad & &9 §
e 1 e A1 31-03-2007 H 29.11% Ht o § 31-03-
2008 & 27.91% 9l @I

Fa fae = o9 | fusd af & £.2561 FUE F qan &
%2679 FE GUR g3, 5% o T Aeh gfg gg 1 o af &
I o197 et s 1fsia &t 3.29% it & @ 591¢ W | gaef
@I S ST @l A e aee o aig U W e |
TRt 3T 27.41% F 357 39N g & FRUT 5% A et 7
FET41.11% W1 6 3 fai 15-02-2007 Ft 3707 Ffwesm
F T B 12.5% e 3k 28 &% 09.04.2007 F 98
13.25% feam sfrftuasir famr feht denem & 3 T W s
21 THH HoEw, d H Hal A S F an 2006-07 §
%.5832.07 Ft g 8 & 2007-08 H %.7968.25 FUE & Feiadt
&

7 ReAa e J & L eER SRty e H

aret 5 & &7 F 31 " 2008 § uienfud 7€ gt wafea
s (et 1) & gos 0 T & |

The total business level as informed earlier stood at
Rs.1,45,384 crore, an increase of 24.62% over last year’s
figure. The Bank’s performance has been rewarding
with the volume of business recording high growth. The
Bank has in fact perfomed better than the system in the
growth of total business during 2007-08.

The Bank posted an impressive global Operating Profit
of Rs. 2,002 crore crossing the Rs. 2000 crore mark, a
major milestone in the history of the Bank. The growth
in operating profit at 28.32% was appreciably high due
to expansion in volume of business and improvement
in efficiency levels. The Bank’s Net Profit rose from
Rs. 1,008 crore in 2006-07 to Rs.1,202 crore in 2007-08
through improvement in yield on advances and non-
interest income. A dividend of 32% has been
recommended by the Board of Directors for the year
2007-08.

Export credit continues to be a focus area for the Bank.
The export advances of the Bank at the end of March
2008 stood at Rs. 2517 crore.

As per RBI's revised guidelines, the Bank continues to
achieve the stipulated norm in priority sector credit for
the year 2007-08 taking Net Bank Credit of March 2007
as the base. The percentage of net priority sector
advances to net bank credit was at 45.85%. The Bank’s
ratio of agricultural advances to adjusted net bank credit
at 18.93% exceeded the 18% norm. The agricultural
credit portfolio of the Bank registered a growth of
Rs.589.43 crore from Rs. 8,099.47 crore to Rs. 8,688.90
crore in the year under review. The Bank took a humber
of initiatives to increase the flow of credit to this sector.
The total exposure of the Bank as on March 31, 2008 to
SME sector stood at Rs. 7,541 crore. During the year,
the 10B — Tools Scheme launched by the Bank with the
erstwhile MICO - BOSCH Ltd. (now known as BOSCH
Ltd.) picked up substantially and apart from Tamilnadu
where it was launched, has also been extended to other
states.

I would like to highlight a few ratios which indicate the
direction the Bank has been taking in the last few years.

First, the Return on Average Networth. The Bank’s Net
Profit as a percentage of Average Networth as of
31.03.2008 stood at 27.91% as against 29.11% as of
31.03.2007.

Total Net Interest Income improved to Rs. 2,679 crore
when compared to Rs. 2,561 crore last year, at a marginal
growth of about 5%. The Bank has been able to maintain
its Net Interest Margin at 3.29% for the year. The Bank’s
total income clocked a growth rate of 41.11% due to
higher credit growth at 27.41% and increased yield on
advances with substantial recoveries in NPA accounts.
The Bank had revised its BPLR to 12.5% on 15.02.2007
and raised the same to 13.25% on 09.04.2007. The
BPLR continues at this level without revision.
Consequently, the total interest earnings of the Bank
increased to Rs.7,968.25 crore in 2007-08 compared to
Rs.5,832.07 crore in 2006-07.

As a Bank with international presence, we have migrated
to the revised New Capital Adequacy Framework
(BASEL Il) from 31t March 2008 in line with RBI
guidelines.




ERET & IR I g7 Wh 9 areft gsf, 31 7 2008 T
T R FER e % U a9a | RET & SaR Ao
AT Yot SMEvEsaT & 100% & faawyul sRae & IR 21
ara: Torfter sgHiemy, e Sieft aed T werEE g e
I A 39 I T 2 |

g 11 = FR& & AR f&AH 31-03-2008 F HeRuam
11.62% fepren a1 Ffeh =[aaw faawyl Ameve fais
31-03-2008 & @I €, o I SR Sfaw & Ted  3qerd T @
3T HRARTHR Faeyol et & 3 6d 11.13% &1 21 5
9% =t fafamsss s7oem ¥ 311 2 |

I &Y ¥ Tehel TANT A 2007 7 £.1120.21 HUT &
TR A 2008 H %.996.95 FUT & W A 11% 1 gfowa §
W @ af & A THA IS ST 2.34% F wEH 1.63% @
T 3R e sl S UM 0.60% T

TUI 3 TE 9F & I RS AT i &F a1 @I | 3IH
6 gAY AW H ot oK Ures Far S dfEh 3T  Sak
H TEA H e WA g1 db g TG 3D I i
FegM & forw, & 2007-08 & I ¢ 3= faefa &y mu ¥
S ermzasft faeer, wawaH & wH=El & 9a4 @, o<t
Gt Sufat 3 T & % SUhAT o HHERE & da
T, 39 Jead A & THet WAl B AT B U STt
TE Ties gy, TR J & @i, dEed w1, fafes
U, = FoE, G, Wl A9 & @rl & fau srgetHh
et ety / arsendt @et gw | fafwEfefae - a8 a
T Sk © HE(Y ST ST A9 Teh W1 deh I o wEne
0T F Gfaen At € | SRS TieS A - 39 A § e
ST S ESh ST ST A S Wil € S uiu S %
U Yo % e Yoo o @l e R 9 €, fasht gee
AT i, STURHE FHTuT ST, Ui siereh G,
TS o UTeah! & foQ 3R AEm s Jehe ST IRIere Wiy
FrEHA & AT FoT|

d% T 37 HIAA FUE F fAUUE F T 9 e wvel 9
eSS fRan1 fwd o & SE 9% F & iR JEsa el 9
TSE foRAT|

9% g ety 9 & < frefaiad 9T S P T .-

F. A% A FfEda wE S YA A % e e
w1 19% 3 3t wrEer wfe A Sfte FRER )

@, %, s SEE 9T A A A9 S U R
far. g wafia s qaffam s 5 gea st & 10%
T oY 1 TEE T S AT 8

T % 3 St TU gESHT & AW § T Aarat amoy
TorRTE GTAISHT 3IRY 1 8| 28 U0 el s 99y
fomre gfafad & & forw gog o faem & v 9
T T B

¥, fTemds qeaisd SR Fframs qur Geifed wifarees
TRl & ST U e F R do B 79 off
o geardt 3% fa., IO (SRR % ded) i mfkaEt 9
TS 1 SATEOT BT E |

As per the Framework, capital maintained by banks is
subjected to a prudential floor of 100% of minimum
capital requirement computed as per BASEL | framework
for credit and market risks as on 31t March 2008. As
such the benefit of rating by External Rating Agencies
like CRISIL, ICRA, CARE is not available now.

CRAR as per BASEL- Il framework as on 31.3.2008 works
out to 11.62%. Since prudential floor norms is applicable
as on 31.3.2008, the relief in Credit Risk is not available
to the Bank and the CRAR subiject to prudential floor
works out to 11.13%. This is above the regulatory
requirement of 9%.

Gross NPA declined in real terms to Rs. 996.95 crore in
March 2008 from Rs.1,120.21 crore in March 2007, i.e.,
by 11.00%. In percentage terms, the Gross NPA ratio
was reduced to 1.63% from 2.34% and Net NPA ratio
stood at 0.60% during the year.

Retail Banking has been a focus area for the Bank, as always.
Your Bank has always aspired to be a market leader and an
icon for customer service and productinitiatives in the banking
industry. To add to the wide range of products that the Bank
offers, new products have been developed during the year
2007-08 including IOB Silver - Salary Accounts of employees
of MNCs, large Indian companies and PSUs, IOB-SB Gold -
Premium S.B. account targeted at High Networth Individuals,
I0B-CD Classic / IOB-CD Super - Accounts of proprietary
concern, partnership firm, Limited companies, Trust, Clubs,
Association, Govt. departments, Liquideposit - a scheme to
provide automatic transfer of balances over a threshold limit
from S.B. to term deposit and back, RD Gold scheme - This
scheme combines the features of RD and Easy deposit
schemes and on maturity gold coins are given equivalent to
the maturity value of the deposits, Personal accident
Insurance scheme, Apartment Renovation scheme, Reverse
Mortgage scheme, Domestic Travel Insurance Package for
I0OB Customers and Loan for Pilot Training programme.

Bank had tie-ups with seven Mutual Funds for marketing
their Mutual Fund products. During the last year Bank
entered into tie-up with two more Mutual Funds.

The new initiatives taken by the Bank during the year
under review include :-

a) The Bank entered into non life insurance business
with equity participation of 19% in a joint venture —
Universal Sompo General Insurance Co. Ltd.

b) The Bank is to acquire a stake of not less than 10%
of the paid up capital of the Asset Reconstruction
Company promoted by M/s. J M Financial Limited,
subject to the obtention of regulatory approvals.

c) The Bank has launched an innovative rural
development project called IOB Sampoorna Project
aimed at Total Village Development to ensure all-
inclusive growth of rural population.

d) The Bank to takeover only the Assets and Liabilities
of M/s. Shree Suvarna Sahakari Bank Ltd., Pune
(under moratorium) subject to due diligence
evaluation and approval from the Regulatory and
Statutory authorities concerned.




3 A % SEY 9% 4 Rl § orf Sufkyfy F o1 wreeh
& A % U S & o9 & qu v A g1 aEeve § S
YR & S H A T S SR 9RA et S 9% . @
HARIET FH T 37 9% F Ig NS WRAT § - I IR §
ST AR, T Hifkar, e S aEhve ¥ wh-um | 9% &
gfafafy F@fer ave], A A FAATCER, FARTET T &
fa i foet, foaaam § fiom & S oot af & O @ren T

7 A S R, R # G907 e F B @2 SR 0 I
T i § 71 b 7 guE v e § i et
gfafead fohar @ S 9Ra # o 3 wmanel ik % & srfrard
Tl & e Fueh T &1 dh F Fefeis ¥ UF FEiad Gron
3R gE | us yfafafy srfed @iem & fo awde fiod o 9
STAIEA IT R foram 2 3R 7 Frad S @i & w6 e
St 81 Ao FATCTaT, A S RS, A9 F fuq adam
gfafafe sraferal S s9aa F # A o W@ 2

T IR % F FHY FRGR & & 3 Yol & I) § T
gU e & W2 - U FHIR FRER S 9T FHA A F TR
AT H BIH IR g 21 FfT FHAR IR £.4.67 FUS ¥ 9¢
TR €.5.83 FUT & T § 0 24.84% H 3fF gE €, Ul
FHEN AT £.4.04 ARG T TFH £.4.82 ARG g2 37411 19.31%
# gz g &1 S wifouyf seifie Hoy B FEERT ST gU
21

d% ¥ Sfafifed eedt S sk fae F1 A 3 g Wuee
s 3 J S U yffed afvas AT wah 7, 9% i T
F [ - Raa” e & E S 9 & o wafe e %
T 2

as 2008-09 F yRea Red o i anffe Aifq & Faffaar
adfta Red % 1 9o g % ad 2008-00 § g &
A 7.0% ¥ T & Fd TR A 5.5% T @ sl a¥ 2008-
09 & fou St 9fg 8.0% @ 8.5% & o= 5a TE 21

AT 3@ W qT A fEwa goel sTfie & sreferawer §
Tt S uftepel STRUTT UiadAl @ genfad TSR et 2 |
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gT, o e as o qREwfE o e & o g
e &, Y doh T F W@ AR e 7 gfg #
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T 7 T fava 2

ECEp)

e
TH T 9
el 9 gAY R

True to its name, the Bank has always striven to leverage
its overseas presence to the advantage of its customers.
With the Bangkok branch in Thailand coming back to
the Bank’s fold following the takeover of Bharat
Overseas Bank Ltd., we have six full-fledged overseas
branches - two in Hong Kong and one each in
Singapore, South Korea, Sri Lanka and Thailand. The
Bank’s Representative Offices are located in Guangzhou
(China), Kuala Lumpur (Malaysia) and at Ho Chi Minh
City (Vietnam), which was opened during the year under
review. Remittance Centres function in Boon Lay and
Serangoon, Singapore while an Extension Counter is
located in Sri Lanka. The Bank has deputed three officers
at the UAE Exchange Centres who liaise between
branches in India and the NRI clientele of the Bank. The
Bank has obtained approval from RBI to open a branch
at New Zealand and a Representative Office at Dubai
and the groundwork for setting up these offices is in
progress. The Bank has plans to upgrade the existing
Representative offices in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia and
Guangzhou, China into full-fledged branches.

| am very pleased to share with you two other indicators
of the overall business growth of the Bank — the business
per employee and profit per employee levels, both of
which have shown considerable improvement. While
the business per employee has improved from
Rs 4.67 crore to Rs. 5.83 crore, an increase of 24.84 %,
the profit per employee has risen from Rs 4.04 Lacs to
Rs 4.82 Lacs, an increase of 19.31%. The Bank is
maintaining harmonious industrial relations climate.

In recognition of the inherent strength and the Bank’s
growth, Standard & Poor’s, the most reputed global
rating agency, has re-affirmed its rating of the Bank at
‘BBB - Stable’ on par with the Sovereign Rating for India.

RBI's policy endeavour as set out in their Annual Policy
2008-09, would be to bring down inflation from the
current high level of above 7.0% to around 5.5% in 2008-
09. GDP growth projection for 2008-09 is placed in the
range of 8.0% to 8.5%.

As we look ahead, the outlook for the global financial
system is overcast by the adverse international
developments particularly the slowdown in the US
economy. On the domestic front, keeping in view the
current assessment of the economy including the outlook
for growth and inflation for the year ahead, your Bank,
as always, is poised to contribute its best to the growth
momentum of the Indian economy. Value addition for
our shareholders is an important highlight that the Bank
focuses on in all its initiatives. In our endeavour to scale
greater heights and achieve higher standards of
excellence so as to ensure that your Bank shines the
brightest in the banking firmament, we are confident of
your support and encouragement.

Yours sincerely,
W
S A BHAT
Chairman and Managing Director
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3 ASH Rie Teded faies @t e e °
TAR IRl T TSRt ol T STIHIe

ffafad Heheq W R S 3 % Suga &
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NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the EIGHTH Annual
General Meeting of the shareholders of INDIAN
OVERSEAS BANK will be held on Saturday, the 14"
June 2008 at 11.00 A.M. at Narada Gana Sabha,
(Sathguru Gnananda Hall) 314 TTK Road, Chennai
- 600 018, to transact the following business:

1. To discuss, approve and adopt the audited
Balance Sheet of the Bank as at 31t March
2008, Profit and Loss account of the Bank for
the year ended 31st March 2008, the report of
the Board of Directors on the working and
activities of the Bank for the period covered
by the accounts and the Auditors’ Report on
the Balance Sheet and Accounts.

2. To declare dividend for the financial year
2007-08.

3. To approve the delisting of our shares from
Madras Stock Exchange Limited

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or
without modification the following resolution :

“RESOLVED that subject to the applicable
provisions of the Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules framed
thereunder, Listing Agreements, Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Delisting of
Securities) Guidelines, 2003 (“the Guidelines”)
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force
and as may be enacted hereafter), and all other
applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines and subject to such other approvals,
permissions and sanctions as may be
necessary, and subject to such terms,
conditions, stipulations and modifications, as
may be prescribed or imposed while granting
such approvals, permissions and sanctions,
consent of the Bank be and is hereby accorded
for voluntary delisting of the equity shares of the
Bank from Madras Stock Exchange Limited.

RESOLVED FURTHER that General Manager
(Accounts) and Company Secretary be and
are hereby authorized severally to settle all
questions, difficulties or doubts as may arise,
with regard to voluntary de-listing of shares, as they
may in their absolute discretion deem fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER that General Manager
(Accounts) and Company Secretary be and
are hereby authorized severally to do and
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perform all such other acts, deeds, matters and
things as may be necessary, desirable or
appropriate to give effect to the above and to
execute all such applications, deeds,
agreements, documents and writings as may
be considered necessary, usual, requisite or
proper for giving effect to this resolution.

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

s
(S A BHAT)
Chairman and Managing Director

NOTES
APPOINTMENT OF PROXY :

A SHAREHOLDER ELIGIBLE TO ATTEND AND
VOTE, IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF /
HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A
SHAREHOLDER OF THE BANK.

The instrument appointing proxy should,
however be deposited at the Central Office of
the Bank not less than four days before the
date fixed for the meeting i.e. on or before 5.00
PM. on Monday, 9th June 2008.

APPOINTMENT OF AN AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVE :

No person shall be entitled to attend or vote at
any meeting of the shareholders of Indian
Overseas Bank as the duly authorized
representative of a company unless a copy of
the resolution appointing him as a duly
authorized representative, certified to be a true
copy by the chairman of the meeting at which
it was passed, has been deposited at the
Central Office of the Bank not less than four
days before the date fixed for the meeting i.e. on or
before 5.00 PM. on Monday, Sth June 2008.

No officer or employee of the Bank shall be
appointed as Authorised Representative or
proxy of a shareholder.

The Explanatory Statement is annexed thereto.
ATTENDANCE SLIP-CUM-ENTRY PASS :

For the convenience of the shareholders,
attendance slip-cum-entry pass is annexed to
this notice. Shareholders/proxy holders/
representatives are requested to affix their
signature at the space provided therein and
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surrender the same at the venue. Proxy holders/
representatives should state on the attendance
slip-cum-entry pass as “proxy or representative”
as the case may be and should have proof of
their identity by getting their signature attested
by the shareholder.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHARE
HOLDERS :

The Register of Shareholders and Share
Transfer Books of the Bank will remain closed
from 07.05.2008 (Wednesday ) to 13.05.2008
(Tuesday) (both days inclusive) for determining
eligibility of shareholders for the purpose of
dividend. Dividend shall be mailed within one
month from the date of Annual General
Meeting.

BANK MANDATE FOR DIVIDEND :

In order to get protection from fraudulent
encashment of warrants, shareholders are
requested to furnish their bank account
number, the name of the bank and the branch
where they would like to deposit the dividend
warrants for encashment. These particulars
along with the name of the shareholder will be
printed on the cheque portion of the dividend
warrants, so that these warrants cannot be
encashed by anyone else. The
abovementioned details should be furnished
by the first / sole shareholder directly to the
share transfer agent / DPs quoting the Folio
No. or DP ID No. & Client ID No. and the
number of shares held on or before
31.05.2008. If shareholders choose not to
submit any modification, the warrants will be
printed based on bank mandate earlier
received by the Registrar or data
downloaded from NSDL / CDSL as on
06.05.2008 for demat shareholders. This is
applicable for all shareholders who have not
submitted ECS mandate(s).

CHANGE OF ADDRESS AND DIVIDEND
MANDATE :

In case of shareholders holding shares in
physical form, they are requested to intimate
to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of
the Bank any change in their address, dividend
mandate and the particulars of the bank,
branch and bank account number which the
shareholder desires to incorporate on the
dividend warrant, on or before 31.05.2008 at
the following address:
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Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
(I0OB — unit)
1st floor, Subramanian Building,
No. 1, Club House Road, Chennai 600 002

In case of shareholders holding shares in
Electronic form i.e. through Demat account,
they are requested to intimate to their
depository participant any change in their
address, dividend mandate and the particulars
of the bank, branch and bank account number
which the shareholder desires to incorporate
on the dividend warrant etc., as the aforesaid

I SN W & R fhar s | information provided by the Depository as on
06.05.2008 would only be considered for the
9. TRITTAT T HHERT purpose of payment and distribution of
dividend.
T T T & P T I O § A Mg 5N 0IDATION OF FOLIOS
T fafas wiferar T € | SeRgRS B ae e t has been found th bl
t has been found that many shareholders
A ah_ﬁ e TF qﬁf%—rq}. 1 T A %@, Gl maintain more than one folio (ie.) multiple folios.
YRERH § FING T € [ & Hifer F qHEA In order to provide efficient service, we request
FL 3 TR JUI-UT BT USftah ST TAR SR0T the shareholders to consolidate the folios by
THUE F G % Rl § Evas TR éﬂ T | forwarding their share certificates to Registrar
and Share Transfer Agents for necessary
10. FrvEt & i faeo corrections in their records.
10. BRIEF PROFILE OF DIRECTORS :
i TS o 91 fAeufae faafe SR & aftenfya A od under the revised Clause 49 IV G of
- . s required under the revised Clause 0
are 49 IV si % e STUTRAIHR . w the Listing Agreement executed with the Stock
fiure & fagerl & wHfera faawor faw mw € | Exchanges, brief profile of Directors are given
in the Report on Corporate Governance.
1. JrereR & STie 11. REQUEST TO SHAREHOLDERS :
() YT § iﬁﬁg ¢f5a j ; e (@ Shareholders are requested to bring their
Ft ot gfoar = od copies of the Annual Report enclosed herewith.
T) YRS FUAT A H (F d3b-tgA § e (b) Shareholders may kindly note that no gifts/
EREIl
TE© * IER/FA fafd T M | coupons will be distributed at the venue of the
meeting.
v H5d & SRAR BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
/ e
EE| (TH.T. %) Chennai (SABHAT)
28.04.2008 T TF Y RS 28.04.2008 Chairman and Managing Director
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Item No. 3

The Bank’s equity shares are at present listed on
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE),
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) and Madras
Stock Exchange Ltd. (MSE).

With the extensive network of BSE & NSE terminals
available nationwide, Investors have access to
online dealings in the Bank’s shares across the
country. While the entire trading in the Bank’s equity
shares have been taking place on BSE & NSE,
there is no trading of our Bank’s shares on MSE
since April 2005.

In view of this, the Bank proposes the delisting of
its shares from MSE since no particular/ additional
benefit is available to the shareholders of the Bank
by continuing the listing of its equity shares on MSE.
Further, the proposed delisting is beneficial so as
to enable saving of listing fees and other
administrative costs.

Pursuant to SEBI (Delisting of Securities)
Guidelines, 2003, without giving an exit option to
the shareholders of the region where the aforesaid
Stock Exchange is situated, approval of
shareholders of the Bank is being sought for the
proposal as set out in Item No.3 of the Notice
convening the Annual General Meeting of the Bank
which would enable it to delist its equity shares from
the MSE. In terms of the aforesaid guidelines, the
Resolution is required to be approved by three-
fourth majority of those shareholders present and
voting at the meeting.

The proposed de-listing of the Bank’s equity shares
from MSE as and when the same takes place, will
not adversely affect the Investors. The Bank’s equity
shares will continue to be listed on BSE & NSE.
The delisting will take effect after all approvals,
permissions and sanctions, if any, are received in
accordance with the guidelines.

The Board of Directors of the Bank recommends
the resolution as set out at ltem No. 3 of the Notice
for your approval.

None of the Directors of the Bank is concerned or
interested in the said resolution.

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
)=

(S A BHAT)

Chairman and Managing Director

Chennai
28.04.2008
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 2007-08

The Board of Directors have great pleasure in
presenting the Annual Report together with audited
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account of the Bank
for the year ended March 31, 2008.

The Bank was ranked, on the basis of its overall
performance in 2006-07, First among Public Sector
Banks and third among 35 large banks in India by KPMG
and Business Today Survey. Another survey done for
the same period by Ernst & Young and Financial Express
placed the Bank on top among the nationalised banks.

The Bank’s performance was gratifying with the volume
of business recording high growth. The Bank has
performed better than the System in the growth of total
business during 2007-08. While the System recorded a
growth of 22% in total domestic business, the Bank
achieved a growth 24% for the year ended March 2008.
Profitability indicators also showed good improvement
and there was all round progress in the year under
review. Thus good performance witnessed in the
previous year has been carried forward in the reporting
year as well.

Global Business Performance

Global business increased significantly from Rs.
1,16,663 crore in March 2007 to Rs. 1,45,384 crore in
March 2008, with a growth of 24.62%. Deposits at the
global level improved by 22.67% from Rs. 68,740 crore
to Rs. 84,326 crore in the same period while advances
went up by 27.41% from Rs.47,923 crore to Rs. 61,058
crore. Global CD ratio improved from 69.72% to 72.41%.

Overseas Branches

During the year, the Bank opened a Representative
Office at Ho Chi Minh City, Vietham. The Bank has
obtained approval from the Reserve Bank of India to
open a branch at New Zealand and a Representative
Office at Dubai. Preparatory work for opening these
offices is underway. The Bank has also plans to upgrade
the existing Representative Offices in Kualalumpur, Malaysia
and Guangzhou, China into full-fledged branches.

As at the end of March 2008, the Bank had 12
establishments abroad comprising of 6 full-fledged
branches, 3 Representative Offices, 2 Remittance
Centres and 1 Extension counter. The branches include
two in Hong Kong and one each in Singapore, South
Korea, Sri Lanka and Thailand. Representative Offices
are located in Guangzhou, China, Kualalumpur,
Malaysia, and in Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam. Remittance
Centres function in Boon Lay and Serangoon,
Singapore, while the Extension counter is located in Sri
Lanka. Three officers have been deputed by the Bank
at the UAE Exchange Centres who liaise between
branches in India and the NRI clientele of the Bank.

Financial Performance

The Bank posted an impressive global operating profit
of Rs. 2,002 crore crossing Rs.2,000 crore mark which
is a major milestone in the history of the Bank. The growth
in operating profit recorded during the year was 28.33%
and it marks a leap from Rs.1,560 crore of the previous
year. Growth in profit can be attributed to expansion in
volume of business and improvement in efficiency
levels.
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Provisions

A sum of Rs. 799 crore was set apart towards provisions
and contingencies as per the extant guidelines.

Net Profit / Dividend

The Bank’s net profit reached a level of Rs. 1,202 crore
in March 2008 from Rs. 1,008 crore in March 2007.
Increase in net profit at 19.25% came about through
improvement in yield on advances and non-interest
income. Dividend for the year 2007-08 is being proposed
at 32 %.

Income and Expenditure Analysis

The Bank’s total income increased to Rs. 8,776 crore
during 2007-08 from Rs.6,219 crore with a growth of
41.12%. This was possible mainly due to higher credit
growth at 27.41% and increased yield on advances with
substantial recoveries in NPA accounts. Total interest
income went up from Rs.5,832 crore to Rs.7,968 crore
registering a growth of 36.63%. Non-interest income
also increased to Rs.808 crore in 2007-08 compared to
Rs.387crore in 2006-07 with a significant growth of
108.79%. The high growth is mainly due to increase in
commission earnings by Rs. 81 crore, profit on
exchange by Rs.24 crore and all other income including
recoveries to P & L account by Rs. 115 crore. The Bank
was able to maintain the treasury gains at Rs.230 crore
in 2007-08 as compared to Rs.237 crore in the previous
year.

Interest expenditure increased at 61.69% to Rs.5,289
crore in 2007-08 as against Rs.3,271 crore in the
previous year. The interest expenditure was higher
during the year mainly due to substantial increase in
cost of funds by 138 basis points when compared to last
year. Interest on borrowings/others also increased by
35% to Rs.507 crore in 2007-08 as against Rs.375 crore
in the last year mainly on account of increased
borrowings, especially to meet the CRAR at a
comfortable level. Total Net Interest Income improved
to Rs.2,679 crore when compared to Rs.2,561 crore last
year at a marginal growth of 5%. However, NIM
increased significantly in Q4 2007-08 to 3.26% as
against 3.11% both in Q3 & Q2 and 3.71% in Q1. Despite
non-payment of interest on CRR balances, higher cost
of deposits and lower yield on investments, the Bank
was able to maintain its Net Interest Margin at 3.29% for
the year as a whole.

Operating expenses increased moderately by 7% to
Rs.1,485 crore compared to Rs.1,388 crore during last
year. Thus, the total expenses for the year 2007-08 was
contained at Rs.6,774 crore with an increase of 45.40%
as against Rs.4,659 crore in 2006-07.

Overall, the Bank's operating profit increased by 28.33%
from Rs.1,560 crore last year to Rs.2,002 crore.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

The Bank has adopted new Basel Il norms with effect
from 31.03.2008. As per the revised capital adequacy
framework, the Capital to Risk Weighted Assets Ratio
(CRAR) as at the end of 31.03.2008 works out to 11.62%.
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However, the CRAR subject to prudential floor prescribed
by the Reserve Bank of India stands at a healthy 11.13%
as against regulatory stipulation of 9.00%.

Branch Network

In branch expansion, the main thrust, during the year,
was on relocation of the branches of the erstwhile Bharat
Overseas Bank Ltd., which was taken over with a network
of 101 branches, effective March 31,2007. Out of the
branches taken over, the Bank closed 37 branches, of
which 20 branches have since been relocated and 17
branches are in the process of being opened in the new
locations.

During 2007-08, the Bank opened 21 new branches and
upgraded 62 extension counters into full-fledged
branches. As at the end of the reporting period, total
domestic branch network stood at 1,847. Population-
group wise break-up showed 574 rural branches, 463
semi-urban, 453 urban and 357 metropolitan branches.
The number of extension counters stood at 51. The Bank
has plans to take over certain assets and liabilities of a
co-operative bank, Shree Suvarna Sahakari Bank Ltd.,
Pune, having a network of 12 branches subject to due
diligence and approval of Central Government and the
RBI.

Customer Service

The Bank has adopted the Code of Commitment of
Banking Codes and Standards Board of India (BCSBI).
Sensitisation programmes were conducted at the Bank’s
Staff college/ Staff Training centres to disseminate the
Code to staff members in compliance with instructions
of BCSBI.

During the year, the following policy documents related
to customer service, were amended as per the
instructions of BCSBI.

1. Policy on Collection of Cheques/ Instruments.
2. Policy on Grievances Redressal and

3. Policy on collection of Dues and Repossession of
Security.

The details of customer complaints received and
redressed are given below:

a. No. of complaints pending at the

beginning of the year 83
b. No. of complaints received during the year 1,055
c. No. of complaints redressed during the year 1,084

d. No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 54

No. of awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman and
implemented by the Bank are as follows.

a. No. of unimplemented awards at the

beginning of the year 2
b. No. of awards passed by Banking

Ombudsman during the year Nil
¢. No. of awards implemented during the year Nil

d. No. of unimplemented awards at the end of the year 2




a5 2007-08 3 & 1138 Rrebrae! sl Faren (et
b ot wier & ) o & 1084 fRreharell a1 Fare fahar
T | FEYH & 95.25 Fiaed @ o

Ued qa1 g A, Rge fu 9% 99 R § g9 g oy
2007-08 3 S weft Tt a1 qHre fhan @ |

fyreprad @ sheta saters 3 &=t sEtaal ®i (w, §-9d
IR SeAH F JART) S 3 Ty 9 T R de,
AT AAhTTe, T TR (S | ITe &1 W& & | R gred
F Tq TR TS F AW AR WEH B A B 2t
TGS (Faw 1800-425-4445) 3ueed Ftarh Tt € | 59
TTehTIat o1 FoveT 48 52i | fhar ST @i @ |

AT SAAHR T3 BT TSI HEHOT SRR 2007 § Febifvm
Tora T ST e wfeat weft sanst | suciey s T |
ay & S AT 3 ey e yEae fafiee &t garet &
T F AT ST T W UTeh Yl W Tefeqor g | dep oft
T § qT S @R | 3ifad R # gdften @ |

e dfehT 3R famum

9 & SNE REA Sfeh FEdamt & T fief s e
ek oh Teft &1 oh e | YHR g3 | 4 S i 9 8
IUIE “STESASITE" Bl HToh! 3731 Tgrar e | 7 e
T § ST SR Mg SE e e T oft TR A ah
T | AR Shaa st S gAEeT A v St
fafide & arer Sftae o 1 sfta Sfiar s & o g
FIRE T & &Y F TS F dF & e STRT FRGR
g1 37 § gfg g8 | Sitad sftmn aferre o Hifiem wrf 2007
7%.23.07 H0 F 79 2008 F F. 49.18 FUE T (4 83 |
Tt srafy & < o FHieE | 37w gfs gg S w.
159.58 g § %. 218.71 @@ W@ | g TR IS gfea
et fafiee 1 1 Sham wiefat & fifrem & off = 2007
T % 1741 :Ug | 7 2008 T &, 23.50 HE T Feiadt
g5 | affa e d % 132.53 ARG | . 156.60 TG 7 18
i & 95 g3 | Rt sy % < aRet
TfaXoT o T8d FUEW &. 190 FUS P UK F T | e
RET HURUT & FRUT Yoah LR 37 § frzet af i gorn §
90 wfererd g5 g2 |

R T & o (ToTaH st 37esT WIS f9sd a% & qa
H 23 Ffeer T d¢l | FRITR HHEH T 3T o 379
&Y § @rd T AR 2T FoT Hee dE (sRuedE) sr
fee Foll & Sfaaor i Saree 7 sty et wh
e 1 TR 31 el § RThEh & Fx wWiem # A S |
o fafee i Sifem e sTHe 9T gu 3 S
3 3R I off HUE

IR fehT & &7 ¥ UTesh 1 Tgferad St sl bl &1 H T@a
2 3ETS - 7§ TooT AT S IS TS Ao H AR {3 e

During the year 2007-08, 1,138 complaints were handled
(including the complaints carried over from the earlier
year), of which, 1,084 complaints were resolved. The
settlement rate was 95.25 %.

Customer Service Centre, for which the Bank is the
Convenor in Chennai City had resolved all the complaints
during 2007-08.

The complaints are being received directly by Central
Office and Regional Offices (through letters, e-mails and
telephone) and also through other channels like Reserve
Bank of India, Banking Ombudsman, and Government
of India. Customers are provided with the facility of Toll
Free Tele services (N0.1800-425-4445) by engaging an
outside agency for receiving complaints. These
complaints are being resolved within 48 hours.

Revised edition of Citizens Charter was published in
October 2007 and copies of the same were made
available at all the Branches. During the year, IBA has
undertaken a survey on customer service at the Banking
Industry Level by engaging the services of Gallup India
Pvt. Ltd. The Bank is also participating in the Survey.
The final report is awaited.

Retail Banking and Marketing

Retail banking activities picked up momentum during
the year and the business on all spheres of retail banking
has improved. Group Life Insurance Linked Product, |IOB
Jeevan continued to generate good numbers. Group
Health Insurance linked product, IOB Healthcare Plus
also had a better reach. Bank’s tie up with LIC of India
and United India Insurance Co. Ltd. as a Corporate Agent
for distribution of Life and Non-Life Insurance products
has resulted in increased fee based business and income
for the bank. The premium on LIC policies has improved
from Rs.23.07 crore in March 2007 to Rs.49.18 crore in
March 2008. The commission earned has increased by
37% from Rs.159. 58 lacs to Rs.218.71 lacs in this period.
Likewise premium on non-life policies of United India
Insurance Co. Ltd. has also increased from Rs.17.41
crore in March 2007 to Rs.23.50 crore in March 2008.
The revenue earned has increased by 18% from
Rs.132.53 lacs to Rs. 156.60 lacs. The mobilization under
Mutual Fund Distribution has crossed Rs.190 crore
during the reporting period. Higher retail mobilization
has improved fee-based income by about 90 % over the
previous year.

The performance under Retail Loans was impressive with
a growth of about 23 % over the previous year. The four
Retail Loan Processing Centres (RLPCs), which were
opened as a part of business process re-engineering
initiatives, have started generating good volumes in
processing and disbursement of retail loans. The Bank
has plans for opening RLPCs in four more centres.

The joint venture non-life insurance venture, Universal
Sompo General Insurance Company Ltd. received the
final regulatory approvals and the company has already
launched two products.

In the product development side, product improvements
were made with customer-friendly features for two
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products — Home Decor Scheme and Easy Trade
Scheme. Personal Accident Cover of Rs.1 Lac for
individual deposit account holders was introduced
during the year.

The following business focused campaigns were
conducted during the year 2007-08.

1. CASA Deposit Campaign
2. Retail Deposit Mobilisation Campaign
3. Campaign on Retail Sale of Gold Coins

There was all round business improvement in the retail-
banking segment with an increase in overall income of
about 60 % through insurance products and mutual fund
distribution.

Official Language Policy

The Bank has taken all efforts to implement the Official
Language Policy of Government of India during the year
2007-08. Special efforts were taken to train maximum
number of staff members in Hindi and impart training to
work in Hindi on computers. During the year 345
members were trained in IOB Praveen. In all, 910
members were given training in working in Hindi on
computers. Raj Bhasha Sanghosthi was conducted for
all top executives of Central Office on August 9, 2007.

Bank’s Hindi house magazine ‘Vani’ was made online.
Data bank for all officers and employees was prepared
in Hindi. The minutes of all Board level committees were
translated in to Hindi.

The Bank has been awarded first prize in ‘B’ region and
third prize in ‘A’ region by Reserve Bank of India for
commendable work done for Official Language
Implementation for the year 2006-07. Bank has been
awarded third prize for the Hindi house magazine ‘Vani’
for the year 2005-06 by Reserve Bank of India in the
competition conducted by RBI for Hindi house
magazines of banks and financial institutions which was
received from Dr. Y. V. Reddy, Governor of RBI on July
19, 2007. Indira Gandhi Rajbhasha Shield for
commendable Official Language implementation was
awarded to the Bank by the Honorable Home Minister
Shri Shivraj Patil on September 14, 2007.

Regional Offices were inspected on Official Language
Implementation by the Official Language Department,
Central Office and Rajbhasha Shields were awarded to
Regional Offices and branches for their performance in
this regard.

The third Sub-Committee of Parliamentary Committee
on Official Language inspected the Bank’s Regional
Office, Puducherry on October 29, 2007 and appreciated
the Bank’s efforts in this regard. The drafting and
evidence Sub-Committee of Parliamentary Committee
on Official Language had discussions with the Chairman
and heads of Banks of Town Official Language
Committees at Bhubaneswar, Chandigarh, Ahmedabad,
Mumbai and Pune. The Bank was also included for
discussion at all places and the committee expressed
their satisfaction over the performance of the Bank in
these locations.
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Chennai Town Official Language Implementation
Committee, for which the Bank is the convenor, has
received the first prize for its efforts in implementation of
Official Language Policy during the year 2006-07 by
the Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of India on
October 5, 2007. On behalf of the committee, the Bank
conducted two general Hindi workshops, Joint Hindi
month celebration, bilingual computer training and
Rajbhasha Sanghoshti during the year 2007-08 apart
from two half yearly meetings. The Bank, on behalf of
the committee, sponsored a seminar in Hindi on Risk
Management for Chief Managers of member banks /
financial institutions.

Regional Rural Banks

The Regional Rural Banks (RRBs) sponsored by the
Bank, viz., Pandian Grama Bank and Neelachal Gramya
Bank (amalgamated entity of erstwhile Puri Gramya Bank
and Dhenkanal Gramya Bank in Orissa) performed well
during the year. Both the RRBs have recorded net profit
during the year.

Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance promotes fairness, transparency
and accountability in a corporate environment. Good
Corporate Governance is critical to enhance investor
wealth and retain investor confidence. The timely and
accurate disclosure of information regarding the financial
situation, performance, ownership and governance of
the Bank plays an important part in Corporate
Governance. The policies of the Bank to promote
Corporate Governance are based on the principle that
Management is the trustee and custodian of public
funds. Therefore, such policies should ensure that
relevant laws are being satisfied both in letter and spirit.
The transparent policies of the Bank in turn ensure a
high degree of disclosures. In short, Corporate
Governance involves commitment to high ethical
standards and corporate values.

The Bank has been scrupulously ensuring compliance
with norms laid down by regulatory authorities in all
areas. The Bank has always been proactive in adopting
good Corporate Governance. The Board recognizes its
accountability to all stakeholders of the Bank. The Bank
has laid down a well-defined Code of Conduct, which is
applicable to all the members of the Board and Senior
Management.

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a
Management Discussion & Analysis Report, a Report
on Corporate Governance as well as a certificate by the
auditors regarding compliance of the conditions of
Corporate Governance form part of this Annual Report.
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Board of Directors

Shri T.S. Narayanasami, Chairman & Managing Director,
demitted office on June 4, 2007, upon his appointment
as Chairman & Managing Director of Bank of India. Shri
S.A. Bhat assumed charge as Chairman & Managing
Director of the Bank with effect from June 4, 2007. Shri
G. Narayanan assumed charge as one more Executive
Director on November 7, 2007.

Shri A.V.Dugade, Executive Director, demitted office on
superannuation on March 31, 2008.

Dr. Shashank Saksena was nominated to the Board with
effect from August 20, 2007 in place of Shri Madhusudan
Prasad. Shri N. Sridaran, presently Vice President of All
India Overseas Bank Employees Union, was appointed
as Workmen Employee Director for a period of three
years with effect from April 20, 2007 in place of Shri S.
Srinivasan. The Board of Directors placed on record the
valuable contributions made by the erstwhile Directors
and extended a warm welcome to the new Directors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Economic Environment

During the year 2007-08, Indian economy recorded a
growth of 8.7%. Marginal deceleration in economic
activity could be attributed to global factors such as
economic slowdown in the US, high oil prices combined
with rising food prices. Export growth was adversely
affected by rupee appreciation and also on account of
lack of adequate demand for products and services in
the overseas markets.

Banking Environment

At the beginning of the year, RBI increased CRR by 50
basis points in two stages — the first hike of 25 basis
points from April 14, 2007 and the second stage 25 basis
points from April 28, 2007 — to reach 6.5%. It aimed at
controlling liquidity with banks and this policy stance
continued through the year. Fixed repo rate under the
LAF was also hiked by 25 basis points to 7.75% from
7.50% from March 31, 2007. CRR was again increased
from the fortnight beginning August 4, 2007 to 7 per
cent. It was further hiked by 50 basis points to 7.5% of
banks’ demand and time liabilities from the fortnight
beginning November 10, 2007. From the fortnight
beginning March 31, 2007, the RBI discontinued interest
payment on CRR balances. The RBI measures had the
desired impact of moderating credit growth and
contributing towards demand compression.

Interest rates remained high during 2007-08 because of
the need to combat inflation. The global Sub-Prime crisis
has created liquidity problem at the global level and it
will have its impact on the Indian financial system.
Borrowings by banks in the global markets may become
expensive in view of the liquidity crisis.

THE BANK’S OPERATIONS
Deposits

The Bank’s aggregate domestic deposits rose from
Rs.66,378 crore in 2006-07 to Rs. 80,842 crore in 2007-
08. During the period under review, the Bank reduced
its dependence on high cost deposits substantially,
besides reduction in cost of such deposits.

Credit

The domestic gross advances increased to Rs.57,260
crore against Rs.45,107 crore last year, registering a
healthy growth of 26.94%.

Export Credit

Export credit is a priority area for the Bank. The Bank’s
export advances as at the end of March 2008 stood at
Rs.2,517 crore.

Priority Sector Credit

The Bank continued to achieve the stipulated norm under
priority sector credit. As per the revised guidelines of
RBI, the achievement in priority sector for the year 2007-
08 has been computed, taking Net Bank Credit of March
2007 as the base. Consequently, for the year ended
March 2008, the percentage of net priority sector
advances to net bank credit was at 45.85% and the
amount stood at Rs.20,303 crore.
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SME

The Bank extended credit to SME sector to the tune of
Rs. 7,541 crore as at the end of March 2008. This includes
advances to Micro and Small Enterprises to the tune of
Rs.5,175 crore, which form a part of Priority Sector credit.
The number of accounts under Credit Guarantee Trust
for Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE) coverage has
grown from 987 last year to 2,076 as at the end of the
reporting period. The amount covered under CGTMSE
guarantee has increased from Rs. 26.59 crore to Rs.
65.40 crore in the same period.

During the year, the 10B - Tools Scheme launched in
October 2006 along with erstwhile MICO BOSCH Ltd.
(now known as BOSCH Ltd.) picked up substantially.
The scheme, which was launched in Tamil Nadu, has
since been extended to other states as well.

Agriculture

The agricultural credit portfolio of the Bank registered a
growth of Rs. 589.43 crore from Rs. 8,099.47 crore to
Rs. 8,688.90 crore. The Bank’s ratio of agricultural
advances to adjusted net bank credit at 18.93%
exceeded the 18% norm.

The Bank disbursed Rs. 7,820.12 crore under Special
Agricultural Credit Plan (SACP) as against the target of
Rs. 7,673 crore. The increase in disbursement of credit
to agricultural sector over the last year’s disbursement
was 32.61%, as against the incremental credit flow of
30% mandated by the Govt. of India under Special Farm
Credit Package.

Recovery to demand under agricultural advances
continued to be satisfactory at 80.85% for the year ended
June 2007.

Kisan Credit Card Scheme ( KCC))

The Bank has issued 2,13,584 KCCs during the year.
The total number of cards cumulatively issued by the
Bank as at the end of March 2008 was 14,96,917.

Micro Finance

During the year, the Bank has credit linked 59,519 SHGs
and exceeded the target of 50,000 with a credit outlay of
Rs.507.12 crore. The cumulative number of SHGs credit
linked by the Bank increased from 1,68,694 SHGs
(Amount Disbursed Rs. 866.31 crore) as at the end of
March 2007 to 2,28,213 SHGs (Amount Disbursed
Rs.1,373.43 crore) as of March 2008.

10B’s tie-up with Annapurna Group for micro lending

The Bank has been very active in financing of Self Help
Groups, Micro Financial Institutions and financial
inclusion, more particularly, in the Southern States. With
a view to enlarging the geographic coverage of the
Bank’s operations across the country, especially for
financing Weaker Section and Urban Poor, the Bank has
joined hands with a reputed NGO, viz. Annapurna group,
which is operating very successfully in Mumbai-Pune
belt. This tie-up between IOB and Annapurna Parivar
will enable the Bank’s entry into Microcredit operations
in Western Region of the country. To begin with, the
Bank has sanctioned credit limits of Rs.14.35 crore to
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Annapurna Group, for on-lending to urban poor women
in slums of Pune and Mumbai.

Credit Flow to Women

As at the end of the year, Bank’s credit to women
amounted to  Rs. 2,391.06 crore constituting 5.40% of
the Bank’s Net Credit, as against the norm of 5%.

Sakthi - Indian Overseas Bank Chidambaram Chettiar
Memorial Trust

The Trust, set up jointly by the Management of the Bank,
Indian Overseas Bank Officers’ Association and All India
Overseas Bank Employees’ Union to perpetuate the
memory of the founder of the Bank
Shri.M.CT.M.Chidambaram Chettiar, is continuing the
pursuit of its objective of ‘affording training to women
for acquiring skills which will increase the income and
create employment opportunities’. The Trust has so far
imparted skill based vocational training to 1,128 women
who have been gainfully employed.

The Trust is also conducting Entrepreneurship
Development Programme (EDP) for Women and so far,
34 EDPs exclusively for women have been conducted
by the Bank, at various centres totally benefiting 1,239
women. After 3 -6 months from the date of completion
of the EDP, an interface with the trainees is arranged to
sort out the problems. For these Women Entrepreneurs
and SHGs, “IOB Sakthi Bazaars” are also organised at
a few of the branches, to exhibit their products for sale.

Lead Bank Scheme

The Bank has Lead Bank responsibility in twelve districts
in Tamil Nadu and one district in Kerala. The Bank is
also the Convenor of State Level Bankers’ Committee of
Tamil Nadu. During the year under review, as Convenor
of SLBC, Tamil Nadu, the Bank conducted three SLBC
Meetings and a State Level Review Meeting.

10B-Sampoorna Project-A Total Village Development
Project

The Bank has recently launched an innovative rural
development project aiming at Total Village Development
called 10B-Sampoorna in Kuthambakkam and Padur
Villages in Tiruvallur District in Tamil Nadu. 10B-
Sampoorna is an unique Project encompassing several
livelihood initiatives in the villages to ensure all-inclusive
growth of rural population.

I0B-Sampoorna comprises of the following credit and

non-credit components.

1. Under total sanitation scheme, a sum of Rs. 45 lacs
has been sanctioned for constructing bathroom cum
toilet for 900 households (@Rs.5,000 / house), in
Kuthambakkam village under DRI.

2. |.T.Enabled banking operations with Bio-metric
Smart cards through Business Correspondent
model.

3. Tree Planting and Social Forestry

4. Cleaning Water Bodies

5. Health care
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6. Skill Training for youth in computer and BPO
7. Rural Business Process Outsourcing
8. Promotion of non-conventional energy.

Rural Training Centres (RTCs)

The Bank had set up three Rural Training Centres in its
Lead Districts of Sivaganga, Tirunelveli and Thanjavur
in the State of Tamilnadu to impart both classroom and
practical training to the farmers, members of SHGs,
Educated Unemployed Youths, Artisans, and
Beneficiaries belonging to weaker sections.

Rural Training Centre at Karaikudi had been set up by
the Bank in association with National Bank for Agriculture
and Rural Development (NABARD) and Indian Bank. The
other 2 Rural Training Centres had been established by
the Bank on its own at Tirunelveli and Thanjavur.

During the year under review, through these three RTCs,
the Bank has conducted 95 training programmes and
trained 2,873 beneficiaries.

Risk Management

The Bank has implemented New Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel Il) with effect from March 31, 2008 as
per the RBI guidelines. While implementing the
framework, the Bank has adopted Standardized
Approach (SA) for Credit Risks and Basic Indicator
Approach (BIA) for Operational Risks to compute capital
as on March 31, 2008. The Bank continues to apply the
Standardized Duration Approach (SDA) for computing
capital requirement for market risks with effect from
March 31, 2006. The Bank continued the parallel run of
Basel Il framework by continuously tracking the
exposures and studied the impact on Bank’s CRAR on
quarterly basis with a view to ensuring smooth transition
to revised framework. Necessary training has been
imparted to the field staff on various aspects of capital
computation to ensure accuracy and adequacy.

Further, the Bank is in the process of upgrading its risk
management systems and practices for migrating to
more sophisticated and risk sensitive advanced
approaches for computation of capital in respect of credit
risk, market risk and operational risk in future, with the
approval of Reserve Bank of India.

For adopting internal risk based approach (IRB) for credit
risk in future, the Bank has been using a sophisticated
internal risk-rating model for risk-rating exposures of Rs.
1 crore and above. In order to widen the scope and
coverage further, the Bank has developed additionally
risk sensitive rating models in-house for use at Branches
/ other Offices for risk rating borrowal accounts in specific
segments. For calculating market risk capital by internal
Models Approach (IMA), a sophisticated Value at Risk
(VaR) model is already put to use. For computing
operational risk capital using Advanced Measurement
Approach (AMA), loss data are being built up for eventual
transition to the advanced approach.

The Bank continues to strengthen its various risk
management systems as per the guidelines of the
Reserve Bank of India to manage credit risk, market risk,
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operational risk and other risks that includes policies,
tools, techniques, monitoring mechanisms and MIS.

Compliance Function

In terms of Basel Guidelines for managing Compliance
Risk, Reserve Bank of India issued Final Guidelines on
Compliance Function in banks on April 20, 2007. It was
stipulated therein that each Bank should establish an
independent department to oversee the compliance
function in the bank. Accordingly, the Bank has
established a new department called “Compliance
Department” in Central Office. The Compliance Policy
for the Bank incorporating the guidelines of RBI was
approved by the Board. In terms of the Compliance
Function, Compliance Officers are designated in each
branch / department / office to monitor the level of
compliance. A separate Compliance Officer has been
designated for the Bank as a whole in the rank of Deputy
General Manager.

The Bank has devised the methodologies and put in
place the systems for assessment of level of compliance
in the branches and steps are being taken to mitigate
the risk associated therewith.

Recovery Management

In recovery management, the Bank exploited the
potential under SARFAESI in all eligible cases. Another
strategy was on recovery of critical amount towards
upgrading the accounts wherever possible. The Bank
initiated action under SARFAESI Act in all eligible cases
with outstanding of Rs. 5 lacs and above which resulted
in the recovery of NPAs either by sale of the secured
assets or by bringing the borrowers for OTS/OCS. The
Bank launched a special recovery campaign viz. SPEcial
Exit Deal (SPEED) for all Doubtful and Loss assets with
book outstanding below Rs.5 lacs as on September 30,
2007.

A special and exclusive training programme was
arranged for senior officers handling recovery at
Branches/Regional offices during the year.

During the year, the Bank sold 35 accounts to ARCIL
and recovered Rs. 62.63 crore. The Bank made
substantial cash recovery of Rs. 390 crore towards
reduction of NPA accounts besides recoveries of
Rs.149.97 crore in written off accounts. Upgradation to
the extent of Rs. 57 crore was made towards reduction
of NPA accounts.

Industrial Rehabilitation

Total number of cases under BIFR/AAIFR as at the end
of reporting year was 35 with an exposure of Rs.156.19
crore. Of this, 9 accounts aggregating to Rs.72.89 crore
were standard and performing. Out of NPA accounts,
the Bank has recorded second highest ever recovery in
27 cases amounting to Rs.50.68 crore (including sale of
10 accounts to ARCIL) during the year as against 22
cases amounting to Rs.53.20 crore last year. Further, in
one case, a company with an exposure of Rs.94 crore
came out of the purview of Sick Industrial Companies
(Special Provisions) Act, as its net worth turned positive.
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Corporate Debt Restructuring

As at the end of March 2008, the total number of cases
restructured under CDR Mechanism was 9 with an
outstanding of Rs.371.70 crore, as against 10 cases with
an outstanding of Rs.390.24 crore as at the end of the
preceding year. Two NPA accounts were adjusted
during the year. One new account with an exposure of
Rs.39.65 crore entered CDR mechanism during the year.
Of the 9 accounts under CDR, 8 accounts were standard
and performing with an outstanding of Rs.360.91 crore.
Efforts are on for recovery of the remaining one Non
Performing Account.

Investments

The growth in investments during the year 2007-08 was
mainly driven by the increase in Statutory Liquidity
requirements resulting out of Deposit growth of the Bank.

Gross Investments as of March 31,2008 stood at Rs.
27,467.85 crore showing a growth of 16.53 % over the
previous year. SLR securities registered a growth of Rs.4,
391.86 crore or 21.23% during the year while Non-SLR
Investments in bonds & debentures declined by Rs.600.56
crore due to a conscious decision taken by the Management
to reduce the Interest Rate Risk in such securities.

Between segments, Govt. securities for Rs.1,337.51 crore
were transferred from Available for Sale (AFS) to Held to
Maturity (HTM) segment and Rs.559.20 crore were
transferred from Held to Maturity (HTM) to Available for
Sale (AFS) during 2007-08.

As on March 31, 2008, the extent of SLR securities held
in HTM stood at 22.65% of DTL against the limit of 25%
prescribed by Reserve Bank of India, compared to
28.72% a year ago.

Under highly volatile conditions, the Bank maintained
its trading in both Fixed Income Market and Equity
Market throughout the year. Total turnover (Book Value)
in the secondary market reached Rs.1,99,540 crore
during the year 2007-08 as against Rs.48,334 crore
during the year 2006-07. Total profit on sale of domestic
securities amounted to Rs. 228.55 crore as against Rs.
232.99 crore during the year 2006-07.

Return on total domestic investments (excluding Profit
on Sale of Securities& amortisation) declined from 8.23%
in 2006-07 to 8.15 % in 2007-08 in line with industry
performance.

Rupee Derivatives

During the year, no fresh rupee interest rate swap has
been taken by the Bank and the total Rupee interest
rate swaps held by the Bank as on March 31, 2008
remained at Rs. 1,425 crore. These were essentially
entered into earlier with the objective of reducing the
cost of Tier Il bonds as well as market risk in Government
securities held by the Bank.

Forex Operations

The foreign exchange turnover (merchant and inter
bank) improved from Rs.1, 47,668 crore during 2006-
07 to Rs.2, 20,230 crore during 2007- 08 with a growth
of 49%. Consequently, the income earned improved from
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Rs.93.78 crore in the previous year to Rs.125.72 crore
in the period under review. The Bank has sold 558 Kgs
of gold coins from April 2007 to March 2008. To enhance
the customer satisfaction and to keep pace with the
market developments, the Bank has launched web
based remittances like “Xpress Money” and “Money
Gram”. Visa prepaid travel card named “Overseas Cash”
launched during September 2006 has now been
extended to all Authorised Dealer branches. In order to
increase the inflow of NRI deposits from Gulf countries,
the Bank has posted one more official, to be stationed
in Sharjah.

US Dollar Drawing Arrangement with UAE Exchange
Centre, Abu Dhabi:

This facility has been introduced to NRI customers in
UAE to remit US Dollar funds for opening Foreign
Currency Non-Resident [FCNR] accounts in USD. The
above facility is designed for easy and faster mode of
opening FCNR deposits from UAE and will eliminate
multiple currency conversions and minimize exchange
loss to customers besides providing facility to routing
the rupee as well as USD remittance under one roof.

The Bank has entered into arrangements with Al Ansari
Exchange, Abu Dhabi, Habib Exchange Company, Abu
Dhabi and Al Ahalia Money Exchange, Abu Dhabi for
“ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER”

Private Label Trade Service (PLTS):

The Bank entered into an arrangement with Wachovia
Bank, Hong Kong, a correspondent bank for
establishment and negotiation of documentary credit for
beneficiaries in Hong Kong, Japan, China, Taiwan and
South Korea.

During the year, Term Deposit Scheme was introduced
under EEFC accounts.

The outstanding under foreign currency loans portfolio
was to the tune of USD 292 million to exporters and other
corporates. There has been 100% deployment of
resources mobilized through gold deposits in gold loans.

During the year, the Bank has raised a 3 year syndicated
loan of USD 100 million and swapped the funds into
Indian Rupees at a very competitive rate to augment the
resources.

The Sub-Committee of SLBC (State Level Bankers’
Committee) for Export Promotion which has been
constituted, at the instance of Reserve Bank of India,
under the chairmanship of Executive Director of the Bank,
convened meetings during September 2007 and
February 2008 and had the attendance of representatives
from various nationalised banks, Government
departments, ECGC, Exim Bank, RBI, FIEO etc.

A comprehensive Risk Management Policy, with limits
duly approved by the Board, covering all risks arising
out of forex activities, is in place. Currency-wise Day
Light/Overnight exposures, duly approved by the Board,
are being monitored on a daily basis. Counter-party
limits to cover the credit exposure; Single Deal Limit
and Stop-Loss Limits (per deal and per dealer per day)
are being monitored effectively on a daily basis.
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Speedy Transfer and Realisation Services (STARS)

Speedy Transfer and Realisation Service extended to
the customers of the Bank generated fee-based income.
It also provides value-addition to them. Wide network of
branches helps the Bank in realising the full potential of
the product, which is marketed, even to private/foreign
banks.

Credit Card

I0B Visa Credit Card has made good progress during
the year. Card base increased by 42% and total turnover
by 45% in 2007-08. Total income from rollover credit and
fees/commission from credit card operations of the Bank
was significant.

Merchant Banking

During the period under review, the Bank acted as
Debenture Trustees for 44 debt issues aggregating to
Rs.6,030.62 crore, Collecting Bankers for 4 debt issues
(Sole collecting Bankers) aggregating to Rs.1,716 crore
and Dividend /Interest Warrants Paying Bankers for 7
corporates aggregating to Rs.9.75 crore. The Bank also
takes up corporate advisory services like valuation of
shares of unlisted companies for the purpose of ESOP/
Sweat Equity Issue. These activities contribute to fee-
based income of the Bank.

Depository Operations

The Bank is a Depository Participant of NSDL and has
two branches, one at Chennai and the other at Mumbai.
To offer extended DP facilities in various centres, the
Bank has 25 service centre branches, connected to
Chennai Depository. The possibility of adding few service
centres at Mumbai is also being explored. As at the end
of the financial year, the Bank is servicing 15,182
beneficiary accounts.

Loan Syndication Activities

During September 2007, Loan Syndication Desk was
formed in Merchant Banking to take advantage of
Syndication Activity. The Bank has acted as Co-Lead
Arranger for a Term Loan of USD 145 million and this
assignment will generate a fee of Rs.3.04 crore during
the current year. The Bank is taking efforts to improve
fee-based income through this activity.

Government Accounts
Indirect Tax Collections

The Bank is authorized to collect Indirect Taxes through
Electronic Accounting System in Excise and Service Tax
(EASIEST) by 217 branches. Bank has been given All
India authorization to receive e-Payment of Excise and
Service Tax, which was implemented since December
2006. Collections through E-Payment is more than 40%
of total Indirect Tax collections.

Direct Tax Collections

Bank is authorized to collect Income Tax and other Direct
Taxes through On Line Tax Accounting System (OLTAS)
by 354 branches. TAN data quality has improved to
99.5% and above. PAN data quality has improved to
98% and above. Bank is given All India authorization to
receive e-Payment of Direct taxes and it is implemented
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since December 2007. E-Payment collections will gain
momentum in the coming financial year as e-Payment
is made mandatory for Corporate/Tax Audit assesses
from April 2008.

Payment of Pension

The Bank handles payment of Pension in respect of
Central Civil, Defence, Railways, Telecom and State
Governments, TNEB, Chennai Port Trust, Employees’
Provident Fund Organisation Pension, Malaysian
Government Pension and Coal Mines Provident Fund
Pensioners. The Bank is in the process of establishing
Centralised Pension Processing Centre (CPPC) for
Central Civil pension.

Other Government Business

The Bank actively participates in the Government of India
Savings Schemes like Senior Citizens Savings Scheme
2004, 8% Taxable Bond and Public Provident Fund
besides handling Treasury business of the Government
of Tamil Nadu in 9 branches and Government of Orissa
in 1 branch. Post Office Collection Account is maintained
at 42 branches in Tamil Nadu.

Currency Chest

One more Currency Chest at Kovilpatti in Tamil Nadu
has been opened. With this, the number of Currency
Chests increased to 32.

Inter Branch Reconciliation

The Bank has been successful in maintaining its good
track record of reducing the reconciliation cycle,
elimination of the COMPASS and Demand Draft debit
entries to 15 days. It has also been ensured that no funds
transfer and telegraphic transfer entry is outstanding for
more than one month.

Inspection

During the reporting period, Central Office inspection
was carried out in 1,424 branches along with EDP Audit
and NIPSA (Non-Industrial Priority Sector Advances)
inspection. In this period, 983 branches were inspected
on-line, switching over from manual mode. Out of the
branches inspected, 426 branches were rated, ‘A’
(Good). Field General Managers’ Offices in Chennai,
Ernakulam, Hyderabad and Kolkata were audited.
Inspection of Hong Kong and Tsim Sha Tsui branches
was also conducted during this period.

Periodical Short Inspection of branches was carried out
by Regional Offices. Management Audit of all 38 Regional
Offices and 36 Central Office departments was also
completed. A total of 294 branches were brought under
Concurrent Audit covering 56.94% of deposits and
68.96% of advances thereby surpassing RBI guidelines
of covering at least 50% of Bank’s business. Revenue
Audit was done in 1,234 branches and Test Check Audit
in 314 branches. Stock Audit was conducted for 463
accounts on selective basis.

Risk Based Internal Audit was conducted at all the 1,424
branches where Central Office inspection was
conducted. Management Audit of Regional Offices also
incorporated Risk Profile of the Regions.
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Information System (IS) Audit was conducted in all the
38 Regional Computer Centres, 10 CCOs, 8 Star
Centres and 2 Depositories. IS Audit has been
completed in 302 branches consisting of 64
Exceptionally Large Branches and 238 Very Large
Branches as also Treasury (Foreign) Department,
Central Office by engaging qualified External Auditors.

Vigilance

During the year 2007-08, the Bank has taken effective
steps for disposal of Pending Vigilance disciplinary cases
within the time frame fixed by CVC. A total of 73 Vigilance
Disciplinary cases were disposed. The Operational Risk
Management Committee and the Committee of the
Board to Monitor Large Value Frauds analysed the frauds
reported periodically and observations / remedial
measures made /suggested by the committee have been
implemented by the Bank. The Bank issued 21 Circulars
captioned Preventive Vigilance - CVO’s Special Circular
elaborating the Vigilance Disciplinary Cases handled.
Besides incorporating the details of punishments
awarded, the important Preventive Measures to be taken
by the staff members are also included in these circulars.
Further emphasis has been given by the Bank towards
preventive Vigilance measures through periodical branch
inspection by Chief Vigilance Officer and also by Officers
attached to Vigilance Cell at select Regional Offices. The
role of staff at all levels in adherence to Systems and
procedures especially compliance to KYC Norms, AML
Guidelines, fraud prone areas, etc. has been emphasized
during periodical visits to Regional Offices and Branches
by Chief Vigilance Officer. Vigilance Awareness Week
was observed in November 2007.

A workshop was organized on Procurement, Purchase,
Awarding Purchase Contracts etc., on March 28, 2008
at the Staff College of the Bank. Shri. V. Ramachandran,
Chief Technical Examiner, Central Vigilance Commission
and also Smt. Padmaja Varma, Consultant (Technical
Audit), Central Vigilance Commission conducted the
programme followed by interactive session. This
programme was highly appreciated by all the Executives
and Senior Officials of the Bank and other Banks who
participated in the Programme.

Information Technology

The Bank made further strides in CBS during the year
and migrated additionally 493 branches / ECs / CCOs
taking the total to 1,205. CBS branches accounted for
89 % of the Bank’s domestic business mix. The Bank
upgraded / added 151 branches / ECs to TBA during
the year. The total number of TBA branches / ECs stood
at 231 as at the end of the reporting period.

The Bank added 69 new ATMs (including 30 at offsite
locations) during the year taking the total number of
ATMs from 382 (52 offsite) last year to 451 (82 offsite)
as on March 31, 2008. All existing ATMs of Diebold,
NCR and Triton makes are made 3-DES compliant. The
38 Wincor-Siemens ATMs will be Triple DES compliant
at the time of replacement of the ATMs (5 ATMs are
already replaced). 1,300 TBA / CBS branches / ECs /
Star Centres provide electronic services such as E-See
Banking, e-mail, etc., as at the end of the year.
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Upgradation to TBA is an ongoing exercise. All non-
networked TBA branches as on March 31, 2007 were
brought under the Bank’s Wide-Area Network with the
exception of 21 branches / ECs where technical and
feasibility issues were raised by BSNL / MTNL. During
the year 255 branches / ECs were networked taking the
total of networked branches / ECs from 1,111 to 1,366.
The total number of networked entities stood at 1,538,
which includes branches, ECs, offsite ATMs, ROs, RCCs,
Star Centres, CCOs and other offices of the Bank. The
Bank has taken a decision to migrate from the existing
leased line connectivity to MPLS technology to have 99.5
% uptime and 24 x 7 support by the service provider
and to cut costs. The high bandwidth MPLS lines at the
three data centers are operational.

The Bank decided to outsource the data centre space
for the Primary, Secondary and Disaster Recovery Data
Centres. The Primary Data Centre services are
outsourced to VSNL, Chennai. The Command Centre
services are outsourced to Sify located at their Data
Centre at Tidel Park, Chennai. The DRS is located at
UTI-TSL premises in Hyderabad.

The Bank had successfully failed over to the Disaster
Recovery Site at Hyderabad on February 23, 2008 as
part of the DR drill conducted by RBI for the RTGS,
NDS-PDO and CFMS applications. All RTGS
transactions were put through the DR systems at
Hyderabad. The process of fail back to the primary
servers at the end of the day was also successful.

Software development, testing and implementation:

Bangkok Project - development of core modules is
completed and tested. Development and testing of
programs for Forex modules relating to imports / exports/
LC / PC etc, are also completed.

Colombo Project - The exports / imports / Packing Credit
modules are implemented in Colombo branch. Programs
were also developed and implemented for CRIB / CBSL
data requirements. Based on their study, other programs
are being developed.

Financial Inclusion Project - Program for pilot launch of
smart card based banking is developed and
implemented in Koothampakkam village using VPN
connectivity.

Software for loading data related to advances accounts
(ICRIS as well as CIBIL data) directly from CBS to Data
Warehouse has been developed and implemented.

o  ECS credit marking program developed and implemented.
¢ Online application for Vidya Jothi Loan was enabled.

o New Data requirements for Health Care Plus (Insurance
product) areimplementedinCBSand TBA.

Quality & Audit

Qadit Systems and Solutions Ltd., Chennai has
completed System Audit of Forex Information System
(FINS). Deloitte Haskins and Sells have completed the
Information Security Audit at Central Office focusing on
IS Policy implementation, System Security of Core
Banking, ATMs, Internet Banking and Network
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infrastructure. Surveillance Audit by the ISO certifying
body D.N.V. was done in September 2007 and ISO
certification was recommended for continuance till
September 2008.

E-See (Internet) banking:

E-Payment of EASIEST is implemented and all the
customers of networked branches who pay Excise Duty
and Service Tax can now remit through Internet.Online
validation of PAN through NSDL and UTI was
implemented in TBA / CBS branches for payment of
Direct taxes by customers through Internet.

Costing of Operations

Cost aspects play a vital role in decision making,
especially in the area of profitability. Profit planning,
projection of goals and monitoring the movement of
income and expenditure are some of the priority areas
of the Bank. Special cost studies are taken up as and
when required by the Bank.

Security

The effective implementation of security measures,
mandatory and recommendatory, at branches and
administrative offices ensured a safe environment for
business for customers and staff. Security measures
were reviewed periodically keeping in view the local law
and order situation and additional steps as necessary
were taken to strengthen the security of branches. The
Bank emphasised on inculcation of security
consciousness among staff and training on fire
prevention measures.

Human Resources Development
Staff Strength

The Bank’s staff strength in India stood at 24,764
comprising 8,767 Officers, 11,701 Clerks and 4,296 Sub-
staff as of March 31, 2008.

Of the total staff strength, 6,776 members belonged to
SC/ST categories. There were 715 ex-servicemen staff
in the Bank. Women employees in the Bank were 4,362.
The number of physically challenged members on the
rolls of the Bank was 469.

Performance linked Cash Incentive Scheme

As a part of motivational measure, the Bank introduced
Performance linked Cash incentive Scheme for the year
2006-07 to Officers/Award Staff attached to Branches,
Regional Offices and FGM offices. Nearly 2,400 Staff
Members received Performance Incentive to the tune of
Rs 6.87 crore.

Recruitment

During the year 2007-08, the Bank recruited 99 Specialist
Officers (88 Agricultural officers, 5 Official language
officers, 5 Security officers and one MBA with Finance
as Specialisation), apart from 147 Probationary officers.

In a Clerical recruitment initiative for Tamil Nadu, North
Eastern States and Andaman and Nicobar, 199
Candidates were selected. Clerical recruitment for which
interview process is completed will result in induction of
additional 200 Clerks in 18 different States. Special
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Recruitment Drive for Scheduled Tribe backlog
vacancies in clerical cadre is under process for filling
up of 310 vacancies.

Keeping in view Business Development and Growth
and also Retirement in immediate future, it is planned to
recruit 430 Specialist officers (Marketing, officers,
Chartered Financial Analysts, Agriculture officers, Law
officers, Chartered Accountants etc.,) and 500
Probationary officers (400 officers in JMG Scale | and
100 in MMG Scale II).

Training

In line with the mission of the Bank to emerge as the most
competitive bank in the industry, training was imparted on
contemporary issues of banking apart from basic areas
through the internal and external mode. The focus
continued to be on Credit Appraisal/ Credit Monitoring &
Supervision, NPA Management & Recovery in addition to
Risk Management Techniques and Computer awareness.
Apart from the above, training was also given in areas of
Foreign Exchange, Priority Credit, KYC/ AML, BCSBI, Asset
Liability Management, Credit Marketing, SME /Micro
Finance, IT Products, inspection etc.

In-company programmes at reputed institutes at Staff
Training College were organised. The Programme on
Bourses was conducted by an external institute to 30
select officers. Programme on SWIFT operations was
organised at Staff College wherein 95 officers from AD
Branches were trained.

Sessions on Compliance Policies and Official Language
implementation were also included in training
programmes to create awareness. Sessions on
preventive vigilance were included in all the training
programmes conducted at Staff Training College and
Staff Training Centres.

Training slots were allotted to different Central Office
Departments for organising ad-hoc programmes to
enable them to train key functionaries at Branches/
Regional Offices on new emerging areas.

Internal Training

The internal training system comprises of one Staff
College, nine Staff Training Centres and one Rural
Banking Training Centre. Internal training was imparted
to 12,169 staff comprising of 4,823 Officers, 6,368 Clerical
and 978 Sub-staff by conducting 778 programmes. Of
the total staff trained, 3,471 belonged to SC and 436
belonged to ST.

External Training and Overseas Training

The Bank deputed 82 Executives, 484 Officers for
training programmes conducted by reputed external
institutes. Apart from these 18 executives and 8 Officers
were deputed for training abroad.

Training for Staff of RRB’s

The Bank trained 526 staff members of Neelachal
Gramya Bank and Pandyan Grama Bank through 24
Training Programmes . Of the total staff trained, 86
belonged to SC and 18 belonged to ST.
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Visit of Parliamentary Committees
During 2007-08, the Bank acted as Nodal Agency for
the following Parliamentary Committees:

Parliamentary Committee on Government
Assurances (Lok Sabha) — June 8-9, 2007

2) Parliamentary Committee on Welfare of SC/ST
members — June 23-26, 2007

3) Parliamentary Committee on Finance — July 3-4,
2007

4) Parliamentary Committee on Estimates — July 8-10,
2007

5) Parliamentary Committee on Government
Assurances-October 14-16, 2007

6) Parliamentary Committee on Official Language -
October 27-29, 2007

7) Parliamentary Committee on Personnel, Public
Grievances, Law and Justice — November 13-14,
2007

8) Parliamentary Committee on Urban Development-
February 7-9, 2008

9) Visit of National Commission of Safai Karmachari -

March 12, 2008

Prospects

Growth of investments has been significant in the
economy and this formed the basis for impressive
economic growth in India recently. This trend is expected
to continue in 2008-09, but there are challenges. Record
price levels in oil and other commodities at the global
level pose problems for inflation management
domestically. The RBI accords top priority to keeping
inflation under control . This has implications for interest
rates and reserve requirements prescribed by the RBI.
Banking sector is likely to witness controlled expansion
of credit and credit deployment in sectors such as
Agriculture and SME may be substantial along with
industry.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR 2007-08

A. MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

1. BANK’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF
GOVERNANCE:

Corporate Governance is about commitment to
values and ethical business conduct. It gives a
broad insight into the management of the Bank
including its corporate and other structures, its
culture, policies and the manner in which it deals
with various stakeholders. The timely and accurate
disclosure of information regarding the financial
situation, performance, ownership and governance
of the Bank is an important part of corporate
governance. This improves public understanding
of the structure, activities and policies of the Bank.
Consequently the Bank is able to attract investors
and enhance the trust and wealth of the
stakeholders besides retaining their confidence.

We believe that sound corporate governance is
critical to enhance and retain investor confidence.
We always seek to emulate the best practices in
international corporate governance and to attain
our performance standards with integrity. Our
Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities in the
widest sense of the term. It is also our endeavor to
enhance long-term shareholder value and respect
minority rights in all our business decisions.

Our Corporate Governance policies are based on
the following principles:

00 Satisfy the spirit of the law and not just in the
letter

0 Be transparent and maintain a high degree of
disclosures levels.

0 Communicate externally in a truthful manner
about how the bank is run internally

O Comply with laws of all the countries in which
the Bank operates

0O Realise that management is only the trustee
and custodian of the public funds and not the
owner

The Bank’s existing corporate vision: to BE THE
BEST among the BEST performing BANKS in the
BANKING INDUSTRY. The Bank will continue to
focus its resources, strengths and strategies to
achieve this vision.
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2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

a. Composition:

The business of the Bank is vested with the Board
of Directors. The CMD and EDs function under the
superintendence, direction and control of the Board.
The strength as on 31.03.2008 is thirteen directors
comprising three whole time Directors and ten non-
executive Directors, which includes three directors
elected by the shareholders to duly represent their
interest.

b. Particulars of directors who held office during
the financial year 2007-2008:

S| Name of the Director Designation  Nature of Date of Retirement/
No Directorship  Appointment demission of
office during
the year
01 Shri T S Narayanasami  Chairman &  Executive/ 09.06.2005 04.06.2007
Managing Whole Time demitted
Director office
02 Shri S ABhat Chairman &  Executve/  04.06.2007 —
Managing Whole Time
Director
03 ShriA.V. Dugade Executive Executive/  01.05.2006 31.03.2008
Director Whole Time retrementon
superannuation
04 Shri G Narayanan Executive Executve/ 07112007 —
Director Whole Time
05 Shri. Madhusudan Prasad Govt. Nominee Official - 24.01.2005 19.08.2007 -
Director Non Executive demitted office
06 Dr. Shashank Saksena Govt. Nominee Official - 20.08.2007 —
Director Non Executive
07 Smt. ChitraChandramouliswaran RBI Nominee ~ Non Executive 27.02.2007 —
Director
08 ShriS. Srinivasan Workmen Non Executive 25.02.2003 19.04.2007 -
Employee demitted office
Director
09 ShriN Sridaran Workmen Non Executive 20.04.2007 —
Employee
Director
10 ShriJ D Sharma OficerEmployee ~ Non Executive 09.03.2006 —
Director
11 ShriM. Ravindra Vikram  Chartered Non Executive 11.10.2006 —
Accountant
Director / Part-time
Non-Official
12 Shri Sooraj Khatri Director/ Non Executive 09.12.2005 —
Part-time
Non - Official
13 Shri M.N. Kandaswamy  Director Non Executive/ 07.02.2006 —
Part-time
Non - Official
14 ShriAK. Bhargava Shareholder ~ Non Executive 08.12.2005 —
Director
15 Dr. Chiranjib Sen Shareholder ~ Non Executive 08.12.2005 —
Director
16 ShriM.N. Venkatesan Shareholder ~ Non Executive 08.12.2005 —
Director

3% & FRYS F WwRd sy § @ e |

Profile of Directors of the Bank is enclosed as an Annexure.
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It is declared that none of the directors are related
to each other or related to any of the employees of
the Bank.

The Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for
Directors and all the General Managers including
the Field General Managers and a declaration has
been obtained from the CMD confirming their
compliance with the Code of Conduct and is
attached to this report.

Shri K Sundar Rajan, Deputy General Manager, a
qualified Company Secretary, attached to Board
Services Department, is also the Secretary to the
Board, in accordance with the recommendations
of the Dr. Ganguly Committee.

c. Meetings of the Board:

The date and place of the meeting as well as the
agenda papers are advised to all Directors well in
advance. The Directors have access to all additional
information on the agenda. Executives of the Bank
are also invited to attend the Board meetings to
provide necessary clarifications. During the year
under review, the meetings of the Board were held
12 times as against the requirement of holding
meetings at least once a quarter with a minimum
of six times a year.

o During the financial year 2007-08, the Board
meetings were held 12 times on the following
dates and places :

SL NO DATE OF MEETING  PLACE HELD
01 23.04.2007 Chennai
02 29.05.2007 Chennai
03 30.06.2007 Delhi
04 27.07.2007 Chennai
05 25.08.2007 Chennai
06 18.09.2007 Pune
07 29.10.2007 Mumbai
08 01.12.2007 Goa
09 02.01.2008 Chennai
10 30.01.2008 Chennai
11 23.02.2008 Kumarakom
12 29.03.2008 Mumbai

« All the meetings were conducted with proper
quorum and without any adjournments.

o Attendance of the directors at the above Board
meetings and last AGM held on 12.06.2007 are
furnished below:




%.9.f2vel & AW g eft Tt TSt SI. Name of Director Number of Attendance in
TWaeH  Hsufef No. Board Meetings  the last AGM
@ gem attended
L. ot & A 02/02 ggﬁqﬁgg 01 Shri T.S. Narayanasami, CMD  02/02 Demitted office
o fe on 04.06.2007
2. dmmuwe, wavf 10 /10 a 02 Shri S.A. Bhat, CMD 10/10 Yes
3. dudam /12 & 03  Shri A.V. Dugade 12/12 Yes
04  Shri G. Narayanan 04/05 Appointed as ED
4. st st awrEeE 04/05 TS i e & after date of AGM
A FIAUAD
v e i 05  Shri Madhusudan Prasad 03/04 No
Eeen) 06  Dr. Shashank Saksena 07/08 Appointed after
oft eEs Foe 03/04 & date of AGM
o weiE A 07/08 i & A 07  Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran 1112 No
% ae faga 08  Shri N. Sridaran 12/12 Yes
7. shtudht femn SeHtehvae 11/12 el 09 Shri J.D. Sharma 12/12 Yes
8 off w e 12/12 at 10  Shri M. Ravindra Vikram 10/12 No
0 sty 12/12 & 11 Shri Sooraj Khatri 12/12 Yes
10 s o &g fosem 1012 e 12 Shri M.N. Kandaswamy 12/12 Yes
11 #f g =t 12/12 & 13 Shri AK. Bhargava 12/12 Yes
1 o T e /12 o 14 Dr. Chiranjib Sen 08/12 No
13 oft w3 st 12/12 a 15 Shri M.N. Venkatesan 11/12 Yes
14 =f fersfiada 08/12 EC) d. Number of other Boards or Board committees
15 ft w1 T T 11/12 & in which the Director is a member/
S — a PPSIEP. Chairperson:
5 e Tch AW o7 3reer K3 Name of the Director Number of other Number of
companies (excluding Committees
RS &1 99 3= a5 ' gt 3% g private companies) (other than I0B)
(frsft duforedi 9 Biea) i 3 gee in which he / she in which
o o geeg / oreer € (3118 301 <ft &1 Big) is @ member/ Chairperson  a member
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e. Membership in Committees:

None of the directors on the Board is a member in
more than 10 committees or acts as a Chairman of
more than five committees across all companies
in which he is a director. (For the purpose of
reckoning the limit in terms of clause 49(1)(C) of
the listing agreement, the chairmanship/
membership of the Audit Committee and the
Shareholders’ Grievance Committee alone have
been considered).

3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

In order to facilitate the decision-making process,
Board has constituted the following committees and
delegated specific powers to them. The minutes of
each meeting are subsequently placed before the
next meeting of the committee for confirmation and
the minutes thus approved, are placed before the
Board Meeting for their information.
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3.1 Management Committee of the Board
(MCB):

MCB is constituted as per the provisions of the
Nationalized Banks (Management and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1970. The
functions and duties of the MCB are as under:

a. Sanctioning of credit proposals (funded and
non funded)

b. Loan and Interest Compromise / Write off
proposals

c. Proposals for approval of capital and revenue
expenditure

d. Proposals relating to acquisition and hiring of
premises, including deviation from norms for
acquisition and hiring of premises.

e. Filing of suits / appeals, defending them etc.

f. Investments in Government and other
approved securities, shares and debentures of
companies, including underwriting.

g. Donations

h. Any other matter referred to the Management

Committee by the Board.

Items (a) to (g) will be in respect of proposals
beyond the discretionary powers of CMD.

The committee met 18 times during the year. All
the meetings were conducted with proper quorum
and without any adjournments.

The Members who held office during the period
01-04-2007 to 31-03-2008 and the details of number
of meetings attended during their tenure by each
committee member are as under:

Sl. Name of Director Position ~ Tenure of membership  Number of
No. From To Meetings
attended
1. Shri TS. Narayanasami, CMD ~ Chairman ~ 09.06.2005 04.06.2007  2/2
2. Shri S.A. Bhat, CMD Chairman ~ 04.06.2007 16/16
3. Shri AV. Dugade Member ~ 01.05.2006 31.03.2008 17/18
4, Shri G. Narayanan Member ~ 07.11.2007 9/10
5. Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran  Member  12.07.2007 14/15
6. Shri M. Ravindra Vikram Member ~ 11.10.2006 16/18
7. Shri N. Sridaran Member  08.12.2007 8/8
8. Shri J.D. Sharma Member ~ 08.06.2007 07.12.2007  8/8
9. Shri Sooraj Khatri Member ~ 01.06.2007 30.11.2007  7/7
10. Shri MN. Kandaswamy Member ~ 08.12.2006 07.06.2007  2/3
22.03.2008
11. Shri AK. Bhargava Member ~ 22.09.2007 21.03.2008  11/11
12. Dr. Chiranjib Sen Member 01122006 31.05.2007 7/11
01.12.2007
13 Shri M.N. Venkatesan Member ~ 22.03.2007 21.09.2007  5/6




3.2 WA @t A udten |itfa

Hed # oar e g ardta fgd 36 % srRe &

FER fRYS Fead g1 fed &t T 21 Wi § uim

d feeh, & T e Fevs e 4 0% et

AWHR | HSelehl oiEn qdern Giufd & &d o shasq

TR §:

O ded @ o wien 9iufq & &% & gqg @ e
fERaTehelTy & UiETe $ et HT 7 S fReney
1 8| GHY o ey R § A o AR
frrdieqoT & i T 1 HIeH, ToTeT (R 3 ufEre
HTAT AT S q91 qAT {5 dsh o (&0 &
gifafer/amed AWThe F1 ST FET WA 21

O 3fiafe o 9hen & ga9 § Tdist i o9 4 gHar
iafte fRisoy/aarian wf & Agade 9 sEa!
OISR AT GATATHRAT FT THET BT 3 IR
T e SR A€t a3 wut eSS
Ymaret weft srarst @ ween o FE R |

0 FEed &3 & Sued sifvea 9 ot anfifs
R’ gre BT @ 3 ST gefter

O I8 gfufy, gifafess owar wien &t o qon & go
aE-wite 9 (TAUwUsR) § 33 T g+t 7
TR A a7 T F § T anff/ared afife
ol qar Rt &t 3ifom &9 27 4 98d "l dar
et & Ty foar famet & |

O ardta R o 1 fdteor faref § 33 T guf
/STl F FHIE TE A S|

Tg Wittty Frafafiad ot ot oft e 3t &

O 31K - YRdT GHeH @

O 3f<R-d ad1 At @l | oot @iy ¥ rmfm
dfea gfafsear

0 fafee wmered § afedl & Qo § a@an & 96eH

0 eEefedl T8 srfady e & o a3t 5q@
&

i THEY § gefug aRdy arfvfeas de B wRda

fesTdl 1 R wferfe weS arE Wy # WAt & FIER

S e T % R & SR qed @ -

T fafe i fefefad Tl F 1R @Y Ty

3.2 Audit Committee of the Board (ACB):

The Audit Committee of the Board has been
constituted by the Board of Directors as per
instructions of the Reserve Bank of India and
consists of five members comprising of ED,
Government director, RBI director and two non-
official directors of which one is a Chartered
Accountant. The delegated functions and duties of
the ACB are as under:

O To provide direction as also oversee the
operation of the total audit function in the Bank.
Total audit function will imply the organization,
operationalisation and quality control of the
internal audit and inspection within the Bank and
follow up on the statutory / external audit of the
Bank and inspections of RBI.

O Toreview the internal inspection / audit function
in the Bank - the system, its quality and
effectiveness in terms of follow-up-and also the
inspection reports of specialized and extra large
branches and all branches with unsatisfactory
ratings

0 To obtain and review half — yearly reports from
the Compliance Officers of the functional areas

O To review and follow up on the report of the
statutory audits, and all the issues raised in the
Long Form Audit Report (LFAR) and interact
with the external auditors before the finalization
of the annual / quarterly financial statements
and reports.

O Toreview and follow up all the issues / concerns
raised in the Inspection reports of RBI.

This committee specially focuses on the follow-up
of:

O Inter — Branch Adjustment Accounts

O Unreconciled long outstanding entries in Inter
— Bank Accounts and Nostro Accounts

O Arrears in balancing of books at various
branches

0 Frauds and all other major areas of house —
keeping,

The following additional role functions/powers have
been entrusted to ACB in terms of SEBI Committee
on Corporate Governance guidelines issued by RBI
to Indian Commercial Banks listed on stock
exchanges:
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. To investigate any activity within its terms of
reference.

. To seek information from any employee.

. To obtain outside legal or other professional
advice.

. Tosecure attendance of outsiders with relevant
expertise, if it considers necessary.

The role of the Audit Committee shall also include
the following in addition to the existing role function:

. Overseeing of the company’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial
statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

« Reviewing with the Management the financial
statements with special emphasis on
accounting policies and practices, compliance
of accounting standards and other legal
requirements concerning the financial
statements.

« Reviewing with the Management, external and
internal auditors, the adequacy of internal
control systems.

. Reviewing the findings of any internal
investigations by the internal auditors into
matters where there is suspected fraud or
irregularity or a failure of internal control
systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board.

. Discussing with external auditors before the
commencement of audit the nature and scope
of audit as well as having post audit discussion
to ascertain any area of concern.

« Reviewing the company’s Financial and Risk
Management Policies.

GOl vide its Circular dated 18.02.2008 has advised
Public Sector Banks to include non-official
Chartered Accountant director nominated under
section 9(3)(g) of the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970/1980 in the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Audit Committee of our Bank was reconstituted
by the Board on 01.12.2007 by including
Shri M Ravindra Vikram, the non official director
nominated under Chartered Accountant category
under section 9(3)(g) of the Act as a member and
also as the Chairman of the Audit Committee with
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effect from 08.12.2007, in the place of Shri M N
Venkatesan, who completed his term of two years
in the Audit Committee on 07.12.2007.

The committee met 10 times during the year. All
the meetings were conducted with proper quorum
and without any adjournments.

The members who held office during the period
01.04.2007 to 31.03.2008 and the particulars of the
number of meetings attended by them during the
year are as under:

Sl. Name of Director Position  Tenure of membership  Number of
No. From To Meetings
attended
1. Shri M. Ravindra Vikram Chairman  08.12.2007 3/3
2. Shri M.N. Venkatesan Chairman &
Member ~ 08.12.2005 07122007  6/7
3. Shri AV. Dugade Member ~ 01.05.2006 31.03.2008  10/10
4, Shri G. Narayanan Member ~ 07.11.2007 34
5. Shri Madhusudan Prasad Member ~ 24.01.2005 19.08.2007  2/4
6. Dr. Shashank Saksena Member  20.08.2007 5/6
7. Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran  Member  27.02.2007 9/10
8. Shri AK. Bhargava Member ~ 08.12.2005 07.122007  7/7
9. Shri Sooraj Khatri Member ~ 08.12.2007 3/3

« 3.3 Risk Management Committee:

The Chairman of the committee is the CMD of the
Bank. The committee met 5 times during the period
01.04.2007 to 31.03.2008. Number of Meetings
attended by each Committee Member during the
year:

Sl. Name of Director Tenure of membership Number of
No. From To Meetings
attended
1. Shri S. A. Bhat 04.06.2007 5/5
2. Shri A.V. Dugade 01.05.2006 31.03.2008 5/5
3. Shri G. Narayanan 01.12.2007 1/2
4. Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran ~ 27.02.2007 4/5
5. Shri M. N. Venkatesan 08.12.2005 5/5

3.4 Committee For Monitoring Large Value
Frauds:

The Chairman of the committee is the CMD of the
Bank. The committee met two times during the
period 01.04.2007 to 31.03.2008. Number of
meetings attended by each member of the
committee during the year:
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Sl Name of Director Tenure of membership  Number of
No. From To Meetings
attended
1. Shri S. A . Bhat 04.06.2007 2/2
2. Shri A.V. Dugade 01.05.2006 31.03.2008 2/2
3. Shri G. Narayanan 23.02.2008 1/1
4. Shri Madhusudan Prasad 24.01.2005 19.08.2007  0/1
5. Dr. Shashank Saksena 20.08.2007 0/1
6. Shri AK. Bhargava 24.02.2006 2/2
7. Shri M.N. Venkatesan 08.12.2005 01.01.2008  1/1
8. Shri M. Ravindra Vikram 02.01.2008 1/1

¢ 3.5 Customer Service Committee:

The Chairman of the committee is the CMD of the
Bank. The committee met three times during the
period 01.04.2007 to 31.03.2008. Number of
meetings attended by each member of the
committee during the year:

Sl. Name of Director Tenure of membership ~ Number of
No. From To Meetings
attended
1. Shri S.A. Bhat 04.06.2007 3/3
2. Shri A.V. Dugade 01.05.2006 31.03.2008  3/3
3. Shri G. Narayanan 02.01.2008 1/1
4. Shri Madhusudan Prasad 24.01.2005 19.08.2007  0/1
5. Dr. Shashank Saksena 20.08.2007 1/2
6. Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran ~ 27.02.2007 2/3
7. ShriN. Sridaran 20.04.2007 3/3
8. Shri J.D. Sharma 09.03.2006 3/3
9. Shri M.N. Venkatesan 08.12.2005 3/3

3.6 Committee For Review Of Disciplinary
Cases:

The Chairman of the committee is the CMD of the
Bank. The committee met three times during the
period 01.04.2007 to 31.03.2008. Number of
meetings attended by each member of the
committee during the year:

Sl Name of Director Tenure of membership  Number of
No. From To Meetings
attended
1. Shri S. A. Bhat 04.06.2007 3/3
2. Shri A.V. Dugade 01.05.2006 31.03.2008 3/3
3. Shri G. Narayanan 01.12.2007 1/2
4. Shri Madhusudan Prasad 24.01.2005 19.08.2007 0/1
5. Shri Shashank Saksena 20.08.2007 2/2
6. Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran 27.02.2007 3/3
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Correspondent Accounts:

The Chairman of the committee is the CMD of the
Bank. The committee met three times during the
period 01.04.2007 to 31.03.2008. Number of
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¢ 3.8 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

Remuneration (excluding performance linked
incentive) payable to the whole time directors is
decided by the Central Government. The Bank
does not pay any remuneration to other directors
except sitting fees as per directives of Central
Government.

A Remuneration Committee, a Sub-Committee of
the Board of Directors, has been constituted for
evaluating the performance in terms of government
guidelines and to recommend payment of
performance-linked incentives to the whole time
directors of the Bank, in terms of Government of
India, Ministry of Finance (Banking Division) letter
F. No. 20/ 1 /2005 - BO-I dated 09.03.2007.

The members of the Committee are :-

Shri M N Venkatesan — Chairman
Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran
Dr. Shashank Saksena
Shri M Ravindra Vikram

The Committee met once on 23.04.2007 and all
members of the Committee have attended the
meeting.

¢« 3.9NOMINATION COMMITTEE :

RBI, vide circular ref: DBOD. No. BC. No.47 /
29.39.001 / 2007-08 dated 01.11.2007, pursuant
to the amendment in Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970 effective 16.10.2006, has issued necessary
guidelines for determining the authority, manner/
procedure and criteria for deciding the ‘Fit and
Proper’ status etc., while appointing the Directors.

Ao np
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RBI has directed that the “Fit and Proper” criteria,
as of now, be made applicable to the elected
directors (Shareholder directors) — both present
and future.

Accordingly the Bank’s Board has constituted a sub-
Committee, titled “Nomination Committee” on
23.02.2008 with the following Directors as members:

1. Smt Chitra Chandramouliswaran - Chairperson
2. Dr. Shashank Saksena

3. Shri M. Ravindra Vikram

4. Shri M.N. Kandaswamy

Indian Banks’ Association and the Bank had sought
certain clarifications on the operationalisation of the
guidelines from the Reserve Bank of India for which
reply is awaited. Hence the Committee has not
met during the period under review.

4. SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMITTEES:
a. Shareholders Grievance Committee:

The Shareholders Grievance Committee,
constituted in April 2001, was reconstituted by the
Board on 07.06.2003, 11.09.2004, 27.12.2005 and
23.04.2007.

At present, the Chairman of the Committee is Shri
M N Venkatesan and the other members are two
directors nominated by the Board. The committee
met 3 times during the period 01.04.2007 to
31.03.2008. All the meetings were conducted with
proper quorum and without any adjournments. The
number of meetings attended by each committee
member during the year is as follows:

Sl Name of Director Tenure of membership  Number of
No. From To Meetings
attended
1 Shri M. N. Venkatesan 08.12.2005 3/3
2. Shri A.V. Dugade 01.05.2006 31.03.2008 3/3
3 Dr. Chiranjib Sen 23.04.2007 33

The Shareholders’ Grievance Committee appointed
a Practicing Company Secretary to undertake the
Secretarial Audit in the office of the Registrar, at
periodical intervals to verify the methodology
followed by them involving Shareholders Grievances
& Redressal system etc. The committee considers his
quarterly reports at every meeting.

b. Share Transfer Committee:

Share Transfer Committee consists of the Chairman
and Managing Director or in his absence the
Executive Director, one shareholder Director and
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one Director nominated by the Board. The
committee deals with all matters connected with
share transfers, transmission, issue of duplicate
share certificates, transposition, demat / remat etc.
The committee met 25 times during the year and
all the meetings were conducted with proper
quorum and without any adjournments.

The number of meetings attended by each

wE I N ﬁm:; m% committee member during the year is as under:

1 sud.gme 01.05.2006  31.03.2008 25/25 Sl. Name of Director Tenure of membership ~ Number of
No. From To Meetings

i A CRCC A 08.12.2005 24/25 attended
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The Share Transfer Committee appointed a
Practicing Company Secretary to undertake the
Secretarial Audit in the office of the Registrar, to
verify the methodology followed by them involving
share transfer, transmission, consolidation, split,
issue of duplicate certificates etc., His assignment
commenced on 01 01 2005 and his fortnightly
reports are considered at every meeting of the
Committee. No request for transfer is pending for
more than one month.

c. Compliance Officer :

In terms of clause 47 of the listing agreement, w.e.f.
30.08.2007, Shri K Sundar Rajan, Deputy General
Manager and Company Secretary is the
Compliance Officer for the purpose of complying
with the various provisions of SEBI, Stock
Exchanges etc.

d. Shareholders Complaints :

Number of complaints received, resolved and
pending during the year:

SL NATURE OF COMPLAINT PENDING RECEIVED REDRESSED  PENDING
No. AS ON AS ON
01.04.2007 31.03.2008

01 Non receipt of refund
order and Share certificates Nil 74 74 Nil

02 Non receipt of Dividend Nil 1072 1072 Nil
03 Complaints to SEBI / Stock

Exchanges and Consumer
Redressal forum / Court 03 15 16 02

04 Miscellaneous (complaints
reg. change of address,
bank mandate,
demat requests etc.) Nil 167 167 Nil

Total 03 1328 1329 02
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e. In terms of clause 47(f) of the listing agreement
we have advised the shareholders that an exclusive
e-mail ID - investorcomp@iobnet.co.in has been
allotted and our Deputy General Manager and
Company Secretary Shri K Sundar Rajan, is also
the Compliance Officer for the purpose of
registering and redressal of complaints by
investors. We have displayed this email ID and other
relevant details prominently on our website and the
same is incorporated in the various materials /
pamphlets / advertisement campaigns initiated by us.

5. Other Committees:

There are various other committees such as Asset
Liability Management Committee, Investment
Review Committee, Top Management Committee
comprising CMD, ED and GMs along with
Department executives, which have been
constituted for the day to day functioning, review
and monitoring of various aspects of business.

6. GENERAL BODY MEETING:

a. Location and time where last three General
Body Meetings were held:

Sl.  Nature of Date, Day and Venue
No. Meeting time of Meeting

01 5"AGM  17.06.2005 Rani Seethai Hall
Friday 603, Anna Salai,
10.15 A.M. Chennai — 600 006

02 6"AGM 16.06.2006 Rani Seethai Hall
Friday 603, Anna Salai,
10.15 A.M. Chennai — 600 006

03 7"AGM  12.06.2007 Narada Gana Sabha
Tuesday 314 TTK Road,
10.00 A.M. Chennai 600 018

b. No special resolutions were put through in the
last three AGMs

c. There was no postal ballot exercise.

d. Location and time where Extra Ordinary General
Body Meetings were held:
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Sl.  Nature of Date, Day and Venue
No. Meeting time of Meeting

01 1 EGM 07.12.2002

Rani Seethai Hall

Saturday 603, Anna Salai,

11.00 A.M. Chennai — 600 006
02 2YEGM 30.11.2005 Rani Seethai Hall

Wednesday 603, Anna Salai,

11.00 AM Chennai — 600 006
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. DISCLOSURES:

There are no significant related party
transactions of the Bank with its subsidiaries,
directors, management or their relatives etc.
that would have potential conflict with the
interests of the Bank at large.

No penalties were imposed or strictures passed
on us by Stock Exchanges/SEBI /any statutory
authority on any matter related to capital
markets during the last three years ended
31.03.2008, except in one instance where the
Bank has paid a penalty of Rupees fifteen lakhs
imposed by RBI during 2005-06 for irregularities
in IPO financing in two of our branches.

Presently the Bank does not have a Whistle
Blower policy. However no persons have been
denied access to the Audit Committee.

The Bank has complied with all the mandatory
requirements to the extent provided for in the
statutes/guidelines/directives issued from time
to time by the RBI/Government of India to the
nationalized banks.

The Non Mandatory requirements have been
adopted as stated in this report against the
relevant items.

The Certificate of CEO and CFO under clause
49 of the listing agreement has been submitted
to the Board of Directors of the Bank and a copy
is attached to this report.

In terms of the clause 49 of the listing
agreement, a certificate has been obtained from
the Statutory Central Auditors on corporate
governance in the Bank for the year 2007-08
and the same is annexed to this report.

. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

The quarterly un-audited financial results of the
Bank are approved by the Board of Directors
and the same are submitted within the
stipulated period to all the stock exchanges
where the Bank’s shares are listed. The Bank
has been sending half yearly results to all the
shareholders.

The quarterly financial results are published in
a national daily and a regional vernacular daily
in terms of Clause 41 of the listing agreement.
The details and dates of publication are as
under:




T femrdt S A asftar &fren YR Quarter English Regional Date of
=7 fafr ended Daily Daily publication
31.03.2007 Iffg-fosmuarg  fRAwer(@ma) 24 04 2007 31.03.2007 The Hindu - Dinamalar (Tamil) 24.04.2007
30.06.2007  fasAs e femdd (afwrer ) 28 07 2007 20.06.2007 EUS!"GSS Ié't"ed ¢ Daily Thanthi(Tami)  26.07.2007
. .Uo. usiness otandar ally nantni( fami U/
0092007 Afe RS (W) 30102007 30.09.2007 The Hindu - Dinakaran(Tami) ~ 30.10.2007
31122007  fosAswveg femdet (after ) 31 01 2008 Business Line

. o aftom d% % deEEe www.iob.com # «f
yafvfa fpu T &)

9. WA= IERURe oIt
. TSTH: aitE, §9E AN e

fesieh 14 06 2008
T g8 11.00 5t
EIEE ARG T 9491
(WETE JHHS )
314 et T, =9 600 018
T, facta ad

1 a19d 2007 | 31 919 2008

T, wE O A @ aRE
07-05-2008 ¥ 13-05-2008(31 & SMfHer &) amsier
% wetsw 3q T Fui F6 % R

q.  ATHIE I ariE
24-06-2008 <t AT IHk &1 AITA ek ITELEITERT
G ATHTIT Shl SIHUT & |

T. I ATHII
16 10 2006 & gomeft sfd shu-is (SUshal o
SR q9T A7) T fata Fremst & HAA
(Faite) saffEm 2006 § ST Sus (STHAE &
SIMerguT 9T i) stfafaw 1970 | 10 () A
T T U Sig & T @ e fEfafad & e
PIELICE %z

o T S AR G 30 A & AR 7 i $ s, A
foreft STERUR T TS T TehelahoT / ST e fohar
g, THt e S A% & el @ | et €, s9
“ s e & T o7 o7 st & Sfed oy T
AE ST @ A AR R S

. 3TSE oT9iY WA i 3fAld wE off WE S 39 UHR
& AT S ARG G HIG a9 i STa F [T 37Ed
77 3raret gt B, 39 Shuier stfefEm 1956 o 205(1)
() & dea weya fAaers o qun et Ay i
3aRd 3 21

31.12.2007 Business Standard  Daily Thanthi(Tamil)  31.01.2008

c. The quarterly results are also being displayed
on the Bank’s web-site www.iob.com.

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:
a. AGM: Date, Time and Venue:

Date 14.06.2008
Time 11.00 A.M.
Venue Narada Gana Sabha

(Sathguru Gnanananda Hall)
314, T T K Road, Chennai — 600 018

b. Financial Year:
015t April 2007 to 315t March 2008

c. Date of Book Closure:
07.05.2008 to 13.05.2008(Both days inclusive)
for determining eligibility of shareholders for the
purpose of dividend.

d. Dividend Payment Date:

On or after 24.06.2008 subject to declaration of
dividend by shareholders.

e. Unpaid Dividend:

The Banking Companies (Acquisition and
Transfer of Undertakings) and Financial
Institutions Laws (Amendment)Act, 2006 which
has come into force on 16.10.2006, has inserted a
new section 10(B) in the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act,
1970 which provides as under:

. Within 7 days from the expiry of 30 days from
the date of declaration, if any shareholder has
not encashed /claimed the dividend, such
amounts lying in the bank current account, have
to be transferred to a separate account styled
“Unpaid Dividend Account of IOB for the year

« Any money transferred to the Unpaid Dividend
account which remains unpaid or unclaimed for
a period of seven years from the date of such
transfer, shall be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund established
under Sec 205(1) (C) of the Companies Act 1956.




TEAER fi@a auf at 2000-01 § 2005-2006 & 37w
A RS 2006 § Heifed ot & g sgast &%
3T AT W Sl AR F T TS S 37 T THR
i AT LI T ST T TTeA i 319 deh ST A1 3Tefad
&, FrereTen TRreq e eeror fafey & afafia s faan s

FTTIT TS ATHIIT @
i AT & & arE
2000-01 08.12.2006
2001-02 05.12.2006
2002-03 05.12.2006
2003-04(3T) 04.12.2006
2003-04(T) 04.12.2006
2004-05(3T%) 09.12.2006
2004-05(T%) 05.12.2006
2005-06 04.12.2006
2006-07 13.07.2007

T. deh oh VIR HATARET ©ie Tamas §
gelt g feRg T

Tk TGS ol AT Tk &S

TS =i TS EREICl
LEERCIEACREE] 532388

YA Rl T amganst g wE e sftet
T TS a1 af 2007-08 & fore Yeftas A 2q anffss
o fuffid 37 aril & ofet fean man 2

<, SR el oh kS

ary TIA Lioh TS dd Wi TR
bl SH(F) FA(®) SH(F) ()
ardet 2007 120.90 95.10 120.40 93.10
g 2007 12590 105.55 126.00 105.30

S 2007 119.40  99.00 122.00 100.00
SaE 2007 140.65 116.40  140.35 115.00
3T 2007 - 131.75 107.20  131.85 107.50
w2007 150.70 122.00  150.50 122.20
SRR 2007  148.20 111.00  148.55 118.05

Jaw 2007 165.00 127.20 166.00 132.00
fegm® 2007 199.90 163.00  199.00 164.00
SHEdt 2008 227.45 133.00  228.90 133.20
wEd 2008 188.60 145.25  190.00 158.00
= 2008 165.00 118.00 165.50 118.05

2007-08 & S Geifdd Wi Trgas | A o A
I=a / 9 1t & 3ffwe A1 3l § RU T g |

Accordingly, the unpaid dividend of previous years
ie. 2000-2001 to 2005-2006 has been transferred to
Unpaid Dividend Account/s of IOB for the relevant
years in December 2006 as follows and hence such
monies which remain unpaid or unclaimed for a
period of seven years from the date of such transfer
shall be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund :

Dividend for Date of Transfer to
Unpaid Dividend A/c
2000-01 08.12.2006
2001-02 05.12.2006
2002-03 05.12.2006
2003-04 (1) 04.12.2006
2003-04 (F) 04.12.2006
2004-05 (1) 09.12.2006
2004-05 (F) 05.12.2006
2005-06 04.12.2006
2006-07 13.07.2007

f. The Bank’s shares are listed on the following
stock exchanges:

Name of the Stock Exchange Stock Code

Madras Stock Exchange Ltd. IOB
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 532388

National Stock Exchange
of India Ltd.

IOB EQ AE BE BT

Annual listing fee for the year 2007-08 has been
paid to the stock exchanges within the prescribed
due dates.

g. Market price data:

Period -  National Stock Exchange Bombay Stock Exchange
Month High (Rs) Low (Rs) High (Rs) Low (Rs)

Apr 2007 120.90 95.10 120.40 93.10
May 2007 12590  1056.55 126.00  105.30
Jun 2007 119.40 99.00 122.00  100.00
Jul 2007 140.65 116.40 140.35 115.00
Aug 2007  131.75 107.20 131.85 107.50
Sep 2007  150.70  122.00 150.50  122.20
Oct 2007 14820  111.00 148.55 118.05
Nov 2007  165.00  127.20 166.00  132.00
Dec 2007  199.90  163.00 199.00  164.00
Jan 2008  227.45  133.00 22890  133.20
Feb 2008  188.60 145.25 190.00 158.00
Mar 2008  165.00 118.00 165.50 118.05

Figures in bold represent the high / low price of the
Bank’s shares during the year 2007-08 on the
respective Stock Exchanges.
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h. Equity performance in comparison to BSE

Sensex during 01 04 2007 to 31 03 2008
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i. Registrar & Transfer agent:

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
(Unit-IOB) Subramanian Building, | Floor
No.1 Club House Road
Chennai-600 002
Tel: 044-28460395; 28460084 Fax: 28460129
e-mail:cameo@cameoindia.com

j- Share Transfer System:

Our Bank has a Sub-Committee of the Board for
considering the requests received from
shareholders for transfer, transmission,
transposition, issuance of duplicate share
certificates, splitting, consolidation, remat, name
change etc. The Chairman and Managing Director
orin his absence the Executive Director is Chairman
of the Committee. The other members of the
committee are: a Shareholder Director (Shri.M.N.
Venkatesan) and a Director nominated by the Board
(Shri J D Sharma).

k. Distribution of shareholding as on 31.3.2008:

Sl.  Category No. of Shares % of share

No holding
PROMOTERS HOLDING

01  Government of India 333600000 61.23
Sub-Total 333600000 61.23
NON-PROMOTERS HOLDING

02 Institutional Investors
A Mutual funds and UTI 17544159 3.22
B Banks, Financial Institutions 464125 0.08
C Insurance Companies 18092329 3.32
D Foreign Institutional Investors 99623786 18.29
Sub-Total 135724399 24.91

03 OTHERS
A Private Corporate Bodies 5817450 1.07
B Individuals 65235649 11.98
C Others 4422502 0.81
Sub-total 75475601 13.86

GRAND TOTAL 544800000  100.00
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. Distribution schedule as on 31.3.2008:

IR FRRETE TWEENF  SwidEd  dEe No. of % to total no.Shareholding in ~ Share % to total
R g % sfra TS e Fad share of share terms of nominal Amount
wen Ve (i) % holders  holders  value of Rs.10/- (Face Value)
180484  %6.98 000 7® 339526350 6.3 180484  86.98 Upto 5000 339526350  6.23
19763 9.53 5001 & 10000 167147200  3.07 19763 953 5001-10000 167147200  3.07
4984 2.40 10001 & 20000 70119450  1.29 4984 240 10001 -20000 70119450  1.29
847 0.41 20001 30000 20993590  0.39 847 0.41 20001 -30000 20993590  0.39
439 021 30001 & 40000 15723130  0.29 439 0.21 30001 -40000 15723130  0.29
213 0.10 400018 50000 9951170  0.18 213 0.10 40001 - 50000 9951170  0.18
337 0.16 50001 & 100000 24776380  0.45 337 0.16 50001 - 100000 24776380  0.45
429 0.21 100001 & 31 4799762730  88.10 429 0.21 100001 and above 4799762730 88.10
207496 100.00 FA 544800000 100.00 207496  100.00 TOTAL 5448000000 100.00

3. 31.03.2008 T HeT farevit Irorermur (rf-arHt,
ot it &ff, ferawft weamma fHaveR) 18.96% or
SR Ak it el Taed it o 20% o i
T & AT R

A e 31 03 2007 der 31 03 2008 TR
9. TRARE FAdh VR AT Fo ged
g e
¥ % ¥ %
01 feReft were Favs
(TF 3% 375) 98253771 18.03 99623786  18.29
02 sndtdt 48000 0.01 50150 0.01
03 afrarh 3861625 0.70 3600091  0.66
kGl 10216339 1875 103274027 1896
€. 31 03 2008 T A & Uiel Haleel IEOLNE
EL I CIEE ) afTde  gAaww
¥ &g %
1 RS - A 333600000 613
PRt S 200113 421
3 TORRRTAE e 1881421 341
4  ORAESTETSmrm 1489317 265
5 AT SREIE RIS 83399 162
2. IO GHIU-UST SRl g feehvur

3% % T AfEd SR F oA | A v %
3BT % fore STiehal Bt 3 &9 & o Tt gfgfy
fevifred. fo1. (T Tg < we) st i fevifae dant

m. The total foreign shareholding (NRIs,
OCB,Flls) as at 31.03.2008 was 18.96% which
is within the stipulated level of 20% of the
total paid up capital of the Bank

S Category Ason31032007 Ason31032008
N Noofshares %To Noof shares %10
total total
capital capital

01 Foreign Institutional
Investors (Flls) 98253771 18.03 99623786 18.29
02 0CBs 48000 0.01 50150 0.01
03 NRIs 3861625 0.71 3600091 0.66
Total 102163396 18.75 103274027 18.96

n. Top five shareholders of the Bank as on
31.03.2008:

S Name of the Shareholders No of % of total
No shares held holding
01 HE The President of India -

The Government of India 333600000 61.23
02 TCI Cyprus Holding Limited 22962113  4.21
03 Morgan Stanley Mauritius

Company Limited 18581421  3.41
04 Life Insurance Corporation of India 14439317  2.65
05 Copthall Mauritius Investment Ltd. 8838509 1.62

o. Dematerialization of shares:

The shares of the Bank are under compulsory demat
trading. The Bank has joined as a member of the
depository services with National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
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TRed-fta foga, uRad= @ aritE 7 gleret
W TN G YA

d6 7 g LYY a1 HiZ IRad=17 forad

S T # F
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Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as an issuer
company for dematerialization of the Bank’s shares.
Shareholders can get their shares dematerialized
with either NSDL or CDSL. The depository services
have allotted the following ISIN code to the Bank:
INE565A01014.

As on 31.3.2008, out of 54.48 crore equity shares,
50.49 crore shares or 92.68% are held by the
shareholders in Demat form (of which Government
of India holds 33.36 crore shares aggregating to
61.23% - GOI's shareholding was dematerialized
in March 2008) and 3.99 crore shares or 7.32% are
in physical form.

p- Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any
convertible instruments, conversion date and
likely impact on equity:

The Bank has not issued any GDRs /ADRs /
Warrants or any convertible instruments.

q. The Bank has raised non-convertible bonds
in the nature of promissory notes from time
to time. The details of such bonds
outstanding as on 31.03.2008 are as follows:

El MG H FHR Ay FUA "= F
@ (g0 7) (vl ®) (%)  ahE

TER 1
v 31102002 17500 B 0745 30042009
y 01032004 20000 20 0600 01032014
\i 26072004 20000 120 0640 26072014
vii 08.01.2005 15000 3 0725 08042015
vii 16092005 20000 13 0740 16122015
K 09012006 25000 123 0770 09.04.2016
X 13032006 30000 120 0800 13032016
bl 26072006 50000 120 0910 26072016
Fomald 20032004 3600 87 0700 20062011
Seaerrll i T e
i 05092006 50000 @8 94 @05092016
ZrR 1 () HrREaatE
i 31.03.2006 0000 @3RG (930 @31.032016
i 18.05.2006 20000  @FEE 015 @I8052016
ii 30092006 8000  @IfmEE 0920  @30092016
kil 2991.00

@ 10 = % 3id § 7 ey U § (WAt R ae
% QAITAIEA % T4 | A AT fehed 1 T A& A S
W& @ U R H 50 sty qe T S |

Series Date of Size Tenor  Coupon Redemption
Allotment (Rs in crores) (In Months) (%) Date
Tier Il
v 31102002  175.00 78 0745  30.04.2009
v 01.03.2004  200.00 120 06.00  01.03.2014
vi 26.07.2004  200.00 120 0640  26.07.2014
Vi 08.01.2005  150.00 123 0725  08.04.2015
vii 16.09.2005  200.00 123 0740  16.12.2015
iX 09.01.2006  250.00 123 07.70  09.04.2016
X 13.03.2006  300.00 120 08.00  13.03.2016
Xi 26072006 50000 20 0910 2607.2016
BhoB ** 20032004 3600 & 0700 2006.2011
Call Option date

Upper Tier Il

i 05092006 50000 @80 924 @05002016

Tier | (Perpetual) Call Option date

i 31032006 20000 @Pepetual 0930  @31.032016

i 18052006 20000 @Pepetual 0915  @1805.2016

i 30092006 8000 @Pepetual 0920  @30.092016
TOTAL 2991.00

@Call option available at the end of 10 years (with
the prior approval of RBI). If the call option is not
exercised, the coupon rate will be stepped up by
50 bps.
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** Being Tier Il Bonds issued by Bharat Overseas
Bank Ltd.(Bhob), since taken over by I10B
consequent to merger of Bhob with 10B. The
present outstanding as on 31.03.2008, is after
setting off our investment of Rs. 4 cr in the said
issue.

r. Address for Correspondence:

Share transfers, dividend payment and all other
investor related activities are attended to and
processed at the office of M/s. Cameo Corporate
Services Ltd., Registrars & Share Transfer agents.
Shareholders may lodge the transfer deeds and
any other documents, grievances and complaints
at their address:

M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.
(Unit-IOB) Subramanian Building, | Floor
No.1 Club House Road, Chennai-600 002

Tel: 044-28460395; 28460084 Fax: 28460129

email:cameo@cameoindia.com

The Bank has an Investor Relations Cell at its
Central Office, to deal with the services and
complaints of the shareholders at the following
address:

Indian Overseas Bank
Investor Relations Cell
Central Office, 763, Anna Salai
Chennai-600 002
Tel: 044-28519491, 28415702
Fax : 044-28585675
email: investor@iobnet.co.in /
investorcomp@iobnet.co.in

B.NON MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

Non Mandatory
Requirements

The Board — Maintenance of  Since the Chairman and Managing
an office by a non executive Director in our Bank is an
chairman at the company’s Executive Chairman, this clause is
expense not applicable to us

Our Adoption

Remuneration Committee Remuneration payable to the
whole time directors is decided
by the Central Government and the
Bank does not pay any
remuneration to other directors
except sitting fees as per
guidelines of Central Govt. The
Board in its meeting held on
22.03.2007, has set up a
“Remuneration Committee” as per
details furnished hereinbefore
(refer para 3.8).
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Shareholders Rights All the shareholders are provided

with the Half Yearly results.

Audit Qualification Constant efforts are being made
to move towards a regime of

unqualified financial statements.

Training of Board Members  The Board members are imparted
training by nominating them for
training programmes at reputed
training institutes. Each director is
provided with a reference manual
detailing his or her roles and
responsibilities and matters of
importance.

The Bank does not have such
mechanism, as presently it is not
applicable to us.

Mechanism for evaluating non
executive Board Members

Whistle Blower Policy Presently the Bank does not have
a Whistle Blower policy. However
no persons have been denied

access to the Audit Committee.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

-

Chennai
28th April 2008

A BHAT)
Chairman and Managing Director
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ANNEXURE TO REPORT OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FOR THE YEAR 2007-08

DIRECTORS PROFILE

Name : Shri S. A. Bhat
Chairman and Managing Director

Age and Date of Birth : 57 years - 22.10.1950
Qualification : B.Sc (Hons.) CAIIB Part |
Date of Appointment : 04.06.2007
Date of expiry of the
Current term : 31.10.2010
Experience - Joined Bank of India as Probationary

Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth :
Qualification
Date of Appointment :

Date of expiry of the
Current term

Experience

Shareholding in I0B
Other Directorships

Officer in 1972. He took over as
Executive Director of UCO Bank on 2™
February 2006 and held this position till
his present assignment at I0B. He has
vast experience across the entire gamut
of banking in various capacities in
domestic and overseas operations. He
has made many contributions to the
Banking Industry, as a member of several
committees such as the Technical
Advisory Committee, Steering Group for
Basel Il, Committee on Credit Advisory
System for Exporters, and Working
Group for revision of ALM, all of which
were constituted by Reserve Bank of
India. He was also on the Indian Banks’
Association’s Committee for drawing
Road Map for implementation of Basel
II. During his tenure in Bank of India, he
was nominee director for STCI, IL & FS
and Indo Zambia Bank.

i\
: Nominee Director of I0B in Universal

Sompo General Insurance Co. Ltd.

: Shri A.V. Dugade

Executive Director
60 Years - 10.03.1948

- M Com., CAIIB (I), DCA

01 05 2006

: Retired on his superannuation on

31.03.2008

: A Professional Banker having an

aggregate experience of over 40 years.
He was the Executive Director of Bank
of Maharashtra from July 2003 to April
2006.

- NIL
-NIL
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Name

Age and Date of Birth :
Qualification
Date of Appointment :
Date of expiry of the
Current term
Experience

Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth :
Qualification
Date of Appointment :
Date of expiry of the
Current term
Experience
Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth :
Qualification
Date of Appointment :
Date of expiry of the
Current term
Experience

- Ni
*Ni

: Shri G. Narayanan

Executive Director
58 years - 31.10.1949

: B.Sc., CAlB

07.11.2007

:31.10.2009
. He joined the Bank of India in the year

1970. Before joining I0B he was the
Managing Director & Chief Executive
Officer of Securities Trading Corporation
of India Limited, Mumbai. Large part of
his career was in International Treasury
and Foreign Exchange related areas.
During his stint in Bank of India, he was
instrumental for initiation of derivative
business and for moving the entire
treasury operations to a fully automated
environment. He has been associated
with Bankers’ Training College of Reserve
Bank of India and Bank of India Training
College as guest lecturer on Treasury
related subjects.

: Dr. Shashank Saksena

GOl Nominee
45 years - 01.07.1962

- MA.(Eco), LL.B., Ph.D

20.08.2007

- Until further orders from Govt.

- Director BOA, Ministry of Finance, GOI.
*Ni
: Nominee Director of Government of India

in Industrial Investment Bank

: Smt. Chitra Chandramouliswaran

RBI Nominee
63 years - 26.07.1944

- M.Sc., CAlB,,

27.02.2007

: Until further orders from Govt.,
- Joined RBI in 1967 and has worked in

various capacities in IECD, DBOD and
Foreign Exchange (Exchange Control)
Departments and RBI's Central Office in
Mumbai.
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Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth :
Qualification
Date of Appointment :
Date of expiry of the
Current term

Experience

Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth :
Qualification
Date of Appointment :
Date of expiry of the
Current term

She retired as Chief General Manager of
Reserve Bank of India in 2004.

- Nil
- Nil

> Shri N. Sridaran

Workmen Director
57 years - 10.12.1950

- SSLC

20.04.2007
19.04.2010 and thereafter until his

- successor is appointed or till he ceases

to be a workmen employee of 10B,
whichever is earlier.

- Joined the Bank on 02.05.1972. Having

more than 35 years experience in 0B,
he is at present a special cadre assistant
in 10B.

- 100 shares
- Nil

: Shri J.D. Sharma

Officer Employee Director
51 years - 20.07.1956

- M Com., MBA, DIM, CAIIB, LLB

09.03.2006
08.03.2009 and thereafter until his

. successor is appointed or till he ceases

" to be a employee of I0B

Experience

Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth :
Qualification
Date of Appointment :
Date of expiry of the
Current term
Experience

- Joined the Bank on 22.07.1977. Possesses

more than 30 years experience. At present a
Senior Manager in I0B.

- 1600 shares
o Ni

: Shri M. Ravindra Vikram

Part Time Non Official Director
50 years - 18.05.1957

: B.Sc., FCA., LLB

11.10.2006

:10.10.2009
. Practising Chartered Accountant.

Partner of M.Anandam & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Hyderabad. He has
conducted Special and Investigation
audits. He has conducted compliance
studies for the RBI's Forex Reserves.
Spear headed the study group in charge
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Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth :
Qualification
Date of Appointment :
Date of expiry of the
Current term
Experience

Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth :
Qualification
Date of Appointment :
Date of expiry of the
Current term
Experience

Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

- Ni
- ASM Technologies Ltd.

of the Balance Sheet reformatting and
redesigning the Accounting Systems of
the Reserve Bank of India. He was a
Director of Indian Bank.

GTN Industries Ltd.

Zenotech Laboratories Ltd.

Glochem Industries Ltd.

Wings Infonet Limited

A Bond-Strands Pvt. Ltd.

Normak Fashions Pvt. Ltd.

Normak India Private Ltd.

Tazarica Beverages Private Ltd.

M. Anandam Consultancy Services
Private Limited

Associated Business Counseling
Services Private Limited.

: Shri Sooraj Khatri

Part Time Non Official
52 years - 06.08.1955

: B.Sc., LL.B, Dip in Labour Law

09.12.2005

- 08.12.2008
- Practising legal profession as an

Advocate in Rajasthan High Court. He
is also a journalist, Editor and Publisher.

- Nil
- Nil

: Shri M.N. Kandaswamy

Part Time Non Official
58 years - 11.07.1949

- MA(Pol & Pub Admn)

07.02.2006

: 06.02.2009
- Basically an agriculturist, he has over

three decades of experience. He was the
founder President of Coimbatore District
Grapes Cultivators association and also
an Ex Chairman of Land development
Bank of Thondamuthur.

- Nil
- Nil
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Name

Age and Date of Birth :
Qualification
Date of Appointment :
Date of expiry of the
Current term
Experience

Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth :

Qualification
Date of Appointment :
Date of expiry of the
Current term
Experience

Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

Name

Age and Date of Birth :
Qualification
Date of Appointment :
Date of expiry of the
Current term
Experience

Shareholding in 10B
Other Directorships

: Shri Ashok Kumar Bhargava

Shareholder Director
64 years - 10.05.1943

: B.Com, L L B., CAIIB

08.12.2005

: 07.12.2008
. Retired as GM of Punjab National Bank.

A professional banker with 40 years of
experience. He is at present a
Management and Financial Consultant.

: 500 shares
: SMS Power Generation Limited

Delhi Assam Roadways Corporation
Limited

: Dr. Chiranjib Sen

Shareholder Director
61 years - 29.09.1946

- M.A(Econ), Ph D

08.12.2005

:07.12.2008
. Professor of Economics in the Indian

Institute of Management, Bangalore and
a visiting Professor of about 13
universities in India and abroad.

- 150 shares
- Nil

- Shri M.N. Venkatesan

Shareholder Director
52 years - 03.10.1955

- B.Com, F.C.A.

08.12.2005

- 07.12.2008
- A Practicing Chartered Accountant for

the past three decades. Partner M R
Narain & Co. Chartered Accountants,
Chennai. Experience in conducting audit
of Public sector banks since 1984 as
statutory central auditors.

Associated with various seminars,
conferences of professional bodies like
SIRC,ICAL

- 1000 shares
- Focus Credit Management (India) Pvt

Ltd.
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21.04.2008

DECLARATION

This is to confirm that the Bank has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board Members
and Senior Management (ie. General Managers) of the Bank and the said code is posted on
the website of the Bank. The Board Members and senior Management have affirmed compliance
with the Code of Conduct.

For Indian Overseas Bank

My
(S.A.BHAT)

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

21.04.2008
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Financial Statements of the Bank for the 12 months
ended 31.03.2008-Clause 49-V of the Listing Agreement
with the Stock Exchanges - CEO/CFO Certification

In terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, we certify
that:

a. We have reviewed financial statements and the
cash flow statement for the year and to the best of

our knowledge and belief :

i. These statements do not contain any
materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be
misleading;

These statements together present a true and
fair view of the Bank’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards,
applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
no transactions entered into by the Bank during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of
the Bank’s Code of Conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and
maintaining internal controls for financial reporting
and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of
internal control systems of the Bank pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in
the design or operation of such internal controls, if
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have
taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit
Committee

i.  Significant changes in internal control over
financial reporting during the year;
Significant changes in accounting policies
during the year and the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements; and

Instances of significant fraud of which we have
become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having
a significant role in the Bank’s internal control
system over financial reporting.

(V. KRISHNASWAMY)
GENERAL MANAGER & CFO

(S.A. BHAT)
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR

L1
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Toi: 28.04.2008

AUDITORS CERTIFICATE
ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Shareholders of
Indian Overseas Bank
Chennai

We have examined the compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance by Indian Overseas Bank,
Chennai for the year ended on 31.03.2008, as stipulated
in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of Indian Overseas
Bank with stock exchange(s).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance
is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by Indian Overseas Bank for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance.
It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of Indian Overseas Bank.

On the basis of records and documents maintained by
the Bank, the information provided to us and according
to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Bank
has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing
Agreement.

We state that no investor grievance is pending for a
period exceeding one month against the Bank as per
the records maintained by the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent except two complaints pending before
District Consumer Redressal Forum at Rajkot and
Lucknow.

We further state that such compliance is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Bank nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

For S.K. Singhania & Co  For SRRK. Sharma Associates For R.S. Sipayya & Co
Chartered Accountants ~ Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

(RAJESH SINGHANIA)  (SRRK. SHARMA) (R.S. SIPAYYA)
Partner Partner Partner

M.No. 52722 M. No. 18088 M. No.17762

For Vaithisvaran & Co For Maharaj N.R. Suresh & Co For Om Agarwal & Co
Chartered Accountants ~ Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(R. VENKATESH) (N.R. SURESH) (0.P. AGARWAL)
Partner Partner Partner

M.No.203816 M.No. 21661 M.No.016603

Place: Chennai
Date: 28.04.2008




31.3.2008 =t TR & STTER go=-ux
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2008 (2000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)
Ercice 31.03.2008 T 31.03.2007 @
SCHEDULES 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
ERniy LIABILITIES
Ll Capital 01 544 80 00 544 80 00
Rt 3T rfaey Reserves and Surplus 02 4311 87 02 3445 56 51
ety Deposits 03 84325 58 29 68740 41 49
3Y Borrowings 04 6353 64 63 2896 22 75
< WH PIERIE Other Liabilities & Provisions 05 6323 83 98 6629 82 09
T TOTAL 101859 73 92 82256 82 84
st ASSETS
Gty RS o & F8f 7Hel  Cash & Balances with
3 A Reserve Bank of India 06 9124 23 28 4686 10 79
deh T ST AT W e Balances with Banks
3T T W ITed 99 and Money at Call and Short Notice 07 1217 08 84 4293 19 47
IEIGEIE] Investments 08 28474 70 84 23974 47 36
AUA Advances 09 60423 84 40 47060 28 60
feeR smfiaar Fixed Assets 10 558 57 75 510 65 72
3= At Other Assets 11 2061 28 81 1732 10 90
anT TOTAL 101859 73 92 82256 82 84
THISA <o Contingent Liabilities 12 31366 29 24 22397 67 83
Tugur & fo foa Bills for Collection 3126 99 51 2418 34 71
qd Rt et Significant Accounting Policies 17
@@l W ot Notes on Accounts 18
Yot qeF-T9 & I 3T € | Schedules Form Part of the Balance Sheet
TET S.A.BHAT FoTR
31e7eT 9 ya f939F  Chairman & Managing Director . i V- KRISHNASWAMY
< A G.NARAYANAN HEl Y €h General Manager
Wﬁém Executive Director B i R ﬁ : Eﬁ . ﬁﬁ
<. Y% TR Dr. Shashank Saksena VIDE OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
[EEIEFtIirE T Chitra Chandramouliswaran
. sftemT N.Sridaran . .
3 4 vt .D.Sharma T R ied,  SKSINGHANIA & CO TS, IMTAIEEs  SRRK. SHARMA ASSOCIATES
- v RERIERIER) RAJESH SINGHANIA eI, vt SRRK. SHARMA
.S fosha M.Ravindra Vikram Partner
) ) BIEC Partner WERR artne
BAERCEl Sooraj PKhatri a5 70 M.No.52722 18088 M.No.18088
TH.UA. FHeqmHt M.N.Kandaswamy o ) a?ﬁm : .
AT, T M.N.Venkatesan T TS, RSSIPAYYA & CO I, aa)-g-?g - \F/*A\I/E-’{lli\/ifé/;l;l_' &co
Q.%.‘ﬂ'l"f’d A.K Bhargava TR farwen R.S.SIPAYYA m Partner
faista Chiranjib Sen R Partner TH203816 M.No.203816
gH.17762 M.No.17762 3. .
, 3 SETET Qe OM AGARWAL & CO
ngﬂmw&wm MAHARAJNR SURESH&CO 3t dt srrarer O P AGARWAL
s TR N.R.SURESH WEER Partner
DIRECTORS Partner .4.16603 M.No.16603
k£l Chennai FH21661 M.No.21661
28.04.2008 28.04.2008
A AGHTT CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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31.3.2008 @ THTE T o {10 1 F = @rar

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2008 (2000 %) (Rs. in ‘000s)
W 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
H AT AT IS
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
SCHEDULES 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
o) INCOME
i = Interest earned 13 7968 25 17 5832 07 35
3 Other income 14 807 61 62 387 04 82
I TOTAL 87758679 6219 12 17
g EXPENDITURE
RRIERECIE ) Interest expended 15 5288 79 23 3271 27 37
YA Operating expenses 16 1485 29 45 1387 81 05
ST 3 ST =7 () Provisions & Contingencies (Net) 799 44 54 551 60 27
TrT TOTAL 7573 53 22 5210 68 69
/g PROFIT / LOSS
i s fore fraer Net Profit for the year 1202 33 57 1008 43 48
st /g . Profit /Loss brought forward 0 0
foarar aifter SRR § s Transfer from Investment Fluctuation Reserve 0 0
TrT TOTAL 1202 33 57 1008 43 48
|€|’|3|€ila=| o APPROPRIATIONS
q aaas\au%ﬁﬁ@rﬁa.a@. Transfer to Statutory Reserve 361 00 00 303 00 00
Tﬂ@ WW 34. NREREEY Transfer to Revenue and Other Reserves 589 21 45 445 56 99
O SRR & 3 Transfer to Capital Reserve 23 15 68 53 64 83
GREREIEE Transfer to Special Reserve 25 00 00 15 00 00
JEAa Sfeq e (wwaa)  Proposed Final Dividend (including Dividend Tax) 203 96 44 191 21 66
W—Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ Balance amount of profit carried over to
AR TR Balance Sheet 0 0
T TOTAL 1202 33 57 1008 43 48
i R 3 (%) Earning per share (Rs.) 22.07 18.51

Ww-grﬁr@% IR ES 3T'T§ | Schedules Form Part of the Profit & Loss Account

T, 9 S.A.BHAT Fmart
31e7eT 9 y&9 f939F  Chairman & Managing Director . . V- KRISHNASWAMY
< = G.NARAYANAN HaT J98h General Manager
FrAUTT ey Executive Director 5 & R R
T, STt TaEAT Dr. Shashank Sak i il % |
<. r. Shashank Saksena
AN VIDE OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
[EEIEFtIiE T Chitra Chandramouliswaran
sftea N.Sridaran . .
?amc J.D.Sharma wHF A TES. SKSINGHANIA & CO  TWSIRSRS, YWiTdifue®  SRRK. SHARMA ASSOCIATES
= " ; SRRK. SHARMA
LuRGIESEERS M Ravingra Vikram o T RAJESH SINGHANIA  THaIRaG, vt o
Pt ) ) TR Partner WEER artner
BEkeE] “snosrlz P.thatrl T3 5770 M.No.52722 1088 M.No.18088
TH.TH.H3EH .N.Kandaswamy . AtvaT :
T T Mo TURAETEE  Rsseavaaco RN RVENKATESH
w3 amfe AKBhargava L. fwn R.8.SIPAYYA e Partner
fasta a7 Chiranjib Sen R Partner TH203816 M.No.203816
THLITIE2 M.No.17762 3. .
, ELERCIINEL] OM AGARWAL & CO
ngﬂmw&wm MAHARAJNR SURESH&CO it arrarer O P AGARWAL
s T3, N.R.SURESH WEER Partner
DIRECTORS BIEC Partner T5.16603 M.No.16603
EEl Chennai TH21661 M.No.21661
28.04.2008 28.04.2008
TS AGHRIT CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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AN
W/
srggfear SCHEDULES
(%./000 ®) (Rs. in ‘000s)
aﬂﬂﬁ-l SCHEDULE -1 31.03.2008 dh 31.03.2007 dh
gt CAPITAL Asat31.03.2008 As at31.03.2007
yrftrga gt AUTHORISED CAPITAL

T8 %.10/- & 150,00,00,000 gfereet s

150,00,00,000 Equity

Shares of Rs.10/- each 1500 00 00 1500 00 00
T, sfiesr @ wea oSht ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED &
PAID UP CAPITAL
I E.10/- & 54,48,00,000 ¥t 9 54,48,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
(G TR T G ¢ 91 .10 % (Includes 33,36,00,000 shares of Rs.10/- each
33,36,00,000 T2 WA §) held by Government of India) 544 80 00 544 80 00
22 SCHEDULE - 2 31.03.2008 7%  31.03.2007 %
SRt o arfire RESERVES & SURPLUS As at 31.03.2008 As at 31.03.2007
I. v vifiew . I. SHARE PREMIUM 140 00 00 140 00 00
II. W@W smferfera . STATUTORY RESERVE
;‘% Opening balance 1160 85 57 857 85 57
= ZHC' A Add: Additions 361 00 00 303 00 00
Yo . TOTAL -II 1521 85 57 1160 85 57
II1. gSft amferfeat
B R lll. CAPITAL RESERVE
i S A. Revaluation Reserve
t. it s Opening Balance 11797 22 1224710
ST / Hea-Er Less: Deductions / Depreciation * 40016 44988
-3 TOTAL-A 1139706 1179722
s, fage & fast =
R B. Onsale of Investments
/T - Opening Balance 143 32 44 92 06 58
e TRt Add: Additions 21 58 30 5125 86
o i TOTAL-B 164 90 74 1433244
T SR g SR T C. Equity Revaluation Reserve AFS
s aé' 1 Opening Balance 0 -2271
SIS ;e Add: Additions** 0 2071
-3 TOTAL-C 0 0
R D. Others
ST Opening Balance 768453 744557
Sg : ufaT Add: Additions * 15739 23896
-3 TOTAL-D 784192 768453
-1 (3 + 37+ 4 %) TOTAL - Ill (A,B,C,D) 3572972 338 1420
IV. T 3 3= e IV. REVENUE & OTHER RESERVES
(1) SFATTE ST (i) Other Revenue Reserves
EEA Opening Balance 1729 96 74 1284 41 90
T : ofEeT Add: Additions 589 21 45 445 56 99
e At Less: Deduction 128 06 46 215
oAl TOTAL - (i) 2191 11 73 1729 96 74
(i) ferere st (i) Special Reserve
EEA Opening balance 76 60 00 6160 00
BIERRcLE] Add: Additions 25 00 00 15 00 00
an-n TOTAL - (i 101 60 00 76 60 00
g -1V (&) TOTAL- IV (i, ii & iii) 20927173 1806 56 74
(LIL M & 1V) TOTAL (1, 11, 11l & IV) 43118702 344556 51

31.3.2008 7 e vmarel § Heftm siael § aehiei ga- A @ @ R m aftad % SR gen qemEe Wi @ |

o I o e FTEEHR & T Gohe, TR o Ffd et e wfdh @ oo § 9 e gfafAiEe S g |
* Includes adjustment on account of conversion of figures relating to foreign branches at the rate of exchange as at 31.03.2008
*x Represents amount arising on account of marking the Equity Investments to market, disclosed as per requirements of Monetary Authority of Singapore

e |
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SCHEDULES (contd.)
(2.000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)

Iqge-3 SCHEDULE-3 31.03.20087%  31.03.2007 T
gt DEPOSITS Asat31.03.2008 As at31.03.2007
3. 1. =i fely A. |.DEMAND DEPOSITS
1) s @ i) From Banks 56 13 54 82 27 84
1) 3= g iy From Others 8942 18 17 673305 17
A -1 TOTAL -1 8998 31 71 6815 33 01
I1. o= da e Il. SAVINGS BANK DEPOSITS 19210 69 87 17145 44 94
[II. <rferes T lll. TERM DEPOSITS
1) d= 4 i) From Banks 1195 62 81 233 07 61
1) 3= @ i) From Others 54920 93 90 44546 55 93
7 - 111 TOTAL- Il 56116 56 71 44779 63 54
AT - 31 (LI & 110) TOTAL - A (LI &1Il) 84325 58 29 68740 41 49
3 1) 9Rd & vRare # e B. 1) Deposits of branches in India 808419095 66378 13 38
1) R & STt 1 SIarsil & fRer 3 - 3 Il) Deposits of branches outside India 348367 34 236228 11
TOTAL B (I & Il) 843255829 687404149
IEit-4 SCHEDULE -4 31.03.20087F  31.08.2007 T
Ferer T T BORROWINGS Asat31.03.2008 As at31.03.2007
[. wRa® fae e sem I.  BORROWINGS IN INDIA
gt Red o5 Reserve Bank of India 0 25000 00
a5 Banks 0 19
3 T 3T 37FHTT Other Institutions & Agencies 4208 92 41 1063 52 85
TOTAL ()) 4208 92 41 131353 04
Al I. BORROWINGS OUTSIDE INDIA 21447222 1582 69 71
II. 9Ta & aee /@ g g 3am TOTAL (1&1I) 6353 64 63 2896 2275
e (1a1l) ll. Secured borrowings
1. swiIsll ﬁg‘&qﬁﬁgﬁ%m included in | & Il above 500 05 54 22 44
g5 SCHEDULE - 5 31.03.20087%  31.03.2007
I T T YT OTHER LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS  Asat31.03.2008 Asat31.03.2007
. S=afa I.  Bills Payable 918 65 00 869 76 49
II. 3{R-FEte gumeE () Il. Inter Office Adjustments ( Net) 158 99 42
111. ﬁ{‘iﬁﬁqﬁr Ill. Interest Accrued 191 62 74 261 81 34
IV. o= (398 e aftafer € ) IV. Others ( including provisions) 5213 56 24 5339 24 84
A TOTAL 6323 83 98 6629 82 09




2

¢
&

srggfeat ()

SCHEDULES (Contd.)
(2./000 ®) (Rs. in ‘000s)

FTG-6 SCHEDULE - 6 31.03.20087%  31.03.2007 7
WRAtS Rsrd deh o T8t CASH AND BALANCES WITH Asat31.03.2008 As at31.03.2007
Tehdl AR I RESERVE BANK OF INDIA
I. ¥ Fedt (3w faeyht gxr e . Cash on hand (including Foreign
AR TETuH ehe WA ® ) currency notes & ATM cash) 593 85 84 468 59 39
1. 9dfts s o5 & 919 Il.  Balances with Reserve Bank of India
1) = @ § 9y i) in Current Account 8530 37 44 4217 51 40
11) 3/ @ F 3 i) in Other Accounts 0 0
i TOTAL 9124 23 28 4686 10 79
-7 SCHEDULE - 7 31.03.2008 7%  31.03.2007 T
el B Q1T S AT W qGT 37T BALANCES WITH BANKS AND Asat31.03.2008 As at31.03.2007
A W AT & MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE
I. aqRg ‘& . In India
1) o d 9 i) Balances with banks
. W@?ﬁ bl a) In Current Accounts 200 25 64 267 42 75
Q. g S @ o b) In Other Deposit Accounts 564 16 81 227027 27
11) T I3 9T 379 T | T & ii) Money at Call and Short Notice
&. bl o WY a) With banks 200 00 00 1038 65 77
Q. 3 sl & 9y b) With other institutions 0 0
i -] TOTAL - | 964 42 45 3576 35 79
II. 9RA & ot Il. Outside India
% . @ @l | a) In Current Accounts 721407 142 51 42
. 3 S @l | b) In Other Deposit Accounts 13152 63 510 86 66
. HET AU TEn Seq e T 899 ¢) Money at Call and Short Notice 48 99 69 63 45 60
-1 TOTAL - I 252 66 39 716 83 68
am (131) TOTAL (1&1I) 1217 08 84 4293 19 47
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SCHEDULES (contd.)
(2.000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)

W‘ 8 SCHEDULE -8 31.03.2008 %  31.03.2007 Tk
fafem INVESTMENTS Asat31.03.2008 Asat31.03.2007
. aRadfaremE I INVESTMENTS IN INDIA
1) e gt i) Government Securities 24769 05 08 20656 99 65
1) e 3@@3 gfasgferat i) Other Approved Securities 226 86 61 258 19 21
iii) ¥R iii) Shares 512 72 40 41021 70
iV) fea=r 3R g9-79 iv) Debentures and Bonds 1276 53 86 1354 37 64
V) §gE CEEry v) Joint Ventures 285000 0
Vi) 31 - 9 Ifye T ED RIRES 3T vi) Others - Units of Unit Trust of India,
A BT T # Ay ot Investments in other Mutual Funds 360 92 52 7382078
T o & Commercial Paper
-1 TOTAL - | 27174 60 47 23417 98 98
. wRa % sTeT fafrem Il. INVESTMENTS OUTSIDE INDIA*
1) T gﬁ«;ﬂﬁ-qf i) Government Securities 1086 83 47 338 22 52
(399 T wTferentor Gftrerd @ ) (including Local Authorities)
) 3= ii) Others
F) TR a. Shares 1053 76 415
) fgae T S9-17 b. Debentures & Bonds 202 73 14 2182171
T - 101 TOTAL - I 1300 10 37 556 48 38
gasig (14 II) TOTAL (1&11) 28474 70 84 23974 47 36
qd § ghel e Gross Investments in India 27467 85 06 23571 26 60
TTC ; IR Less: Depreciation 293 24 58 153 27 62
qa'lf:z:{:w fafaer=t 9w st Less: Interest on Restructured Investments 0 0
et fafyem Net Investments 27174 60 48 23417 9898
URA o e ehet fafemT Gross Investments Outside India* 13170617 556 89 87
I L @HE] Less: Depreciation 16 95 81 4149
et fafyem Net Investments 13001036 556 48 38
e rreret fafere Total Net Investments 2847470 84 23974 47 36

%31.3.2008 7o faelt wmRanstt @ wafeq swel # dereld qx1- & R § fRU T uiad=i & SR SHEiSE e § |

* includes adjustment on account of conversion of figures relating to foreign branches at the rate of exchange as at 31.03.2008
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SCHEDULES (contd.)
(2.000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)

IIF-9 SCHEDULE -9 31.03.20087%  31.03.2007 0%
3w ADVANCES Asat31.03.2008 As at31.03.2007
A 1) waferTe T s w A. i) Bills Purchased & Discounted 3634 51 29 2940 82 45
AT TR T foret
11) Ts U, MRS AN T W i) Cash Credits, Overdrafts and
TfaEed 39N Loans repayable on demand 24843 97 61 18809 09 76
1i1) Trafe 3uR ii) Term Loans 319453550 253103639
g TOTAL 60423 84 40 47060 28 60
3. i) ue smiRaet gwr wfersya™ B. i) Secured by Tangible Assets* 51959 72 01 417457086
T O o 9 A qfed * includes advances against Book Debts
1) % / Tt gemfoat s Hfer i) Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees 1798 04 27 209019 05
111) sTfas@ ii) Unsecured 6666 08 12 32243869
A TOTAL 60423 84 40 47060 28 60
3. [ 9Ra ¥ 1w C. 1) Advancesinindia
1) refiesar & i)  Priority Sector 20303 15 66 17985 93 00
1) rsife & i) Public Sector 450436 73 2502 95 44
1i1) 5% iiiy Banks 1934918 263 89 62
iv) =1 iv) Others 316824372 23526 43 37
A TOTAL 56683 45 29 4427921 43
1. 9Ra o &me< S I) Advances Outside India
1) =i @ v ) Duefrom Banks 1229248 731939
1) 3= @ wie i) Due from Others
F )T fFT U 9 it ™ a) Bills Purchased & Discounted 171307 68 15312533
A fohT 7T e
T) Hoeg 3UR b) Syndicated Loans 266 99 16 25092 13
) 3 c) Others 1637 39 79 925 70 32
B TOTAL 3740 39 11 2781 07 17
Faam (GIalIl) TOTAL (C-l &1I) 60423 84 40 47060 28 60
A |
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SCHEDULES (contd.)
(2.000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)

STIE-10 SCHEDULE - 10 31.03.2008T&  31.03.2007 T
e smfeat FIXED ASSETS Asat31.03.2008 As at31.03.2007
[. aRwR . Premises
1.4.2007 =t feafq & SER @ W) / At cost/ revalued amount as on 1.4.2007 4476917 4128774
RCHE IIETRC]
9 & G Rae Additions during the year * 221227 359183
469 81 44 448 79 57
a9 % ST FHeEfaart Deductions during the year* 55541 11040
464 26 03 4476917
Y JIET™H Depreciation to date 903001 864944
i -1 TOTAL-I 37396 02 3611973
11. 11“-\\—,ﬁ1-|;|- T-ﬂﬂﬂ-?ﬁf Il. Capital work in progress 24 88 27 197308
- 101 TOTAL-II 2488 27 197308
1. 3= e aRast lll. Other Fixed Assets
(U wHTeR AR fthaer |l ) (including Furniture & Fixtures)
1.4.2007 = Rafg & FTHR AT W At costas on 1.4.2007 552 43 51 452 4564
¥ & ST gl * Additions during the year * 104 66 30 129 0079
657 09 81 58146 43
99 & ST HHaarF Deductions during the year* 185584 290292
638 53 97 552 43 51
I I8 Depreciation to date 478 80 51 4227062
- TII TOTAL- 1l 1597346 1297290
A (1, 11 & 11 %) Total (I, 11 &III') 558 57 75 51065 72

* 31.3.2008 T foraeflt wmarsit & Hafem sieel § qwprel gx-faf e @ G e aRad i & wron sEEsE e € o
* Includes adjustment on account of conversion of figures relating to foreign branches at the rate of exchange as at 31.03.2008

51 1
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SCHEDULES (contd.)
(2.000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)

- 11 SCHEDULE - 11 31.03.2008T%  31.03.2007 T
EEECE OTHER ASSETS Asat31.03.2008 As at31.03.2007
1) 3R FEtaa guEs () i) Inter Office Adjustments ( Net) 205377 0
1) JIg9d = i) Interest Accrued 8145357 7193229
111) 37m &9 ¢ ¥ / iii)  Tax paid in advance /
GId T HIT T H Tax deducted at source 61764 16 566 66 28
1v) @@ - gt s & iv) Stationery & Stamps 62518 51140
V) @M@ & Hte § e @ e v) Non Banking Assets acquired in
T-seheprdt et satisfaction of claims 146 87 25297
Vi) 31t vi) Others 600 85 26 438 47 96
A TOTAL 2061 28 81 1732 10 90
IqgeE-12 SCHEDULE - 12 31.03.20087%  31.03.2007 0%
TR e CONTINGENT LIABILITIES Asat31.03.2008 As at31.03.2007
1) % % faeg =@ (2 =01 & &9 ° i) Claims against the Bank not
R T fHy T acknowledged as debts 20 53 98 151870
11) 3for: ea fafemr & fore qoar ii) Liability for partly paid investments 50 45 11 7451 60
111) s et fafome et iii) Liability on account of outstanding
& & <7l forward exchange contracts 11138 61 60 7864 42 80
1V) Haesl ot 3R & & T et iv) Guarantees given on behalf of constituents
%. 9Rd & a) InIndia 5405 46 52 4172 64 08
. 9RA & T b) Outside India 9228 79 6591 36
V) IR, LIW 3 3= E!T%RIIT'ITQV v) Acceptances, Endorsements &
Other obligations 708801 12 6009 12 80
Vi) 3 we e o d vi) Other items for which the bank is
AT d a8 contingently liable
%. faamers oa- 7/ a. Disputed IT demand /
arfiet & 37efia A cases under appeal 709 95 92 42273 34
9. AT b. Others
1. St @l w fsmfed fhe T4 aTet ¥ ) Estimated amount of contracts remaining
IS A AT TR to be executed on capital accounts 5399 97 20659
1. St @9 & ded deh it o ii) Banks liability under currency swaps 1390 35 65 42 26 70
1il. ¥ % Ted (Fuae) = R iii) Interest rate swaps undertaken (USD) 2029 99 65 12131125
1V. =1 R @ (T1.%.) iv) Interest rate swaps (INR) 1555 82 63 1425 00 00
V. %Ud & foeheq o ed o I agal v) Bank’s Liability under Currency Options 797 90 11 0
V1. ®fee fewee & T&d RS #t 3ad vi) Customer Liabilities under Credit Default ~ 432 64 72 2384783
Vil. ia-deh FeHir gamor- vii) Inter bank Participation Certificate 500 00 00 800 00 00
viil.fafae viil) Miscellaneous 0 87392
1X. e - dueun / digtug / didien ix) Investments - CLN/CDS/CDO 10023 47 434386
1 TOTAL 313662924 22397 67 83
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SCHEDULES (contd.)
(2.000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)

- 13 SCHEDULE - 13 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
& gaTe o I THT T
1R =T INTEREST EARNED Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
1) 3/ faell |y =t/ 22T i) Interest/discount on advances/ bills 55219977 390099 99
1) fafe = em ii) Income on investments 223566 22 1703 30 48
1i1) it e % & el 99 & 3= i) Interest on Balances with
-3 e W = Reserve Bank of India
and Other Inter-Bank Funds 200 88 29 162 93 60
iv) s iv) Others 97089 64 83 28
aT TOTAL 7968 25 17 5832 07 35
ST 14 SCHEDULE - 14 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
OTHER INCOME aﬁemgjd ﬁmggd
_qA A 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
i) FHteH, s st gt i)  Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 468 71 66 388 22 40
1) fafqemt & fospa wems (et i) Profit on Sale of Investments (Net) 229 60 93 237 36 89
111) fafaeet & g:pzf\w w oy (faer) i) Profit on Revaluation of Investments (Net)  -267 84 78 -475 71 00
1v) ey, st 3T 37T 3t & iv) Profit on sale of land,buildings
[EERRCIER(ECK)! and other assets (Net) 15738 238 96
v) fafma RN T g (FrareT) v) Profit on exchange transactions (Net) 11016 79 85 63 88
fafay 2119 vi) Miscellaneous Income 265 39 64 149 13 69
3 TOTAL 807 61 62 387 04 82
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SCHEDULES (contd.)

srggfat (7))

(2.000 #) (Rs. in ‘000s)

FAg- 15 SCHEDULE - 15 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
H T A a
5 R T e INTEREST EXPENDED Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2008 31.08.2007
1) el o =t ) Intereston Deposits 47822303 2896 44 65
1) wedta fistd &/ i) Interest on Reserve Bank of India /
- deh YR T =TS Inter-Bank Borrowings 253 56 38 135 49 22
i) 3= iii) Others 252 99 82 239 33 50
am TOTAL 5288 79 23 327127 37
- 16 SCHEDULE - 16 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
! TATE a I T a%
o —_— OPERATING EXPENSES Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2008 31.03.2007
1) sH=REr & T 3T i)  Payments to and provisions for employees 949 68 47 931 06 68
3 foTT grae
1) «rer, & 3T T i) Rent, Taxes and Lighting 165 89 43 135 75 64
1ii) T 3T Eg-TrIt iii) Printing and Stationery 131303 113144
1v) fommoe & g=m iv) Advertisement and Publicity 1217 49 1356 93
V) % F GURT | L eHE) v) Depreciation on Bank’s property
({sﬁ s 9 siafia (Net of depn. transferred
ST H e () from Capital Reserve) 7509 78 61 11 81
Vi) Rl &t %, o 3T T vi) Directors’ fees, allowances and expenses 81 51 84 50
Vil) SaEr-wemsht Hi e Yo q91 = vii) Auditors’ fees and expenses 16 32 41 141535
( TTRET T - TdierRl |fed) (including Branch auditors)
Viil)fafy gar viii) Law charges 32562 9 59 88
1X) s/ T_Yd, R, eftmig onfe ix) Postages, telegrams, telephones, etc. 94673 54226
X) WA 3 ST x) Repairs and Maintenance 73539 63013
Xi) sftar xi) Insurance 7576 89 58 31 37
X1l) 3 =19 xii) Other Expenditure 156 32 70 140 35 06
Bl TOTAL 148529 45 13878105
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SCHEDULE 17
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.1

General

The financial statements have been prepared
on historical cost basis unless otherwise stated
and further on the assumption of going
concern concept.

Revenue Recognition

Income is recognised on accrual basis on
performing assets and on realisation basis in
respect of non-performing assets as per the
prudential norms prescribed by Reserve Bank
of India. Recovery in Non Performing Assets
is first appropriated towards interest and the
balance, if any, towards principal, except in the
case of Suit Filed Accounts and Accounts
under One Time Settlement.

Interest on bills purchased/Mortgage Backed
Securities, commission (except on Letter of
Credit/Letter of Guarantee/Government
Business), Exchange, Locker Rent and
Dividend are accounted for on realisation
basis.

Income from consignment sale of precious
metals is accounted for as Other Income after
the sale is complete.

Expenditure is accounted for on accrual basis,
except otherwise Stated.

In case of Matured Term Deposits, interest is
accounted for as and when deposits are
renewed.

Legal expenses in respect of Suit Filed
Accounts is charged to Profit and Loss
Account. Such amount when recovered is
treated as income.

In respect of foreign branches, Income &
Expenditure are recognised / accounted for
as per local laws of the respective countries.

Foreign Exchange Transactions of Indian
Operations

Balances in NOSTRO and ACU Dollar accounts
are stated at closing rates. FCNR/EEFC/RFC/
FCA (all foreign currency deposits including
interest accrued thereon) and PCFC/WCFC/
TLFC/FCL (all foreign currency lendings) are
stated at the FEDAI weekly average rate
applicable for the last week of the quarter.




3.2.

3.3.

4.

5.1

5.2

el F e A & & STER @ T g |
1 STk, gaei R faeft qxei § qoa-afind
T AR HEETsT F A F aE H gAed &
R fearn g |

Teft a1ifia, Jare a9n W g gfed antd a6t fafma-
T & SFER T ael fafe wieened & qerie
W ATH-BI i Tored & SHiid of foran w8, o o
TALEY fHad JarErsHl &I, ] 7o TH Sfer @l
& AT b1 SIS R ST8T F8 WA o=t bt <L T TR
g S 8, ‘31 AT qo e / ‘3 il
T’ H ST W@ TR |

TR, d9F a1 faeeh qx1eh & gegaripa ardta
qRETeEl #t TR Gied 3 areaansti & faAet &%
3ifem e & for @] HerE St WIes SHA & H
SR feaman T 2 |

A N =g Geddt 7al i, A@-aRd §, 39 oA9ed
fhT ST =t adE 1 o e W R RamE T2

fercoft vmmeit o ferdter feremunt w1 waiaRor
faesft smraredt it enfiaa ue SFarA o ST AEHT
i TN < T THY Icqel (et o / &1+ i areve 11

T ST T U 3T TS/ o ded @l T
2

e

et st F g S feenfe & SrER wRa §
fra foarsr &t ‘SR & forw anfiRa’, ‘fasht & forw Sqesr’
I qRuET % e1fia’ gemt § avffpd wEn @ 1 g
faareit & qeaish ST yehiehiuT it fmferfiad 6 3 &
fe@mar T g

F) W gfayfaar (T59 TWER it Ffayfaal |fea)
) 3 TAIfed gfagfaar

T WEW

) fEd=R Ud aigH

S.) WEEH/HIhH IUHA

=) YA HE IHEA 9 37

et =TI/ qee 90 & @ oft 31fres i | s 2, Fef

fael W = # weaH faedyl AEvS] & FTER
TR} SMHR T A 7T |

3.2

3.3

5.2

Other Assets, Liabilities and Outstanding
Forward Contracts denominated in foreign
currencies are stated at the rates on the date
of transaction.

Profit/Loss on valuation of all assets, liabilities
and outstanding forward exchange contracts
at year-end exchange rates advised by FEDAI
is taken to revenue with corresponding net
adjustments retained in “Other Liabilities and
Provisions”/ “Other Assets Account” except in
case of NOSTRO and ACU Dollar accounts
where the accounts stand adjusted at the
closing rates.

Acceptances, Endorsements and other
obligations including guarantees of Indian
operations denominated in foreign currencies
are stated at the FEDAI weekly average rate
applicable for the last week of the quarter.

Income and Expenditure items are translated
at the exchange rate ruling on the date of
incorporating the transaction in the books of
account.

Translation of the Financial Statements of
Foreign Branches

Assets and Liabilities of Foreign branches are
translated at the year end closing rate and
the net gain / loss arising out of this is kept
under other liabilities / other assets in
compliance with Accounting Standard 11.

Investments

Investments in India are classified into “Held
for Trading”, “Available for Sale” and “Held to
Maturity” categories in line with the guidelines
from Reserve Bank of India. Valuation and
disclosures of Investments are made under six
classifications viz.,

a) Government securities (including State
Government securities),

b) Other Approved securities,

c) Shares,

d) Bonds & Debentures,

e) Subsidiaries / Joint ventures,

f)  Units of Mutual Funds and Others.

Interest on Investments, where interest/
principal is in arrears for more than 90 days,
is recognised on cash basis as per prudential
norms.




53 frawl &1 qoarsa gt e s g/ s fefafad
ferem-fadfelt o SFER fohar 7o @ -

5.3.1 “oAIR & forw enfia” :- g9 ot o =i A e
Tl AT T TR 62 AR | SAHT TedishA, STl
et oft AN &, IR o W I STrel | e S
2 ; o1 UH.3M3.UH.UA. S, G e godi T iR 3
i o T gesh ot fage god 5, R F1E €,
A H AR (361 ST & S (ae 9fg, AR HiE §, B
TSES T ST 8 |

5.3.2 “fasht o foTu SUersy” :- g9 o § SAfaaa wiaefaan &1
fmTet SR TR SIS o forg, sifeha fepan San € 1 e
TEHR i Frferat i, Th.3E. 001U, g0 oo
Tehe & W Gedifehd a1 ST @ | Tod THR, 34
AT wfaefeat ST fed=i / afvel &1 goaisd
AIYEAT, IR -k S0 a9T . 37E . UH. .1
ERT T T 321 TP b SER A | BIee 3fFat
IR 1 ATWIR R G {ehd (61 ST &, 576 {3 e s
et SRR 1 AT ST - | W SRR
& YR W “TF Teg/TACH” T YA fha e S 2
AT . 1/- T BT o SR T Teifehd foharm ST 2 |

oIid S faed 3 sElRiad 9o i W@E and )

TSR 3Ra ST 2 | R[eae U Frer § eid gfe
1 3T TSR Yoo A1 R e a1 4 THe I W

T fhar ST 2|

ST W &1 A 3o s Tud I Irei
BT foper T & it R e A el @t mE © e
Zfifer wite foha T 2

T 3U-a7 o T SUR S Yol 1, A,

%) SHS Tgd WA & A TR-STTS el S &5
@ s g T g e e

T gfaefaat & 9% 9, T & BT
et ff ysR 9 uRafda F&t &t |

5.3.3 “ORudadr & fou aia”:- T fraei & sifeneey/
qReitee g W forn St @1 sk, afg #iE @,
e WA i T § e B T R 3 for
T Safy I TR SR 21 S, weant
3R grafom Searsdt & fAawi i W@ ane W geifed

5.3 Valuation of Investments is done in accordance
with the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of
India as under:-

5.3.1 ‘Held for Trading’:- Individual scrips under this
category are held at original cost. The same
is valued at monthly intervals at market rates,
wherever available, or as per the prices
declared by FIMMDA and in respect of each
classification under this category, net
depreciation, if any, is charged to revenue and
net appreciation, if any, is ignored.

5.3.2 ‘Available for Sale’:- Individual securities under
this category are marked to market at quarterly
intervals. Central Government securities are
valued at market rates declared by FIMMDA.
State Government, other Approved securities
and Debentures / Bonds are valued as per the
yield curve, credit spread rating-wise and other
methodologies suggested by FIMMDA.
Quoted equity shares are valued at market
rates, Unquoted equity shares and Units of
Venture Capital Funds are valued at book
value/NAV ascertained from the latest available
balance sheet, otherwise the same is valued
at Re.1/- per Company/Fund.

Treasury Bills and Commercial Papers are
valued at carrying cost. Units held in Mutual
fund schemes are valued at Market Price or
Repurchase price or Net Asset Value in that
order depending on their availability.

Preference shares are valued by applying the
appropriate YTM and then discounting the
coupon as well as the terminal redemption.

Based on the above valuations under each
sub-category, if,

a) thefigure results in appreciation, the same
is ignored;

b) thefigure results in depreciation, the same

is charged to revenue.

The book value of individual securities do
not undergo any change due to valuation.

5.3.3. ‘Held to Maturity’:- Such investments are
carried at acquisition/amortised cost. The
excess, if any, of acquisition cost over the face
value of each security is amortised over the
remaining period of maturity. Investments in
subsidiaries, associates and sponsored
Institutions and Units of Venture Capital Funds
are valued at carrying cost. Permanent
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5.5

diminution in value of sponsored institutions is
fully provided for.

Investments are subject to appropriate
provisioning / de-recognition of income, in line
with the prudential norms prescribed by
Reserve Bank of India for NPA classification.
Debentures / Bonds in the nature of advances
are also subject to usual prudential norms and
accordingly provided for, wherever
appropriate.

Profit / Loss on sale of Investments in any
category is taken to Profit and Loss account.
In case of profit on sale of investments in “Held
to Maturity” category, an equivalent amount is
appropriated to “Capital Reserve Account”.

5.6 Ffasfaal & fore sfereM 9 § 9T Jicme / Hue-ure-
HHY 37 B AH-g1 @il | forar S g | 5.6 Incentive / Front-end fees, etc. received on
subscription to securities are taken to Profit
6. 3fm and Loss account.
6.1 S F T, ‘e, “HeEree” i - 6. Advances
S nfar ® affepd foham man § 3 Aty o 3 6.1 Advances have been classified as ‘Standard’,
3 R sy Aeevel 3R 9t fisd & g9 ‘Sub-standard’, ‘Doubtful’ and ‘Loss assets’
WWWW%WﬁmmﬁW it and provisions for possible losses on such
3 § advances are made as per prudential norms
e JeFeT T T E | issued by Reserve Bank of India and also as
. . per the directions of Reserve Bank of India from
6.2 ﬁ%\gﬁm@ﬁ T 31y F R-feas ol & fime to time.
forT de 3 =Tl HTae T T § | 3Tel7-37el q9 W . -
AT T =] ST ot e 6.2 The Bank holds floating provision for non
g N i & . performing advances over and above the
a AT o6 e T T E | prudential norms. Such floating provisions built
- over different periods would not be used for
6.3 W TR any profit or dividend equalisation across
accounting periods.
HHT 1 HHR é‘ﬁ Eﬁaz;f;% SUEE 6.3 Provision on Standard Assets:
h ATHR fhT T gra€r
Type of Advance Provision made as per
F. P H g A 0.25% RBI Guidelines
T, @Y TS g 3Tl S g 3T 0.25% a) Direct Advances to Agriculture 0.25%
T €20 e & HE & e b) Direct Advances to SME Sectors 0.25%
. . N
. c) Advances to residential housing
ST 0 S 1.00% loans beyond Rs.20 lacs 1.00%
o, A o #i AT w@eR 9w &, d) Advances to specific sectors i.e.
S o © gt i SR 3R Real Estate Sector, Credit Card
. T Receivables, Capital Market
fosft o7 S ST 7 e TAUEH @ 2.00% Exposure, Personal Loans and
s % @ T, 9% v Non Deposit taking NBFCs. 2.00%
P e) All other advances not included
QR Pl 0.40% in (a), (b), (c) & (d) 0.40%
ol




6.4. I AT & fIT fHT TC EFT TEEE & 3TATT

O & grEagE & A9t & &9 § @ we o

6.4

Advances are stated net of provisions except
general provisions for standard advances.

T AT 7. Transactions in Gold
ol & fp T SRA ) TR Heufi & W A St Tra_nsactions in gold are accounted for at
3 notional rate.
g fIf 8. Derivatives
L In respect of Interest Swaps, while the net
S T & el fr,\‘;{rwr T T F T TG amount receivable is recognised on accrual
Jufed STER W TR ©, W%WW@W’T“‘W basis, gains or losses on termination of swaps
I 1 STt fohar T 2 31 STt U, Wy it are deferred and recognised over the
gt §g‘ a3y T U 379GT A/ T &t 9=t remaining contractual life of the swaps or the
gl IR g pmA T d [nanralieofiessselabiies e
N Eﬁ;ﬁ@ﬁﬂﬁwaﬁ SRH 7 %@ purpose are not marked to market.
0 . 9. Fixed Assets
. 3T SRt
) ‘ . ) 9.1 Fixed Assets except revalued premises are
9.1 YAcAiRd TREd B BE TR T B qeiBA stated at historical cost and are broadly
et @ W fhar @ i Fefafa st o classified/ grouped under the following heads:
e e, &Y § i/ THEe el TR i) Premises.
1) U= ii) Capital Work-in-progress.
1) ufspamefa gsft ii) Other Fixed Assets including
iil) o= T st e a)  Metal Furniture.
&) U e T=R b)  Wooden Furniture.
@) TES & B c) Electrical Installation.
M IESEIICARSIECE d) Vehicles.
) e e) Computers.*
g) HIITF *  ATMs along with cost of development of the
. leasehold and freehold sites, computer
¥ geZard SR qul Wl oTel T o faer A peripherals like UPS, Batteries etc and their
gfed T, HrEe TeEs SR 99 gheg, g replacement costs are capitalised under the
31T 3 ST FFAEATI ot AT 1 e 3 & dea head computers.
ESIET g | 9.2 Depreciation is provided on straight line
A . 118 B method at the rates considered appropriate by
9.2 aﬁﬁ i g:;% i@T qﬁ;;a;ml gﬁm w“; the Management as under:
R ‘ 5% Premises 2.5%
' Furniture 10%
effR 10% Electrical Installations,
TR ITHT, a1 9 Vehicles and Office Equipment 20%
Frafei= - 20% Computers 33 1/3%
HTRL 3313% Fire Extinguishers 100%
TR A7 100 % Depreciation on revalued portion of the fixed
. e i assets is withdrawn from revaluation reserve
ﬁtﬁ: i Egﬁ:i @E?R e 5 i;‘i hl and credited to profit and loss account.
BT ATY- S TIE |
Ty




9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

10.

SR &1 A T (RIS R faAT HeoB T &1 e
T 9t & for fohan @ |

T8 STCHT-3TCAT T o1 STHIA el ST ST Hehell &1,
el 9 3R Yo W YR B JEHE 9T §9 § fhar
TR |

722 et Huftal & Aol § e F Sy o G
e a1 wfteite o T g |

faeeft vmared &t e snfeE W g™ & forg,
Hefrd 91§ W] B o SFHR, T A T |

10.1. 9521 7 Gy g o T yaee iuifhs maR w

o e € s 3 s A e faf  sterart
fofam T2 2 | G WA 15 T S F g
AT W 37 g2t T FHfHma 522t &
fore greren= = & i & sfwifees qgea WiFn T 7 |

10.2.faaeft wmarsit % ot § Heget @ fewe waifyd 3o o

11.

12.

] I o SFHR a1 T € |
Treet et / &

o F g1 @ § 3gEfed fAaa @ / gt famfafed
%Eﬂ?{%:

1. 31 31 99 W & U greae=

11. T 3T & foIT |1 grae 371 3tstes st
& oI grae™

1il. frael W qeae™ / uftengs / graee
1v. 311 fRarsht 31 Savas yrae
AT o TTT gTaen=

1) &0 & oI g STAfd X 3T & STHR W S
TE & ST T AIHEUE 22 o SFuTe |, 3
T 3 foT 3 TT oS T & |

11) o 07 i AT T FfAfe A o 7d yaw
H T A1 T 2 I FIE 99 & A W A F @i
@ % fore geiia fan T g o

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

10.

Depreciation is provided for the full year
irrespective of the date of acquisition.

Depreciation is provided on Land and Building
as a whole where separate costs are not
ascertainable.

In respect of leasehold properties, premium is
amortised over the period of lease.

Depreciation on Fixed Assets of foreign
branches is provided as per the applicable laws
of the respective countries.

Staff Benefits

10.1 Provision for gratuity and pension liability is

made on actuarial basis and contributed to
approved Gratuity and Pension Fund. Provision
for encashment of accumulated leave payable
on retirement, Sick Leave is made on actuarial
valuation at the year end, in compliance with
Accounting Standard 15.

10.2In respect of Overseas branches gratuity is

11.

12.

accounted for as per laws
respective countries.

prevailing in the

Net Profit / Loss

Net Profit / Loss disclosed in the Profit and Loss
Account is after:

i)  Provision for taxes on income and wealth
i) Provision for non-performing advance and
general provision for Standard Advances.
iiiy Depreciation/Amortisation/ provision on
investments.

iv) Other usual and necessary provisions

Provision for Taxation

i) Provision for Taxes has been made on the
basis of estimated tax liability which
includes adjustments for Deferred Tax in
compliance with Accounting Standard 22.

Securities Transactions Tax to the extent of
eligible credit is treated as pre-paid Taxes
and the balance if any is charged to Profit
& Loss Account.
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Schedule 18
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

1.

Reconciliation

Reconciliation of inter-bank and inter-branch
transactions has been completed up to 31¢
March 2008. Steps for elimination of
outstanding entries are in progress. Since the
outstanding entries to be eliminated are
insignificant, no material consequential effect
is anticipated.

2. fEw 2. Investments
] 9Rea s s o el & SFER % & a) In accordance with RBI guidelines, the
et (23f) @t i gerit § afiepa fahar w Investments Portfolio of the bank
3 SR (domestic) has been classified into three
’ ’ categories, as given below:-
gt kil 7 3 e Category Book Value Percentage to
(FTHISTH ) ARG (Rs. in crore) Total Investments

31.03.2008 31.03.2007 | 31.03.2008 31.03.2007 31.03.2008 31.03.2007 | 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
] s | | | e [ o | e [
R e o~ Hae BT Hvlaclii eTord' " 810'84 249. 3 2.9 ‘; 1.06‘;J
SR R 81084 2953 295% 106% e ior fradng : > Bk P

3] “wftveEd & fau aif@” o dad gfagfoar aRd
fiod % g feffia 25 wferema st < o g,
T 2008 FT GHITE ek deh i HTT o HrErY ST
*22.65% T |

g “oftveadr & fow emfiq” dart st gfasfaal & day
¥ %.229.48 FUs & Wi (et af £.240.75
FUE) 1 29 a¥ o A IR R e |
a9 & < A 4 uRusedr & fow aifitd et &
ed gfaafaat & difem & oiRene & fog “dieft
HEid gonelt” @ “gerel s gumel” §  37ARd
forar | oftorm ey uRenea § € .19 .02 HUg F9
T S AT § 39 A F g H7 SR UL |

g] Tt TR AR & ded sTEvas gRfyE mis
3T & UM €.100 F0e (fredt af £.28 FUg) &
e oo ot wieafeat ST Fafvdeipd SUR 3R
0T ST & e SURI o [oTg, WRIH HIfsi & wfa
%.3850 FUE (fret ad & 2510 HE) 3ifehd qoa
F wferferall @1 ferafin smRkeE o e fo.
F e |

b) SLR Securities under ‘Held to Maturity’
accounted for 22.65% of bank’s Demand
and Time liabilities as at the end of March
2008 as against ceiling of 25% stipulated
by RBI.

c) Inrespect of ‘Held to Maturity’ category of
Investments, premium of Rs.229.48 crores
was amortised during the year (Previous
year Rs.240.75 crores). During the year,
the bank switched over from ‘Straight Line
Method’ to ‘Effective Interest Method’ for
amortising the premium on securities held
under ‘Held to Maturity’ category. This has
resulted in the reduction in amortisation by
Rs. 19.02 crores and the impact is increase
in profit to that extent.

d) Securities of face value for Rs.100 crores
(previous year Rs28 crores) towards Initial
margin money required under the
Settlement Guarantee Fund and securities
for Rs. 3850 crores (previous year Rs.2510
crores) towards collateral for borrowing
under Collateralised Borrowing and
Lending Obligations have been kept with
Clearing Corporation of India Ltd.




7]

5.

faasht vmarst g aifia fraei &1 Safe fafrarrs
TR g SR fRenfEe o STER arffea s
L RIETRCRIRIEIN

ahm

37| YETeBOT S YIRS o oI, TS g
A T TR FEsh <R Y 9T ATt &t
T Ui 3 7T wifad <6l W 39 SMER W fEER
foharn T @ foh U ae e 3 aueht A |

37| o AIH I F AT FT v T & e,
3Ife FffeReoT 31 311 31 eaH & 3339 T Ffagfa
& ST qod, g TWHR MR T a8 &
SRR i A H W TR |

7| ST Traret & Hew § Syt S avfieior
IIRET FEEHT R T T FHI0H o STER & e
T |

g g ISish AT & Hew § areg e d% g
foR T = fAioe § SR €.259.92 F0E (e
a9 259 .92 'S ) T AR T A T E |
T gragE A0 F I @ R |

3 | e @i & fore 1t i et St affetor
AT RSt Feh g S eyt HEE & SFER
foram T e 59k f % .32 .66 HUS & AT &
et | e g arfieRtor 7 U o1 W feeed 3=
AR G T HI AR EIAE |

3T At

T 2, 3T T URE % G ¥ @ faera & e/
ASfietoT 7 & uren 8, foreet W %.12.37 #s (fse
7 14.96 #Ug) B |

O ST X SAT-IaAT

FAT AN &1 e USell 3 THOT W g aTed ot W
s e & 2 .1150E [fod af & .8 .06 FE]
Y Tl TE 8 31T 39 WA H STEal-aeal S i
1 STt / 3Faned 1 9w g, 5 off ' &, F ' H
TEEHT ST |

e) Investments held by Overseas branches are
classified and valued as per guidelines
issued by respective regulatory authorities.

Advances

a) For provisioning requirements, claims
pending settlement as well as claims yet
to be lodged with Guarantee Institutions
identified by the branches have been
considered on the basis that such claims
are valid and recoverable.

b) In assessing the realisability of certain
advances, the estimated value of security,
Central Government guarantees and
subsequent conduct have been
considered for the purpose of asset
classification and income recognition.

c) The classification of advances, as certified
by the Branch Managers has been
incorporated, in respect of unaudited
branches.

d) Floating provision of Rs. 259.92 crores
(previous year Rs.259.92 crores) is held
in respect of gross non-performing
advances, over and above the minimum
prescribed by RBI. These provisions are
netted off from advances.

e) The classification of advances and
provisions for possible loss have been
made as per Prudential Norms issued by
RBI except in case of an advance
amounting to Rs.32.66 crores where the
Bank has been restrained by an Order of
the Hon’ble High Court, Delhi from
classifying the advance.

Fixed Assets

Pending completion of certain legal and other
formalities, title deeds have not been executed
registered in favour of the Bank in respect of
seven premises amounting to Rs.12.37 crores
(previous year Rs.14.96 crores).

Rupee Interest Rate Swap

An amount of Rs. 2.11 crores ( previous year
Rs.8.06 crores) is kept in deferred income on
account of gains on termination of Rupee
Interest Rate Swaps and would be recognised
over the remaining contractual life of swap or
life of the assets / liabilities, which ever is earlier.




6. TSt 6. Capital
é@ﬁwaﬂ‘%aﬁxﬁraﬂ:ﬁm-llﬁﬁa@ﬁé@ﬁéw The Bank has not raised any amount to
ghegl 48 @t | (frset af e 11 gsht 2.1000 w0 augment its Tier | and Tier Il Capital during the
3ﬁI\ET<’T{I 75t %.280 FIE) year. (previous year Rs.1000 crores as Tier Il

' Capital and Rs.280 crores as Tier | Capital).
faeft v & ST SR & % .28.50 S [ , _
T T 44,18 FT | T 3 T § [ SR | T T Overseas Branches translation difference
3 o j amounting to Rs.28.50 crores (Previous Year
' Rs.44.18 crores) has been kept in ‘other
7. & liabilities’ (others).
7.1 =fas g syficrkal TfeRREl & fAfal et 7. Taxes
a. 9: SR % WAl T A (AR i o 9, 3 A 7.1 No provision has been considered necessary
et %.709.96 HUE (d ad €.422.73 HUg) Ht in respect of disputed demands of income tax
e Wi & g § Y€ HT YIS T2 qHI amounting to Rs.709.96 crores (previous year
TR | R oft, deh g Frafd ani & 9fd & .316.44 F0E Rs.422.73 crores) after due consideration of
FT AR T@9gH T8 W@aT &1 7 a9 & g9-ardt decisions of Appellate Authorities, judicial
AR F UM % 706.53 FUE 1 T 31e7/ FHET 5 pronouncements and the opinion of tax
e ’ experts. However, the Bank continues to hold
a surplus provision of Rs. 316.44 crores against

7.2 =fass & sydiekdal gifueRal & fAufar 3t a-fas these assessment years. An amount of Rs.
T & Aol W Foifad ffeR & & a1, % 0.62 FUg 706.53 crores has been paid/adjusted against
(fret a9 &, 0.62 FAT) H WhH o Geah i Tl Refund Order of earlier years.

1 Tt X famt & At A % Tl § T B 7.2 No Provision has been considered necessary

ST T G T | in respect of demands of sales tax on sale of

Rrft 5 retail gold coins amounting to Rs.0.62 crores

(Previous year Rs.0.62 crores) after due

gt Red a9 S/ A 2.07.2007 3% Hqrel consideration of judicial pronouncements and

ufte & fu feenfeel & eren Prfared s the opinion of tax experts.

ThHTIT fohT 1T ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES :

1. gt In accordance with the guidelines issued by

Reserve Bank of India vide Master Circular dt.

wE, = 2007-08  2006-07 02.07.2007, the following additional disclosures are

. . de: -

i S it e made
T ¥ gsft 1 st (%) 11.96%  13.27% 1. Capital:

i Sifew wiRa oigufa g & S.No. Particulars 2007-08  2006-07
it 7 s 2R gt (%) 7.86%  8.20% | CRAR (%) 11.96%  13.27%

il i e wEafe 31 gor Il CRAR Tier | Capital (%) 7.86%  8.20%
ot w1 s EER LGS (%) 4.00%  5.07% Il CRAR Tier Il Capital (%) 410%  5.07%

IV 9T TR & SR ,

IV Percentage of shareholding of
1 wferera 61.23%  61.23% Government of India 61.23%  61.23%

v Il Ust & &9 F 3 V  Amount of Subordinated Debt raised

foh 7107 F0T it WBH (% HAS F) A 1000.00 as Tier Il Capital (Rs in crores) NIL  1000.00
83




2. fraw

2.1 et &1 qea [R] (. HUE )

2. Investments

2.1 Value of Investments (Rs. in crore)

2007-08  2006-07 2007-08 2006-07

i) a5 wha g ()  Gross Value of Investments

(%] 9= & 27467.85  23571.27 (a) InIndia 27467.85  23571.27

[N % ST 1317.06 556.90 (b) Outside India 1317.06 556.90
i) o™ & fore yraems (i) Provision for Depreciation

[%] o & 293.25 153.28 (@ In India 293.25 153.28

[@] 9 % e 16.96 0.41 (b) Outside India 16.96 0.41
i) faaen & faaa gea (i) Net value of Investments

[%] 9ra & 27174.60  23417.99 (@) InIndia 2717460  23417.99

[@] 9RA & TR 1300.10 556.49 (b) Outside India 1300.10 556.49

2.2 Tl &g TR WTETE=i oh1 Teler 7T & TRuere
T3 Ufarfern |iga

(%. HUET /)
2007-08  2006-07
(i) 317 3 158.19 169.57

(i) TS o o < T T grae= 184.95 54.81

(ili) Zerd o & S fhe T sl 28.73 66.19
YEEEl ® 92 @ ST /

AR R
(1v) sfa o 314.41 158.19
2.3 O e e
(®. =S )
=R o ot g o o gEfd e e 31.3.08 31.3.07
EXacH & qEETEs W W @

ST T S A WA % SR
07-08 06-07 07-08 06-07 07-08 06-07

fodh o g
Tﬁﬁ‘;lﬁifﬁ'ﬁ 10.26 50 2400.00 3200 183.37 148 1600.00 800
foee i & e
@'ﬂ’ﬁm‘}‘!ﬁ‘{ﬁ'ﬁ 23.00 100 700.00 2500 8.38 357 ™A
2.4 T - TATASR TE9r e wiferst
AT-TETAR 9T sht STHiehdl-a ST

(. FUG )
g ol ket fet  fEw® ® o ageE

w1 FA vt A feifa wfrfEr
fomr gfeqfeal wfeqfedl & famR

@ ©) Q) ©) (6) )
1w &7 Iwm 775.10 728.61 1325 17872 178.72
2 foefta demd 183.57 183.57 6.88 18.32 18.32
3 &% 411.53 201.70 6.70 1.00 1.00
4 ot FmRe 766.87 354.84 10.00 4.15 4.15
5 St/ "gEd e 28.50 28.50 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 = 188.18 138.18 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 YCHEM ¥ OIRT yEEE 175.06 XXX XXX XXX XXX

B 2178.69 163540  36.83  202.19  202.19

2.2 Movement of Provisions held towards
depreciation on Investments including
securities matured for payment

(Rs. in crore)

2007-08 2006-07

()  Opening Balance 158.19  169.57
(i)  ADD Provisions made during the year 184.95 54.81

(iiiy LESS Write off/Write Back of excess
provisions during the year 28.73 66.19

(iv) Closing Balance 31441 15819

2.3 Repo transactions:
(Rs in crores)

Particulars Minimum Maximum Daily Average  Ason  Ason
outstanding  outstanding  outstanding ~ 31.03.08 31.03.07
07-08 06-07 07-08 06-07 07-08 06-07

Securities sold 1026 50 2400.00 3200  183.37 148 1600.00 800

under Repos

Securities Purchased
under reverse Repos 23.00 100  700.00 2500 8.38 357 Nil Nil

2.4 Non-SLR Investment Portfolio

Issuer Composition of Non-SLR Investments:
(Rs. in crore)

No Issuer Amount  Extentof Extentof Extentof Extentof
Private below Unrated Unlisted
Placement Ivestment Securities Securities

grade

Securities
(1) @ 3) 4 (6) (6) @)
1 PSUs 77510 728.61 13.25 178.72 178.72
2 Fl 183.57 183.57 6.88 18.32 18.32
3 Banks 411.53  201.70 6.70 1.00 1.00
4  Private Corporate  766.87 354.84 10.00 4.15 4.15

5 Subsidiaries/

Joint Ventures 28.50 28.50 0.00 0.00 0.00
6 Others 188.18 138.18 0.00 0.00 0.00

7  Provision held
towards depreciation175.06 XXX XXX XXX XXX

Total 2178.69 1635.40 36.83 202.19 202.19




2.5 TSI I THUSASTR a9t
(5. wOEI A)
= EC:)
1 3G 2007 7 G AT 13.11
Ty % A SiE 0.00
Ty o < Heraa 8.94
3103 2008 7 gl 9y 4.17
Fd G e 4.17
3. eRafesw
3.1 STEEl X R/ S <X ATAT-aaet
(®. el )
=R 2007-08 2006-07
TR OTHCRE % TR THE A
Eaul Eau Exl Eaul
i) erar-aget
maﬁmiﬂ 1425.00 2030.00 3455.00 1425.00 1213.11 2638.11
i) w5 ver A
FIST T At
AT T FHA
F Tl i § at
I B et A 435 5550 59.85 I .
i) sreer-aaeh w5
e i a ST
BRIECERIEL @) ™= = A ™ ™= YA

V) sreer-aeet § S

e Sfan R ¥FfFw g NG = b = =
V) Sec-seet adt

1 3 g 21509 <911 2420 -6222  -50.92 -113.14

d% 7 foreft oft gobR B e o R T A 1 3w |
yohe fohT U SfEfes qoM v St efdl  aane &t
feREN i aTelt SeeT-aae | 318 N TH | ¥hR & & | di
& TIY STEcA-age B I S & HROT GuIfvess W SR T
T T |

3.2 fafme SR e &€ SRatess

(5. HUE H)

0 T =R fc)
) = % G fafmg s = =

Sfafesy it Heufs qa e (e ar) =
1) 31 = 2008 T f&fHa =R =

Sfafesq it Feus qa @H (fed ar) =
1) fafma =R = ) SRafeen &t Heufs

TS T I S “F=a gt T (e am) =
1v)  wffert & 2 1od 99R & fafma

MR &1 R SRafesd it Freafs

T W S ST gt T (o aw) NS

>

&

2

DS

2

¢

2.5 Non Performing Non SLR Investments

Rs. in crore)
Particulars Amount
Opening Balance as on 1t April 2007 13.11
Additions during the year 0.00
Reductions during the year 8.94
Closing Balance as on 31t March 2008 417
Total Provisions held 417

3. DERIVATIVES:
31 Forward Rate Agreement/ Interest Rate Swap:

(Rs in crore)

PARTICULARS 2007-08 2006-07
Rupee FX Total  Rupee FX Total
Exposure Exposure Exposure Exposure

i) The notional 1425.00 2030.00 3455.00 1425.00 1213.11 2638.11
principal of swap

agreements

i) Losses which 4.35 5550 59.85 Nil NIL NIL
would be incurred
if counter-parties
failed to fulfil their
obligations under the
agreements

iiij Collateral required Nil Nil Nil Nil NIL NIL
by the bank upon
entering into
swaps

iv) Concentration of Nil Nil Nil Nil NIL NIL
credit risk arising
from the swap

V) The fair value of -15.09 911 2420 6222  -50.92 -113.14
the swap book

The bank has not entered into any Forward Rate
Agreement. The derivatives disclosed above are
in the nature of Interest Rate Swap (IRS) to hedge
the Balance Sheet Assets and Liabilities. No
collateral were insisted as the swaps were entered
into with banks.

3.2 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives:
(Rs. Crores)
S. No. Particulars Amount

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange
traded interest rate derivatives
undertaken during the year
(instrument wise) Nil

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange
traded interest rate derivatives outstanding
as on 31t March 2008 (instrument wise) Nil

(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange
traded interest rate derivatives outstanding
and not “highly effective” (instrument wise) Nil

(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded
interest rate derivatives outstanding and
not “highly effective” (instrument wise) Nil




3.3 SRafesw o WRgw /UT W TeheTehIuT

3.3.1 T[T YeheTahiur

%, I R IEA-TE (g IR TH) I I STEAT-I3eht
T oS o TeTU feehed T SURNT ATt oidl | =41 oL Siifad
I HET ST %7 F3 & foTT wfowen &g wam s g | 9
I=d fae qog HTRE Teehi 1 37 Icaal 1 off IueTs Hirel
2 e o 37oft 31 & AT ST T e e Tk | g9 e
& AR TTEH J Bl o T & T S & oo R v
gl
) At ifeH gerem Aify, Rt sur / ©% €@ T e
[§ft] it / enfia 3gar it fagmfa enfe & sror
g dTelt =S & Sy @i gfoven & fou sfafes
IS BT JATT FA H I T IS AHT SHR T
TTeshi 1 IueH FHT F AR 30 B |

) o & Tg SRATT TFIASR B qATHA AT T FA
N SRATET A L o (1T 37feyehan 3 o e
ST FA U TS TTgah! T faet I & wfaegfa Tmela
1 faferad 0 & # 3TenT Juredt 2 |

7) o 3 yferen foradl % w9 § SRAfEew & 74T 4 92
Siftgm st iR & & forg 3fea = yonfeat
T3 e & 3R Sfafed yee 9 wefa gt wel %
Fater o forg 3fera Raife gonferal sueiea € | SRafee
el 1 A gfaveft wef & w9 § de g gfoveft
el & forw F@ #t SwEd FOT A i g
ST S =fimr & sfa & fopar |

g) o% 7 SRafeeq & v & fo7Q srayass dard i3d it
§ 3t s Rafd 3 gEHRar & FRE yaied e
ST |

3] W % U SAEYIH AN HRAE Y& B & 1Y
TS T oh TRUTH TSR & g 9
TR gaie 3 S 376 guiett & |

F| 9% ER Qe W S gfawen SR T 3= faet wufa
I HURE TTeehl b forw SRAfEs 1 FarT ueiis
ST W oA ST & | WfeRed oAt o warer § ufemen
& T 9 IR 3 AR 1 UR T A E | o
ARl o GG T UTEH! o G o A, S & BT
wref ATl & qufa: Tuqed fhy U § SR e
TSR T E |

3.3 DISCLOSURES ON RISK EXPOSURE IN
DERIVATIVES

3.3.1 Qualitative Disclosure

The Bank uses the Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) and
Currency Swaps and Options for hedging purposes
to mitigate interest rate risk and currency risk in
banking book. The bank also offers these products
to high Net Worth corporate clients to enable them
to manage their own currency and interest rate risk.
Such transactions are entered only with Clients and
Banks having agreements in place.

a) The Risk Management policies of the Bank
allows using of derivative products to hedge
the risk in Interest/Exchange rates that arise
on account of overseas borrowing/FCNR (B)
portfolio/the asset liability mis-match etc., and
also to offer such products on back to back
basis to customers.

b) The bank has a system of evaluating the
derivatives exposures separately and placing
appropriate credit lines for execution of
derivative transactions duly reckoning the Net
Worth and security backing of individual
clients.

c) The bank has set in place appropriate control
systems to assess the risks associated in using
derivatives as hedge instruments and proper
risk reporting systems are in place to monitor
all aspects relating to derivative transactions.
The Derivative transactions were undertaken
only with counter parties well within the
exposure limits approved by appropriate credit
sanctioning authorities for each counter party.

d) The Bank has set necessary limits in place for
using derivatives and its position and
effectiveness are continuously monitored.

e) The bank has a system of continuous
monitoring and appraisal of resultant
exposures across the administrative hierarchy
for initiation of necessary follow up actions.

f)  Derivatives are used by the Bank to hedge the
Bank’s Balance sheet and offered to select
high net worth corporate clients on back-to-
back basis. In respect of hedge transactions
the value and maturity of hedges has not
exceeded that of the underlying exposure. In
respect of back-to-back transactions the
transactions with clients are fully matched with
counter party bank transactions and there is
no uncovered exposure.




% | THUFR & SRAfTST T g arelt 319 i g fHar
T § 3R W g & T SueE o SR W e
e @ | o T | SEe-aget o 3y e &
et ¥ U ol § YT 37, 3TSll-Sact i 3y Fifafes
o A Skl / g F g, S oft B @, W

g ST |

it gforen S8 3U-994 & YR W IRhfed e 7w

£ 1 rehTe fearsi 1 Yoaish STe 9o 1 et § 3ifehd
A o YR ORI 1| deh o 99 SRafes | weed

¥ foru fafean srEiTen Sfaw See SR eriE A
Y 2 |

3.3.2 WTITeHeh UeheTehur

9)

The income from such derivatives are amortised
and taken to profit and loss account on accrual
basis over the life of the contract. In case of
early termination of swaps, income on account
of such gains would be recognised over the
remaining contractual life of the swap or life of
the assets/liabilities whichever is lower.

Allthe hedge transactions have been accounted
on accrual basis. Valuations of the outstanding
contracts are done on Mark to Market basis.
The Bank has duly approved Risk Management
and Accounting procedures for dealing in

Derivatives.

3.3.2 Quantitative Disclosures:

(. ST H) (Rs.incrore)
: 3 SRafrsg =S S. PARTICULARS CURRENCY  INTEREST RATE
LR w EV RN = NO. DERIVATIVES & DERIVATIVES
9 faen <= OPTIONS
()  eRafeey (FHreale 7e &) (i) Derivatives (Notional
F| Ffowen & faw 1290.36 1027.50 Principal Amount)
G| =R fer 897.90 1002.50 2) For Hedging 1200.36 1027.50
1 b) For Trading 897.90 1002.50
D'
(i) et [1] (i) Mark to Market Positions [1]
¥ s (+) 49.90 5550 a) Asset (+) 49.90 55.50
& () 105.68 64.61 b) Liability (-) 105.68 64.61
(i) FwrFRER (2] 212.61 74.50 (iii) Credit Exposure [2] 212.61 74.50
(iv) =S @E g (iv) Likely impact of
R F REdT F one percentage change
w1 (100*H=01) in interest rate (100*PV01)
%] wieen eRafisn w 33.71 31.58 a) on hedging derivatives 33.711 31.58
@] =R ERaftsd ™ 12.38 44.22 b) on trading derivatives 12.38 4422
(V) =% aNE e T v) Maximum and Minimum of
100*d=f01 1 =g 100*PV01 observed
En Bel during the year
%] FlaeErTw Sfftpan 36.38  3Afread 57.48 a) on hedging Maximum 36.38  Maximum 57.48
AdH 2743 gaaH 29.33 Minimum 27.43  Minimum 29.33
T SRR AFIT13.86 UEAT46.01 b) on trading Maximum 13.86  Maximum 46.01
= 12.38 = 18.16 Minimum 12.38  Minimum 18.16
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4. IR U 4. ASSET QUALITY:
. 4.1 Non Performing Assets (NPAs)
4.1 IFFSieR AT (TAUT)
® =t ﬁ) (Rs. in crore)
N 2007-08  2006-07
=R 2007-08  2006-07
B i Net NPA to Net Advances(% 0.60 0.55
) THATTHTE ghat 310H (%) 0.60 0.55 *)
. i Movement of NPAs (Gross
1) TS s () ) ( )
) - 112021 1227.55 a) Opening Balance 1120.21 1227.55
)t et 6 65' 00 ; 07' 2 b) Additions during the year 665.00 707.43
N . .
) ot Mot 788 26 R14.77 c¢) Reductions during the year 788.26 814.77
7 3w 996.95 1120.21 d) Closing Balance 996.95 1120.21
jif) et T e i Movement of Net NPAs
F) T 257.83 20433 a) Opening Balance 257.83 224.33
@) % 5 T e 665.00 707.43 b) Additions during the year 665.00 707.43
) ¥ % S Felfrat 559.63 673.93 c¢) Reductions during the year 559.63 673.93
ﬂ’) gﬁﬁq 363.20 257.83 d Closing Balance 363.20 257.83
V)  wda st e o forg sraem iv. Movement of Provisions for NPAs
(AT ST oh foTT grare ™ &l Siga ) (excluding provisions on standard assets)
F) gAY 787.97 930.98 a) Opening balance 787.97 930.98
) T 3 S 3T T gree 125.44 135.31 b) Provisions made during the year 125.44 135.31
M T2 W H g M/ c) Write-off/Write-back of excess
AR Sfefierd grage 343.47 278.32 provisions 343.47 278.32
9) ¥fa o 569.94  787.97 d) Closing balance 569.94 787.97
4.2 i . etails o oan assets subject to
oo e & qEd T MRS & 4.2 Details of L t bject t
T restructuring
(%. el ) (Rs. in crore)
= 2007-08 2006-07 Particulars 2007-08 2006-07
. : (i)  Total Amount of loan assets subjected to
() e, AR, T restructuring, rescheduling, re-negotiation  645.60 534.24
FUT TR A FAET  645.60 534.24
TR ¥ ’ - Of which under CDR 39.65 —
-3 | @ fidem & 39.65
e (i) Total amount of Standard Assets
(i)  gAEEAT, qATTEROT, T T % subjected to restructuring,
& T T A Sl 1 FATHT  645.49 526.60 rescheduling, renegotiation; 645.49 526.60
. mﬁ-@ﬁ?ﬁm%m 39.65 o - Of which under CDR 39.65 —
(iil) m ‘l—'ﬁw» T“W% (iiiy ~ Total amount of substandard Assets
: subjected to restructuring,
ST SNl
zﬁ;rq;qq 011 6.45 rescheduling, renegotiation; 0.11 6.45
sas ‘ ‘ - Of which under CDR — —
. ] ) (iv)  Total Amount of Doubtful Assets subjected
(V) T, QRO G ShIoT o ded e T Hiary to restructuring, rescheduling, renegotiation;  — 1.19
AT 1 et A 1.19
- Of which under CDR — —
- 330 ¥ § Wt & dea
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4.3 UREUle GATAIU o (T Flareferehtut/ o 6T
Ut R St g feredier sl o ferewur

(%. e H)
EIFy 2007-08  2006-07

(1) @ "E 35 =
() wH/emd H fawa fHu T
Gl W HA o [ 5 (4 | 57.33 =

(i) Fa gfawa 62.63
(iv) T aut & Sfakd @l § g
FAfafed gfawe =
(V) e ==t-ed Wpel @ / g 5.30 Nl

4.4 FT AR A HA/ Terhar ot TE Sieh et ATRa=t
ENEER

4.4.1 THT I T2 SR Tt AT et feraur

4.3 Details of Financial Assets sold to
Securitisation / Reconstruction Company,
for Asset reconstruction

(Rs. in crore)
2007-08  2006-07

Particulars

(i) No. of accounts 35 Nil

(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions)
of accounts sold to
SC/RC 57.33 Nil

(iiiy Aggregate consideration 62.63 Nil

(iv) Additional consideration realised
in respect of accounts
transferred in earlier years Nil Nil

(v) Aggregate gain/loss over net book value 5.30 Nil

4.4 Details of non-performing financial assets
purchased/sold from other banks

4.4.1 Details of non-performing financial assets

(%. St H) purchased:
= 2007-08  2006-07 (Rs. in crore)
1. [®]=d & < e fahe g Particulars 2007-08  2006-07
@l & we A A 1 (a) No. of accounts purchased
@] T T = = during the year Nil Nil
R ¥ T @ A (b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
@ 3 GE NG = 2 (a) Of these, number of accounts
- restructured during the year Nil Nil
G| dehra = =
E i i (b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
4.4.2. Terha St T 3TSieh Telei 27 SR AT fereRuT
- 4.4.2 Details of non-performing financial
(%. =St #) assets sold :
= 2007-08  2006-07 (Rs. in crore)
1. fopa fau e ECIn ! = = Particulars 2007-08  2006-07
2. W‘ THET 'Q'[\:q’ 'Q'[\:q’ 1. No. of accounts sold Nil Nil
L e ey = = 2. Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
4.5 T SR T TS 3. Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil
(5. =S ) 4.5 Provisions for Standard Assets
= 2007-08 200%—07 (R n crore)
- Particulars 2007-08  2006-07
T ST o W grae 307.82  229.34

Provisions towards Standard Assets 307.82 229.34




5. HUAR IO 5. BUSINESS RATIOS :
=i 2007-08  2006-07 Particulars 2007-08  2006-07
(i) siwm e e & gl (i) Interest Income as a percentage to
& &9 H A 374 977%  7.85% Average Working Funds 9.77% 7.85%
(i) sfted srefed e & gfaem (i) Non Interest Income as a percentage
% ®Y H AN 34 1.00%  0.52% to Working Funds 1.00% 0.52%
(iii) 3ftgd sefed ffEr & gfrea (i) Operating Profit as a percentage to
FETH RS 246%  2.10% Working Funds 246%  2.10%
Business (Deposits plus advances)
(V) 9fi Feart FRER v) :
(S 7 3 ) (5. & ) 58270 16723 | per Fmployee (Rs.in OQOS) 58270 46723
(vi) 5F e (e, e ) 32 404 (vi) Profit per employee (Rs. in 000s) 482 404
6) 3TRE T yse
31T 2008 T RGN o STATN T TRUSFIAT WEq (. =Sl H)
1914 15828 29 fag  >3dfd >6 AR >ladd >3a S5 T
e fed @ 3R @6k 12 AfA 3af ¥ 5af
STHTE 5417.20  1708.52  9176.37 10047.69  12001.42  37371.25 2798.65 2320.81 80841.91
gehel 3TUH 5803.88  1176.08  2433.80  2156.61  8526.26  31937.10 5798.20  478.92 58310.84
Tt foEw 242226 552.10 226477  2793.69  3514.74 9493.69  1072.85 5060.50  27174.60
39N 4208.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  4208.92
fasft a1 enfEar 635.48 107.32 425.79 853.13 46.52 48.12 0.00 0.00 211636
faeft wg1 d=ad 303.15 41.29 188.26 280.56 432.93 610.57  811.14 0.00  2667.90
ST e @, dTe] W 3 it s fmfe
A« A, fod i @ R giefd
YR : TR R &t o7E, A ¥ of 7 sur ufyEt aftafea
6. ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT:
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2008
(Rs. in crore)
1-14 15-28  29days >3mto >6mto >1yrto >3yrto > Syr Total
days days -3mnths 6m 12m 3yr dyr
Deposits 541720 1708.52 9176.37 10047.69 12001.42 37371.25 2798.65 2320.81 80841.91
Advances 5803.88 1176.08 2433.80 2156.61 8526.26 31937.10 5798.20 478.92 58310.84
Investments 2422.26 55210 2264.77 2793.69 351474  9493.69 1072.85 5060.50 27174.60
Borrowings 4208.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4208.92
Foreign Currency
Assets 635.48 107.32  425.79 853.13 46.52 4812 0.00 0.00 2116.36
Foreign Currency
Liabilities 303.15 41.29 188.26  280.56  432.93 610.57 811.14 0.00 2667.90
Deposits :Includes SB, CD and Term Deposits
Advances : Includes advances, bills and Foor Credit
Borrowings : Includes borrowings from RBI, NABARD, etc.
90
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7. WAV S5l ot SUW [ Sk ZHT YHTITATTHN | 7. LENDING TO SENSITIVE SECTOR (As
74 af PN certified by the Bank)
. -He FT
(5. F H) 7.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector
(Rs in crore)
et 2007-08  2006-07
Category 2007-08 2006-07
) weE #& 3043.54 - 31181 (a) Direct Exposure 304354 311181
1) et e . ) Residential Mortgages -
SEIhS @ et W\ﬁ' Lending fully secured by
fred 3y {\"T’? e @A € A X mortgages on residential property
& "’"ﬁ g A fRu WA g R that is or will be occupied by the
IHR ek G qUid: FT IuR : borrower or that is rented;
[ .20 9G A% &1 JafHH Individual housing loans
S F | up to Rs. 20 lakh
(399 e %.15 @G | (2531.50) @ =& (previously Rs.15 lakhs) (2531.20) N.A.
1i) anferfsae wemeR-Huer ii) Commercial Real Estate -
T TR GUersdl Lending secured by mortgages
W e T AT SUR on commercial real estates
[Frater aq, Biel-Aiet s, (office buildings, retail space,
-z et AT aier, multi purpose commercial
Tg-IREm frarhe o, agfam premises, multi-family residential
TR I fean ga3m anfonfsas buildings, multi-tenanted commercial
TR, s a1 ERy premises, industrial or warehouse
s, g gty sifgor space, hotels, land acquisition,
PR O | ' development and construction etc.)
3R & B e Exposure includes
3669.10  2948.72 non-fund based (NFB) limits;  3669.10  2948.72
TN : o iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed
1i1) sige gR1 Fwreda gfasfoar o
R st s g faw Securities and other
securitised exposures —
ST ) .
b - o i{ﬁr a. Residentia 1.02 170
’ b. Commercial Real estate 15.04 NIL
M) STYTAET T ¢ TATS 3R 7 .
. ! b) Indirect Exposure: Fund based and
ﬁ;% ﬁf;?ﬁfﬁ - L0402 475.62 non-fund based exposures on
- : : National Housing Bank (NHB) and
Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) 404.02 475.62
7.2 USft TR SuR
(% HUSH) 7.2 Exposure to Capital Market:
Terercur 2007-08  2006-07 (Rs in crore)
i) et o, Radaherae, Particulars 2007-08 2006-07
el fad e efet () direct investment made in equity
I I e & gl | Shares, convertible bonds, convertible
et fafer a7 faer et debentures and units of equity — oriented
e F0TH 7 A TE mutual funds the corpus of which
i H fe e ferwr 560.91  366.00 is not exclusively invested in
corporate debt 560.91 366.00
o1 1
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(5. HUST ) (Rs in crore)
frerer 2007-08  2006-07 Particulars 2007-08 2006-07
i) ¢ v (ameden/ dumaid i) advances against shares/l?gnds/
), AT AT debentures or other securities or on
f, ettt st o clean basis to individuals for investment
. e e in shares (including IPOs/ESQPs),
3@ R e F A ﬁﬁ%‘” convertible bonds, convertible
FA % for el a1 A /At / debentures and units of equity-oriented
fesf=rdl 2 a2y wfeegfarat 2 fosfer e mutual funds 6.53 0.74
A 6.53 0.74
(i) advances for any other purposes
iil) v o aRadasier aiel ar uRadsfta where shares or convertible bonds
fed=i a1 $fraet sy e He or convertible debentures or units of
% gfel 31 e AR o w § e equity oriented mutual funds are taken
ol T o 3 R T v 041 5108 as primary security 0.41 51.98
. . S (iv) advances for any other purposes to the
v) WH.T stet extent secured by the collateral security
SR St S e of shares or convertible bonds or
e % Ifel A1 wvda wf convertible debentures or units of equity
& T H T (o 3 FASH 8 oriented mutual funds ie. Where the
few w1 apafa st o3y / primary security other than shares/
JRad e arel / aiadTeia fea=d convertible bonds/ convertible
| et S e e & debentures/ units of equity oriented
et it aff s A o mutual funds does not fully cover
o 7 04.42 T the advances; 94.42 Nil
V) wiedes R a (v) secured and unsecured advances
N vi: § . to stockbrokers and guarantees
STERTENT S ST T i1 3Tt issued on behalf of stockbrokers
:?Eﬁw‘aﬁaﬁt@arﬁaﬁ and market makers; 210.03 55.39
TRfEA 210.03 55.39
(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against
Vi)  SHEE e & aTie 9 € dhufat the security of shares/bonds/debentures
1 Zferaet & yadeh o STIEH & or other securities or on clean basis for
T 2 Wl / atel / fedw o e meeting promoter’s contribution
gl 2 Fee smem w e to the equity of new companies in
) TR 071 I anticipation of raising resources; 0.71 Nil
.. . (vii) bridge loans to companies against
VI E‘ il <t e / e o expected equity flows / issues; Nil Nil
e 1 I H I A
! L (viii) underwriting commitments taken up
Vi) WWT"W?? e aret by the banks in respect of primary
RILIECEERIG %&aﬁ'msﬁaﬁ‘ ' issue of shares or convertible
A HE & el & Gae | i bonds or convertible debentures or
g et it Brefterd wfdergard N = units of equity oriented mutual funds; Nil Nil
X) wifsfa 2fem & fow wisssd =i (ix) financing to stockbrokers for
X) i gt # R T s (x) all exposures to Venture Ce_lpltal Funds
. (both registered and unregistered)
i e %Wi& HIAT ST W will be deemed to be on par with equity
sHfY 36 goft AR 3uR Hed & and hence will be reckoned for
T ST 2 fee & femn s compliance with the capital market
(DT gy 7 STHR) 88.62 90.60 exposure ceilings
(both direct and indirect) 88.62 90.60
STt IR St el SUR 961.63  499.20
T 3 Total Exposure to Capital market 961.63 499.20
(o2 |




7.3 SRET &7 o) Q9T SR
(. 31 H)
Sifamat 3132008 3132008 3132007 31.3.2007

[ I TIa  dHHRd
m BCEIc) m Y|

sTgeeryuf 497649 192 3866.80 I
& 1606.81 = 108008 =
= 56144 = 101680
B 1250 = 778 =
TN 857 = 118 =
gfdsifer 0.00 = 000 =
FYUN-TN 000 = 000 I
FA 716581 192 597264 A

7.3 Risk Category-wise Country Exposure:

(Rsin crore)

Risk Category | Exposure | Provision | Exposure |Provision
(net) as at | held as at | (net) as at | held as at
31.3.2008 | 31.3.2008 | 31.3.2007 |31.3.2007
Insignificant 4976.49 1.92 3866.80 NIL
Low 1606.81 Nil 1080.08 NIL
Moderate 561.44 Nil 1016.80 NIL
High 12.50 Nil 7.78 NIL
Very High 8.57 Nil 1.18 NIL
Restricted 0.00 Nil 0.00 NIL
Off-credit 0.00 Nil 0.00 NIL
Total 7165.81 1.92 5972.64 NIL

7.4 UehoT SURehAl WHT (THSITE), THE SURehal T
(SftsfueT) o feravur sTat sk 3 STfashuur feram 8

TReftT o 3% o el % SR Ut SURedl
IYR HW F AT TR & 1056.16 FU (S A
15 % ) & 371 Tqg U Ha1 % 2816.44 Hg (gt
R a20 %) 2 |

3 o S Sieh  Uehel SUNHA! 791 HHE SRl Hrarsit
1 (AT T8l fohaT |

8. fafaer
8.1 o ok S oAl TTE YT TehH

(5. U )

2007-08  2006-07

M F & fore graem 509.19  274.48
IS A R & oI yraEE 24.00 10.00

8.2 WAt T ek GRT TIT 7T THIA ST TSheTehTuT
G fisTel deh = & o S sieh T hiE &Ue Fel |

7.4 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL),
Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by
the bank:

As per RBI guidelines, the permissible level of
Single Borrower exposure ceiling is Rs. 1056.16
crores (15% of Capital funds) and Rs. 2816.44
crores for Group Borrower limit (20% of Capital
funds)

During the year, the Bank has not exceeded
single borrower and group borrower limits

8. MISCELLANEOUS

8.1 Amount of provisions made during the year:
(Rs. in crore)

2007-08 2006-07

Provision for Income Tax 509.19 274.48
Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax ~ 24.00 10.00

8.2 Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI:

No penalty has been imposed by RBI on the
bank during the year.




8.3 YT Ud ATHAHATY - Sk 377
(. BT H)

8.3 Provisions and Contingencies — Break-up

(Rs. in Crores)

I R IERCIGR: ke

vt o AEd “ TR SRt

TYTEU R AR 2007-08 2006-07

el | Ioe™ & fau gaum 150.15 (-)14.53
TTHT & i e 12544 13531
T 3T o Ul wrae 6552 8148
IR ( UHtS, ST &
Hufed s dfed) & U 6T T g@eE= 452.36 365.00
3T IHHBAT T TaE= 11.01  (-)15.66
FA 80448  551.60
8.4 3regTEht yraer=
(%. FUEl H)

feraoT 2007-08 2006-07
%) It yEuE @ o

TR o 259.92  259.92
) @ 98 F fhu T

STEAt graEl &t A = =

T AT T H I ST TRA T I =

¥) SRR yEEE W ¥ 9O 9 259.92 259.92

8.5 IRfarfa= & ferT T 3MmgRuT

FHHER A9 H GHRATENT 2Fde & T T T
TS oh Ffe e STfRIferat o R 99 H % 128.06
FUS A ST 747 |

8.6 TRl T Uehe TehIuT
8.6.1 UTEehI okt TTeRTe

Break up of ‘Provisions and 2007-08 2006-07
Contingencies’ shown under
the head Expenditure in

Profit and Loss Account

Provisions for depreciation

on Investment 150.15 (-) 14.53
Provision towards NPA 125.44  135.31
Provision towards Standard Asset 65.52 81.48
Provision made towards Income Tax

(incl FBT, Deferred Tax & Wealth Tax) 452.36  365.00
Other Provision and Contingencies 11.01  (-)15.66
TOTAL 804.48 551.60

8.4 Floating Provisions

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars 2007-08 2006-07
(@) Opening balance in the floating

provisions account 259.92  259.92
(b) the quantum of floating provisions

made in the accounting year Nil Nil
(c) Amount of draw down made

during the accounting year Nil Nil
(d) closing balance in the floating

provisions account 259.92  259.92
8.5 Draw Down from Reserves

A sum of Rs.128.06 crores has been debited
to the opening balance of Revenue Reserve
towards provision made for transitional liability
of employee benefits.

8.6 Disclosure of complaints

8.6.1 Customer Complaints

(F) ad & IR H wfaq bt st g 83 (@) No. of complaints pending at the beginning
(@) a9 % <= g et e 1055 of the year 83
(M = & 2 3 PRt o (b) No. of complaints received during the year 1055
Frarur 3537 T S99 5 1084 (c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 1084
(=) a¥ % 3iq § oifad Rerdt 8 gen 54 (d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 54
—




8.6.2 STk eliehuTer gRT UTRA futer
(F) v & yRY § Faffad T fF
T fufal & g 2
(@) =% % S ST dreue g
i faofal &t Hen I
(M) o o e it fAofar w e NG|
(1) = F 37 | Fraifad 7 F
T fautet & g 2
9 AW AR oh (ST o STHN Thetehiur
9.1 TEIh Uk 5 - 7RI o [T Feet o 9 21,
srafgd wel iR eiaieR fHfeaal W uftad=
g S - 18 - 2(+f) st Tetu wfafort &
STfefH0T 1 ufsha § ufiad & Hefe § € 3qh Aeg #t
3T S HHAA (BT ST 8 |
9.2 AW U 15 - HUTR A1
) d%301 3We 2007 ¥ YRAT T AGEHR Fe&= g

1)

111)

ST ‘et o e Heiet cRgie 7 15 (ARente)
! ATIATR | T8 3O & 918 & 194 HUS & HA=r
A § el GohHUThe sreade & faw d |
01-04-2007 T = STARIfE & RAE AT H T &
128.06 T (¥ 65.94 FUT H fAaet AT
) el X T9M 1 BiesH yrawH fHa 8 3k
T % 3T B! FAA T o A1 F @1 @Id § 7R fpan
2

forr & sTorelt TRt H TSl o T W 37 T
SHaTet  STAIT eSS T & SFHR TTE-15
g1 fAwifia areafass qearsa ufsear § uftad o SHrot &
HHAUTHTC 3 397 g% |

A= TV 3 HROT G 31 E 445 FAS 8 1
RIS U9 a1 1 1/5+f 1w 31gfa &. 89 g
WA 3103 2008 I HHI = a9 o @9 3 &+ @I &
TORA A TR 21 F 356 HAS H 7 e T I Fhra
1 37Tt =R af § gfd T ST & 3T & S T

8.6.2 Awards passed by the Banking

9.1

9.2

i)

i)

Ombudsman

(@) No. of unimplemented Awards at the
beginning of the year 2

(b) No. of Awards passed by the Banking
Ombudsmen during the year Nil

(c) No. of Awards implemented during the year Nil

(d) No. of unimplemented Awards at the
end of the year 2

DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:

Accounting Standard 5 - Net Profit or Loss
for the period, prior period items and
changes in accounting policies

Reference is invited to Notes to Accounts
Schedule 18 - 2(c) regarding the change in
the method of amortisation of HTM securities

Accounting Standard 15 - Employee
Benefits

The Bank has adopted Accounting Standard
15 (Revised) “Employees Benefits” issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
with effect from 1=t April 2007. Pursuant to the
adoption, the transitional obligations pertaining
to Employee Benefits of Rs.194 Crores other
than pension has been provided by withdrawal
of Rs.128.06 crores (net of deferred tax assets
of Rs. 65.94 Crores) from opening balance of
General reserves as at 01.04.2007 and the tax
portion has been charged to current year’s
profit & loss account.

The transitional liability mainly arose on
account of the change in the method of
actuarial valuation prescribed by AS15-
Revised as per the Projected unit credit method
applied now as against the Aggregate Method
used in the past.

The transitional liability on account of
Employee Pension amounts to Rs 445 Crores.
A sum of Rs. 89 Crores representing one-fifth
of the Transitional Pension Liability has been
charged to Profit & Loss Account of the current
year ended 31.03.2008. The balance
Unrecognised Liability of Rs 356 crores has
been carried forward to be charged off in the
next four years.




1v)  SIErsReT aeE 15(TRenfe) & STHR ST o a
I WIAT 311X o W § e T Srefafe wHet @
3 fiier o a1g o ot Gfera fRafy feea €

F) areIdren o adur geat B uiad

(5. FUSTH )
e freget  rEwm
(fftrem)  (ffireR)  TenciteRtuT
(T frferer)
af & WY 4
AT A
A g 1013.65 430.00 225.00
S AT 76.02 33.72 17.72
A G AT 2747 2447 12.88
Yaa ATy (62.95)  (17.12) (7.03)
AT W iR
THAH / () 518.08 (4.89) (0.74)
Ty & 3fq H aregars
FI A9 o 1572.27 466.18 247.83
) T SR & 3 9ot ° ulRad
(5. e H )
gy freget  sEwm
(fferem) () rencieRtuT
(T frtrer)
af & R | FreEr
ia #3fa g 1013.65 439.23 0.00
ST S W
AT 76.02 40.62 0.00
[ERIETIEARC M HE] 152.51 7.50 7.03
Yaa oY (62.95)  (17.12) (7.03)
FrEFAST W
i Hifeheh qheH /
() (393.04) 4.05 0.00
T & 37q § Fie

A wISEa I 1572.27 466.18 0.00

iv) The summarised position of Post-employment
benefits and long term employee benefits
recognized in the Profit & Loss Account and Balance
Sheet as required in accordance with Accounting
Standard - 15 (Revised) are as under:-

(a) Changes in the present value of the
obligations
(Rs. In Crores)

PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
(Funded) (Funded) ENCASHMENT
(Un Funded)

Present Value of
obligation as at the

beginning of the year 1013.65  430.00 225.00
Interest Cost 76.02 33.72 17.72
Current Service Cost 27.47 24.47 12.88
Benefits Paid (62.95)  (17.12) (7.03)

Actuarial loss/(gain)
on Obligations 518.08 (4.89) (0.74)

Present Value of
Obligation at year end 1572.27 466.18 247.83

(b) Change in Fair Value of Plan Asset
(Rs. In Crores)

PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
(Funded) (Funded) ENCASHMENT
(Un Funded)

Fair Value of Plan
Assets at the beginning

of the year 1013.65 439.23 0.00
Expected return

on Plan Assets 76.02 40.62 0.00
Employer’s contribution 152.51 7.50 7.03
Benefit Paid (62.95) (17.12) (7.03)
Actuarial loss/(gain)

on Qbligations (393.04) 4.05 0.00
Fair Value of Plan Asset

atthe end of the year  1572.27 466.18 0.00




WIRSELCER RS IEIRIDIRC L

(c) Amount recognized in Balance Sheet

(5. HeiF ) (Rs. In Crores)
PNC) freet STEHTIT PENSION GRATUITY  LEAVE
(fftrem)  (ffireR)  TenciteRtuT (Funded) (Funded) ENCASHMENT
(frrfaferer) (Un Funded)
: Estimated Present value
St 3 THiIe of obligations as at the
A e 1572.27 460.18 247.83 end of the year 1572.27  466.18 247.83
g9 & 3Fq H a% AT Fair value of Plan Assets
A @ s ged 157227 466.18 0 as at the end of the year 1572.27 466.18 0
. Unfunded Net Liability
T o | geer T recognized in
e frae da - - 247.83 Balance Sheet - - 247.83

LI ERIER R ECIE R R

(d) Expenses Recognized in Profit & Loss

(7. S ) (Rs. In Crores)
Uy freret STEEHIT PENSION GRATUITY  LEAVE
(Fifrm)  (Frfores)  Tadtamo (Funded) (Funded) ENCASHMENT
('ﬁ'!'ﬁf\?l?:ﬁ) (Un Funded)
= T e 2747 2447 12.88 Current Service Cost 27.47 24.47 12.88
Interest Cost 76.02 33.72 17.72
IS RSIKG 76.02 33.72 17.72 Expected return on
o e T Plan Asset (76.02)  (40.62) 0.00
I & (76.02)  (40.62) 0.00 Net Actuarial (Gain)/
) Loss recognized
af J ge= T e in the year 12504 (0.84) (0.74)
dtifenes (am) / @19 125.04 (0.84) (0.74) Total expenses
R CERICRC R recognized in
e T % o 152,51 16.73 29.86 Profit & Loss Account  152.51 16.73 29.86
¥ PN (e) Investment percentage maintained by
=) = et = g S Pension & Gratuity Trust :
Ty et Pension Trust Gratuity Trust
% TR Frasfoar 26.12 28.59 Central Government Securities 26.12 28.59
TSF TR graqfaar 16.97 17.57 State Government Securities 16.97 17.57
drue § fAae 46.56 42.82 Investment in PSU 46.56 42.82
3= faaer 10.35 11.02 Other Investments 10.35 11.02

B) T U ARIE W T FTE(ereh AT (WTRe e
o B | A TTE)

() Principal actuarial assumptionatthe Balance SheetDate
(expressed as weighted average)

T degEdt e

(Ffrew)  (Frferes)  FerdiaRtoT
(A fitren)
I 7.50% 8% 8%
RIEEIRC SNy
AT & &L 9.23% 9.35% 0%
I giE & AT W 5% 5% 5%

ol Tl gfshen  STHIAG
gfe whiee m‘ﬁzéﬁz gﬁzaﬁz

PENSION GRATUITY LEAVE
(Funded) (Funded) ENCASHMENT
(Un Funded)

Discount Rate 7.50% 8% 8%

Expected rate of return

on Plan Assets 9.23% 9.35% 0%

Expected Rate of

Salary increase 5% 5% 5%

Method used Projected  Projected Projected
unit credit  unit credit unit credit




diiferes qeaise & faaro § afes § a9 9 s
T A, EREH, ST, m@EAT ST FHE
IR H S 9 W S 3 G gl @ e T
g

W) uReherl o fT feRT T foreefter 3TgaT e €

FEIT T LT & I YAl &1 K@ (T T feifera
31-03-2008 TR FEl W IR o9 & Hed F a9
AT g |

STHIT @1 & G¥H 9§ P22t b AR & Hay |
STHIT A1 & Bl THR a1E TR A o SER | T
T & 1 et S e Al o R T g |

FAAIlE: b ZR & TE [ TSR & STER W

) s draiarer sH et @ (TfereR)

The estimates of future salary increases,
considered in actuarial valuation, take account
of inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors, such as supply and demand
in employee market.

@

The financial assumptions considered for
the calculations are as under:-

Discount Rate:- The discount rate has been
chosen by reference to market yield on
government bonds as on the date of
valuation.(Balance sheet dated 31.03.2008)

Expected Rate of Return: In case of Pension
and Leave Encashment, the expected rate of
return is taken on the basis of yield on
government bonds. In case of gratuity, the
actual return has been taken.

Salary Increase: On the basis of past data

(% HSH) provided by the bank
et/ ferfenear  ferfercar (h) Other long term employee’s benefits (Un-Funded)
TAUhH STARTIT (Rs. In Crores)
E LTC/LFC  Medical Sick
01 04 2007 T 33 30.00 Encashment Leave
31 03 2008 6 2Far 30.00 19.00 85.02 Liability as on 01.04.2007 30.00
HehAvrRelT 2aar 30.00 18.00 81.00 Liability as on 31.03.2008 30.00 19.00 85.02
o g @ @ A Transitional L.|ab|l|ty 30.00 18.00 81.00
<1l TR ot 100 400 Amqunt debited to ‘
T : : Profit & Loss Account Nil 1.00 4.02
9.3 Accounting Standard 17 - Segment Reporting
Part A : Business Segments (Rs. incrore)
Business Segments Treasury Corporate/Wh-olesale  Retail Banking Other Banking TOTAL
Banking Operations
Particulars 2007-08  2006-07 2007-08 2006-07 2007-08 2006-07 2007-08  2006-07 200708 2006-07
Revenue 2420.76 172319 2477.00 3664.74 202.09  4428.71 876459  6151.90
Result 72.65  (61.80) 31528 1583.82 18.75  1554.62 1990.50  1492.82
Unallocated Income - - - 11.28 67.22
Unallocated Expenses - - -
Operating Profit/Loss 2001.78  1560.04
Income Taxes 452.60 365.00
Provisions & Contingencies 346.85 186.60
Extraordinary profit / loss - -
Net Profit 1202.33  1008.44
Other information
Segment Assets 31616.67 33942.54 23338.35 40760.94 96396 48309.64  96679.92 82252.19
Unallocated Assets - 5179.82 574.09
Total assets - 101859.74  82826.28
Segment Liabilities 30753.45 29515.80 23081.41 37871.17 41561 4868619  92121.64  78201.99
Unallocated Liabilities - 973810  4624.29
Total Liabilities 101859.74  82826.28
98




9.3 @i g9 & 17 - @Ue RUifeET

AW T : HREN TGS (% st #)
FNER TUE CE FRE / o9k dfeer fEa S s S uftmreH FA
feraruT 2007-08 2006-07 2007-08 2006-07 2007-08 2006-072007-08 2006-07  2007-08 2006-07
TSTE 2420.76 1723.19 2477.00 3664.74 202.09 4428.71  8764.59 6151.90
m 72.65 (61.80) 315.28 1583.82 18.75 1554.62  1990.50 1492.82
@ e 3 11.28 67.22
IRETATTd ar/&Ta 2001.78 1560.04
3T T . 452.60  365.00
TG & TRl TR 346.85  186.60
SRR @19 / g - -
IEEGRSIE 1202.33  1008.44
= I .

GUEER aT[ﬁﬁTrf. 31616.67 33942.54 23338.35 40760.94 963.96 48309.64 96679.92 82252.19
e eﬂTﬁ?-rErT 5179.82  574.09
T st ) 101859.74 82826.28
LUSaR éZI?TT@ 30753.45 29515.80 23081.41 37871.17 415.61 48686.19 92121.64 78201.99
ST AT 9738.10  4624.29
139am 101859.74 82826.28
UAT I - WMferes @us Part B - Geographic segments
évﬁ ﬁ'a'-?ﬁ FT Domestic International Total

2007-08 2006-07 2007-08 2006-07 2007-0; 2006-07 2007-08 2006-07 2007-08 2006-07 2007-08 2006-07
WEE 842081 5937.40 355.06 28172 8775.87 6219.12 Revenue 842081 5037.40 35506 28172 877587 6219.12
sl 97002.70 78919.53 4857.04 3906.75 101859.74 82826.28 Assets  97002.70 78919.53 4857.04 3906.75 101859.74 82826.28
Te: Note :-
i) 31 7/ 2008 § 5% 3 9T {9 8% g S o ()  Effective 31 March 2008 the bank has adopted the

) ’ guidelines issued by RBI vide its Circular

Ry | Seftatet § did e 81/21.04.018/2006-07
famTeh 18 04 2007 & SRT TEH 17 & dad @uear e
T Geifid gehetehior &l Iar Haeh feenfaeer st sroman
2 forgss 3R e fohu SaTet @uel 1 2518, Fmfte
| i dfe, fEe dfh St 3 dfd gftames o
[ERISGRCRIKICINA

Ff% gl Tt 31 7 2008 2, fooet 9 & faw
TS 3Tihe 7d Ru Mg |

IT{FT GUEAR ToE S gt (fafir @vel % dad )
faeferfiaa st @] & o a1 a9 By T E

. 132.63 %Us &1 37 (fafyet @t & gue) it 25k
(5.46.41 FUT) 31N 3= T @Ug (%.86.22 FUE) FHi
Sfeh & o Jel i ERT STHIGH oh AR STEfed fohar T g |

%.6681.74 FUE ® ppot = (fafir @woel & forw wmm)
1 0 H (3. 2274.46 FU% ), sfeh wue food Rea
g i ST I B (7. 4225.27 His) R 3
A gftEred @ue (5.182.01 HUE) i wrEret 4§ g
SHE] oh TH o T1& L ek oh 3o T T SFTAIGH
& 918 STEfed fhar TR |

11)

111)

DBOD.No.BP.BC.81/21.04.018/2006-07  dated
18.04.2007 on enhancement of disclosures relating
to Segment Reporting under AS 17 in terms of which
the reportable segments has been divided into
Treasury, Corporate / Wholesale Banking , Retail
Banking and Other Banking Operations.

(i) Comparative figures for the previous year are not

furnished , as effective date is 31t March 2008.

The above segment revenue and results (under
different segments) are arrived at after giving effect
to the following :-

(iii)

An income of Rs 132.63 crores ( common to
various segments ) is allocated among
Treasury ( Rs 46.41 crores) and the Other
banking segments ( Rs 86.22 crores) on the
basis approved by the Top Management of the
Bank.

The Total expenditure of Rs 6681.74 crores
(common to various segments) is allocated
among Treasury ( Rs 2274.46 crores), banking
segments comprising retail, wholesale banking (
Rs 4225.27 crores) and Other Banking Operation
Segments (Rs 182.01 crores) based on actual
compilation of data received from branches and
on the basis approved by the Top Management of
the Bank.




9.4 WG AT 18 - Halera uret Teheiehiun

9.4 Accounting Standard 18 - Related Party

) . . . Disclosures
Hefera urfee o AT o deh o W1 ek Tl
) ) Names of the related parties and their relationship
1 e g 3fUem shalts o with the bank
2 mEanft g e U S 1 Parent Indian Overseas Bank
T A 2 Associates Pandyan Gramya Bank
3 st g T Neelanchal Gramya Bank
4 W it T ?Iﬁﬁm%f Qe S 3. Subsidiaries None
TR St fafies 4 Jointly controlled entity Universal Sompo General
Insurance Co. Ltd
5 UHQ YeEd USR]
5  Key Management Personnel
) RSl " EiGiE) A (E.)
9. SI. Name Designation Item Period Amount
1 fwmuwe B Ach %ﬁ:{aaﬁam 04-06-07F 5,04,593 1. Shri. S.A. Bhat CMD Salary &  04.06.07 to 5,04,593
310308 Allowances 31.03.08
2 A aREE FRIS aﬁqaeq:@w 07-11-073 225292 2. Shri G. Narayanan Executive Salary &  07.11.07 to  2,25,292
s 3140308 Director Allowances 31.03.08
3 dudgme FEUEE  dEaSHAd  01-04-07F 6,10,817 3. Shri AV. Dugade Executive Salary &  01.04.07 to 6,10,817
s 31-03-08 Director Allowances 31.03.08
P SR 01-05-06 5.06.575 Performance01.05.06 to 5,96,575
10307 R Incentive  31.03.07
4 fegdra s e 01-04-05% 65,753 4. Shri §.C. Gupta  Ex-CMD Performance01.04.05 to 65,753
FIUH 300405 Incentive  30.04.05
5 fAwTETEER mE Faasa  01-04-07% 1,18,040 5. ShriTS. Narayanasamy Ex-CMD Salary &  01.04.07 to 1,18,040
Allowances 03.06.07
aaxf 03-06-07 Performance09.06.05 to 6,48,768
e gieme 09-06-05F 6,48,768 Incentive  31.03.06
31-03-06 Performance01.04.06 to  8,00,00
e TR 01-04-069 8,00,000 Incentive  31.03.07
310307 6. Shri AR. NagappanEx-ED  Performance01.04.05 to 5,50,000
6 TR I e e 01-04-05F Incentive  31.03.06
fy 3140306 5,50,000 Performance01.04.06 to 53,425
ETEATER 0104063 Incentive  30.04.06
300406 53,425 95 Accounting Standard 20-Eaming Per Share
9.5 TI@ieha A 20 - YA PR AT (3. 7<) Particulars 200708  2006-07
fereror 2007-08 _ 2006-07 Net Profit after tax available for
faadt SreRerE ¥ foru equity shareholders (Rs. in crore) 1202.34 100843
H o TS IYAH A 1202.34 1008.43 Weighted Average Number of
iR sitaa et Equity Shares 54,48,00,000
Rl i He 54,48,00,000 Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share 22.07 18.51
e q41 4 fhT g , .
N 907 18.51 Nominal value per Equity Share Rs.10.00
i SR WE qod %.10.00 9.6 Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated

9.6 i Uk 21 - AR fereefter ferawur (Hruwux)
=feh i ST ween 7 2, foheht wfena feehta formor
U Tavas T weh 7 ¢

Financial Statements (CFS)

As there is no subsidiary, no consolidated
financial statement is considered necessary.




9.7 AWIeh Uk 22 : 3T YT KA oh TeT AETERIUT

5 o &I, b g et STRefia 23T o (o7 %.80.82
FUg fegm & forg U & (1 & %.80.52 FUE i fae
el 3 | Ey/Eieiud & yE gedl & an |

9.7 Accounting Standard 22: ACCOUNTING FOR
TAXES ON INCOME

The Bank has accounted for Deferred Tax Asset
of Rs.80.82 crores during the year (Previous

e e S Year Deferred Tax Liability of Rs.80.52 cror_es).
™ e The major components of DTA/ DTL are given
31-03-2008 31-03-2007 below: ,
T S S . Rs. in crore
il | g 145.63 156.06 31.03.2008 31.03.2007
T STl TR e 17.24 13.63 DTA DTL  DTA DTL
T e 3 o, e 129.46 55.92 Depreciation on Investments 145.63 156.06
HrErfEdl & o e 7.81 8.14 Depreciation on Fixed Assets 17.24 13.63
ER 6.07 527 Provision for Employee Benefits  129.46 55.92
Fd 14334 162.87  69.33  169.69 Provision for Frauds 7.81 8.14
e Sety/didiea 19.53 100.35 Others 6.07 5.27
Total 143.34  162.87 69.33 169.69
9.8 TGt WT-eh 28 - ST 1 TSIk T Net DTA / DTL 19.53 100.35

e ITATT foFalT ST T@T STIRT HaR 3t i
W AR {1 T 2 S 38 FHH veet 9 faiia e
A WR | 3: 39 GUCA I AN, S e a
TE, A % TfaTer T H T 66 ¢ 31 3effor 38
o9 B i & Hefed o & geia fohar w2

d% g GIRA 9 S B “Hre s
T 2 371X SMEETETE ER ST U 28 g i T wiar
& SFUR 38 ‘Tl T 3o gl | T Rmman g |
TSU o WAER 3% 1 318 ff 319 S Ssish T6
21

iR Wk 29 - ATEANT T3 AT MRt h
T yTaem=

9.9

T Hey ¥ sneEfusme g o fRenfade w swgE
T # gfed e T g |
10 AT ThS
foeet av & sAwel F, ST Fel SNETIH THHA W8,
T /Ittty e T g |

FAARe gaheThton
et fiwd %, gag gR S Rt & ey
T 111 37987 o e fais 27.04.07 & Yt gafwn
Tesh (I - 1) & efia f=faiad gt
fafdee wrfel & wara fhar |

9.8 Accounting Standard 28 - Impairment of
Assets:

The application software in use in the bank has
been developed in-house and has evolved
over a period of time. Hence, the cost of
software is essentially part of bank’s
operational expenses like wages etc. and as
such are charged to the respective heads of
expenditure in the profit and loss account.

Fixed Assets possessed by the Bank are
treated as ‘Corporate Assets’ and are not ‘Cash
Generating Units’ as defined by AS 28 issued
by ICAIl. In the opinion of the Management,
there is no impairment of any of the Fixed
Assets of the Bank.

9.9 Accounting Standard 29 - Provision for

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :

The guidelines issued by ICAI in this respect
have been incorporated at the appropriate
places.

10. Comparative Figures:

Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/
rearranged wherever necessary.

Additional Disclosures:

In accordance with the guidelines issued by
Reserve Bank of India, Mumbai, under New
Capital Adequacy Framework (Basel Il) dated
27.04.2007 under Pillar Il requirement, the
following disclosures are made as per the
specified Formats :




REw gaer

Toft TR 3 AT Brwardt § sifes ffed § 3 78 afH
HIUER 1 Teh 0 (W2 | WA HER | §h & o0 53
S & S8 0T SRaw, SR SiRad 37T g Siia |
uet et &1 g9t &9 G goE A & g o (e
e d) 7 HE SGH Fa€ FUer dAR B § A 3w
S F A ST @I | AR (st o g wHa-gwg WS
for e feremfaden o SFER S = 37 SfEw yaEe o
® TeEd ST T @ fored Aifaat, qred, debish, et
fshame ST THEETH WM 2 |

d Sifaw 3R gfetet & st aeifd 25 % o @ &
ST AR & qeaii i BT B 3R T@ B e
AR | e o SITad TaeH § SR i 9g=d, 3§ A9,
Yate / 0T 3R ST T AT et @ A1 d Ht
Ty Sifign fheigw! s gfqaied far 1 @1 s ga
HUTE T Sifgw geee Aifa sifem @t o g S Sifw
1 AT o TR R SR @ S W SR § Sifeq o &
deh @ Tl WA 81 Sifed ufierse & o g
IR Y9I @ 3R T8 Hefe, S har 2= & e
SR, e =fifeat, Femd it sty e &t e o w@d
U (35 AT B |

deh 4 TG SRaT JaeT ST ®RET LUd HT ot 21
Ry Hed & U 3U-Tufa, Sifaq ysied gfafa nfad it
T2 8 S 9% § 0T IR, SR SiRaF, iEred Sifad s
31 ST % Yaie % foru Scrart 81 o = F07 e &
forg o7 e afafy (Hdtdt), SR siflam & fag enfia
2T geE WUl (Tertan) A glEred sifaw & o
IR e Sifad yee il (emeed) 99 @ sifta
wee wiufaar 13T #t 7 |

% § Iepe SIGH Were JuTlel 37X SHaeR & Hraf=ad &
U % & Hesa Hrafer § T SRad g fa9 i 8
S BRIER frT @ STe 8 | Teh Hel Jeiereh 39 fem & gord
S S § Sitfi yeee R guy weae & fore seRardt 1e
Sifgn s 81 5 il oo (vt & wrew) §
T FEAAT a7 T BRER T & AN SEH Jeee
T TR 1 A 379 2 S A & wrer / e,
ST HAr SR S F A & Jared & oy
foar £

TRt fistef e grr s v e ferenfd e o SRR 3% 3
31 A 2008 | 7 Yt vt swar (a5 1) Faffad a%

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in all kinds of banking activities and is
an integral part of the banking business. In a normal
course of business, a bank is exposed to various risks
namely credit risk, market risk and operational risk. With
a view to efficiently manage such risks, the Bank (Indian
Overseas Bank) has put in place various risk
management systems and practices. In line with the
guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India issued from time
to time, the Bank continues to strengthen its various risk
management systems that includes policies, tools,
techniques, monitoring mechanisms and MIS.

The bank aims at enhancing and maximizing the
shareholder values through achieving appropriate trade
off between risks and returns. Bank’s risk management
objectives broadly covers proper identification,
measurement, monitoring / control and mitigation of the
risks with a view to enunciate the bank’s overall risk
philosophy. The risk management strategy adopted by
the bank is based on clear understanding of risks and
the level of risk appetite depending upon bank’s
willingness to take on risks in normal course of business.
A clear determination of risk appetite is a fundamental
precondition and is established through consistent risk
limit frameworks, in consideration of the portfolio
composition, profitability targets, targeted customer
segment, regions, business lines, expansion policy,
plans and barriers etc.

The bank has set up appropriate risk management
organization structure in the bank. Risk Management
Committee of the Board (RMCB), a sub-committee of
the Board, is constituted which is responsible for
management of the credit risk, market risk, operational
risk and other risks in the Bank. The bank has also
constituted risk management committees namely Credit
Policy Committee (CPC) for credit risk, Asset Liability
management Committee (ALCO) for market risk and
Operational Risk Management Committee (ORMC) for
operational risk.

A full-fledged Risk Management Department is
functioning at bank’s Head Office, independent of
business departments, for implementing best risk
management systems and practices in the bank. A
General Manager is in charge of the department who is
the Chief Risk Officer responsible for overall supervision
on risk management in the bank. In addition, the Middle
Office Groups in Treasury (Domestic & Forex) and
sections of Business Groups form integral part of risk
management organization structure, who are
responsible for monitoring adherence/ compliance to
policies, risk limit framework and internal approvals.

In line with the guidelines issued by the RBI, the bank
has implemented New Capital Adequacy Framework
(Basel Il) with effect from March 31, 2008. The Basel I
framework, as referred, is based on three mutually




& 21 oud [ T ggweia fF weR g we w
SIRT 81 RSN TRET 1 g T F, FER 3R
e Saw o fore =Aaw gt sTeveehar i THTEm Hid
2, TE0 W (TREeh gEde gfwen) 38 A S g
FAT 7 T dh & UG STk sish STEH FihEe AT oy
7w et =R § weft yeR & SifEw B e & o
g% g5t 81 SENd & STER o 7 NaRs S wafemr
et wfwar (smEiuedh) W A g s fifq dan
2

Soel [ SRET H fE T TR e 8 Fafid 2
TSR T ST 1 I, T | & Ted Sfeattad =FaH
gsft teeE K W 1 % ed Sfeafad wfaeh giem
gl sl QU A2 | 59 Hel &, et s o 3 feanfad o
& STUR 9% ¥ SifEw yeaua & ar § qiferer Suwl § 10
(@) § gt (FEEE F [N &) B TH T
R foha e & Forerst aTei o Fe it Sty &t fsmey,
gt Sifan TSR SiRan gedtsh A, S i S
JreTEet 3 Gofisheor o TR anfE & o) & qeequl e
TR F o | T8 SR % TIger) i 3 arevel & d
FRFOUTE BT Yeeiehd HE oh (CTT YT 3HS T HUT |

aTfetent STUH-1
TN & h P
TUTTCHER: Yehe (ehuT BAR S T AN

%, o9 og W@ an e & d e of o &1
Al & g AFH F A B

e & 3T g o WiaW An T
fareRoT @fgd, A@TehIuT 37T

M 329 & foIT gHeT &
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reinforcing pillars. While the first Pillar of the revised
framework addresses minimum capital requirement for
credit, market and operational risk, the second pillar
(Supervisory Review Process) intends to ensure that the
banks have adequate capital to address all the risks in
their business commensurate with bank’s risk profile
and control environment. As required, the bank has put
in place a Board approved policy on Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP).

The third pillar of Basel Il framework refers to market
discipline. The purpose of market discipline is to
complement the minimum capital requirements detailed
under Pillar 1 and the supervisory review process
detailed under Pillar 2. In this context, and as guided by
the RBI, a set of disclosures (both qualitative &
quantitative) are published in Table DF 1 to 10 (annexed)
with regard to risk management in the bank, which will
enable market participants to assess key pieces of
information on the scope of application, capital risk
exposures, risk assessment processes, bank’s risk
profile and level of capitalization etc. This would also
provide the market participants with the necessary data
to evaluate the performance of the bank in various
parameters.

Table DF-1

Scope of application

Qualitative Disclosures Applicability to our Bank

a)  The name of the top bank in the  The Bank does not
group to which the Framework belong to any group.
applies

b)  An outline of differences in the

basis of consolidation for
accounting and regulatory
purposes, with a brief description
of the entities within the group (i)
that are fully consolidated (ii) that
are pro-rata consolidated (jii) that
are given a deduction treatment;
and (iv) that are neither
consolidated nor deducted (e.g.
where the investment is risk —
weighted).

Not Applicable

Quantitative Disclosures

c)  The aggregate amount of capital  Not Applicable
deficiencies in all subsidiaries not
included in the consolidation i.e.
that are deducted and the name(s)
of such subsidiaries.

d) The aggregate amounts (e.g. Rs. 28.50 crores by
current book value) of the bank's  way  of equity
total interests ininsurance entities, ~ subscription in an
which are risk-weighted as well insurance JV ie.
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as their name, their country of
incorporation or residence, the
proportion of ownership interest
and, if different, the proportion of
voting power in these entities. In
addition, indicate the quantitative
impact on regulatory capital of
using this method versus using
the deduction.

Universal ~ Sompo
General Insurance Co
Ltd. , representing 19%
of its total issued
capital. The same is
excluded from CRAR
computation.

ATfeTent STUH-2 Table DF-2
15w Capital structure
TUTTCHeR Tehe 1 ehIuT TR ek U AT Qualitative Disclosures Applicability to our Bank
3. Hﬂﬁ{sﬁ%@ﬁfﬂ%ﬁwﬁaﬁsﬁ 5w W‘Lé i a)  Summary information on the terms  Applicable to the Bank as
SRR TR - S — . and conditions of the main features ~ we raise both Tier 1 and
W’ : - T Sf ST of all capital instruments, especially Tier 2 capital from the
1 1 ST 2R 2 FAEYE o (T, a1 O F o Fore arse & in the case of capital instruments market to meet increase in
m{aﬁ%@ﬁ%mﬁ FET TR aﬁmziﬁgg[g‘ eligible for inclusion in Tier 1 or in  capital requirements from
5 T T 2 Upper Tier 2 time to time
AR Tehe Tehur Quantitative Disclosures
W T ¥ YHH gfed eer | g b)  The amount of Tier 1 capital, with
A separate disclosure of:
. WWFﬁ %.544.80 HUE . paid up share capital Rs. 544.80 crore
. ERGIGE %.4197.90 FT . reserves Rs. 4197.90 crore
. Far=et foraq (TR 1 LGl At ©.480.00 HT . innovative instruments (Perpetual Rs. 480.00 crore
0 ETH) (a3 e s - g Debt Instrument as Tier 1 capital)  (raised during the year - Nil)
. s ford I . other capital instruments Nil
. : . amounts deducted from Tier 1 j
R laﬁq\a;imﬂs‘m, A pS capital, including goodwill and
LR LD investments
T TER2YSH @ TRR2 TGS E. . g [ ) .
Bl oft 7 T (PR 2 S %.1856.60 U (322 H) ¢)  The total amount of Tier 2 capital Rs. 1856.60 crore (at discount)
I &t fAaet) (3 3 3 33T T - X)) (net of deductions from Tier 2 capital)  (raised during the year - Ni)
q o 3 IWZ ‘I'Sﬁﬁm%ﬁm %.500 Fg d)  Debt capital instruments eligible for  Rs. 500 crore
T T g fered inclusion in Upper Tier 2 capital
S. PATHRATHA %500 g e)  Total amount outstanding Rs 500 crore
. fAgaqaFdmRE EEn 1= . Of which amount raised during the |
. Ol T A R current year
LR £.500 FAT . /:arlr;]ti)tglntfu?]lidgsible to be reckoned as s 500 crore
9. frea e 2 o  umeeE & fog
g f) Subordinated debt eligible for inclusion
. in Lower Tier 2 capital
. hran %.1975.00 =0T
‘Iﬁ@ i:%ﬁm ? : . Total amount outstanding Rs. 1975.00 crore
- %n(—i " ' ST T I . Of which amount raised during the  Nil
o St el % w0 F oft 99 areht current year
A %.1856.60 FTS . Amount eligible to be reckoned as  Rs. 1856.60 crore
ISt & § st eferrt Afz & = capital funds
I FAmgSh $.2721.09 FiE g)  Other deductions from capital, if any
h)  Total eligible capital Rs 2721.99 crore
[ Aal
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Table DF-3
CAPITAL ADEQUACY
Qualitative Disclosures:

(a) A summary discussion of the bank’s approach to

assessing the adequacy of its capital to support
current and future activities:

In order to strengthen the capital base of banks in
India, the Reserve Bank of India in April 1992
introduced capital adequacy measure in banks,
based on the capital adequacy framework (Basel
I) issued by Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision (BCBS). Initially, the framework
addressed capital for credit risk, which was
subsequently amended to include capital for market
risk. In line with the guidelines issued by the RBI,
the bank has been compliant with regard to
maintenance of minimum capital for credit and
market risk.

Subsequently, the BCBS has released the
“International Convergence of Capital Measurement
and Capital Standards: A Revised Framework”
(popularly known as Basel Il document) on June
26, 2004. A comprehensive version (The Revised
Framework) was issued in June 2006. Based on
these guidelines and keeping in view to have
consistency and harmony with international
standards, the Reserve Bank of India had issued
draft guidelines in February 2005 and thereafter the
final guidelines on 27 April 2007 for implementation
of the New Capital Adequacy (Basel-Il) Framework.
In addition, the RBI has issued clarifications on 31st
March 2008 on certain issues relating to the subject.

In line with the RBI guidelines, the Bank has
migrated to the revised framework from 31.3.2008.
The bank continued the parallel run of Basel Il
framework by continuously tracking the exposures
and studied the Impact on Bank’s CRAR on
quarterly basis with a view to ensuring smooth
transition to revised framework.

Basel Il Framework provides a range of options for
determining the capital requirements for credit risk,
market risk and operational risk. The framework
allows banks and supervisors to select approaches
that are most appropriate for their operations and
financial markets. In accordance with the RBI’s
requirement, the Bank has adopted Standardized
Approach (SA) for Credit Risk and Basic Indicator
Approach (BIA) for Operational Risk to compute
capital as on 315 March 2008. Additionally, the Bank
continues to apply the Standardized Duration
Approach (SDA) for computing capital requirement
for market risks with effect from 31 March 2006.
As such, in addition to maintaining capital for credit
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risk and market risk as hither to, the bank maintains
capital for operational risk from 31.03.2008.

Reserve Bank of India prescribes Banks to maintain
a minimum Capital to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio
(CRAR) of 9 percent with regard to credit risk,
market risk and operational risk on an ongoing
basis, as against 8 percent prescribed in Basel
documents. RBI also prescribes prudential floor (as
100% of minimum capital requirement computed
under Basel | for credit risk and market risk as on
31.03.2008) for maintaining capital as per revised
framework. The total Capital to Risk Weighted
Assets Ratio (CRAR) as per Basel Il guidelines
works to 11.62% as on 31.03.2008. The CRAR,
subject to prudential floor, stands at a healthy level
of 11.13% against regulatory requirement of 9.00%.
The Tier | CRAR stands at 7.31% as against RBI’s
prescription of 6.00%.

In computation of capital for credit risk under
Standardized Approach, the bank has relied upon
the borrower wise data captured from each
individual branch. For this purpose, the Bank has
developed in-house software program which
enables computation of capital for credit risk of the
Loans & Advances portfolio of branches and
generation of desired reports at Branch level,
Regional level and Head Office. The software
program has been tested internally before being
ported for use of branches. Necessary validation,
checks and balances have been factored in the
software program to ensure the correctness and
adequacy of the data at the time of capture itself at
branches. Necessary training has been imparted
to the field staffs on various aspects of capital
computation to ensure accuracy and adequacy.

The Bank has used the credit risk mitigation in
computation of capital for credit risk, as prescribed
in the RBI guidelines under Standardized Approach.
The capital for credit risk on assets other than the
domestic Loans and Advances, market risk and
operational risk as per the prescribed approaches
have been computed at the bank’s Head Office and
aggregated to arrive at the bank’s above CRAR
position. The bank has followed the RBI guidelines
in force, to arrive at the eligible capital, risk weighted
assets and CRAR.

As regards the adequacy of capital to support the
future activities, the bank has drawn an assessment
of capital requirement for three years with the
approval of the Board. The surplus CRAR shall act
as a buffer to support the future activities. Moreover,
the headroom available for the bank for mobilizing
Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital shall additionally support
capital structure to meet the required CRAR against
future activities.
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Quantitative Disclosure
(Rs. In crores)

(b) Capital requirements for Credit Risk:
Standardized Approach

Portfolios subject to Standardized Approach 5246.04
Securitization Exposures 0.00
Total 5246.04

(c) Capital requirements for Market Risk:
Standardized Duration Approach

Interest Rate Risk 272.75
Foreign Exchange Risk (Including Gold) 175.55
Equity Risk 10.44
Total 458.74

(d) Capital requirements for Operational Risk:
Basic Indicator Approach

Operational Risk 446.85
(e) Total Capital Ratio for the Bank

Total CRAR 11.62%

Total CRAR (subject to application of Prudential Floor)11.13%

Tier 1 CRAR 7.31%
Table DF-4

CREDIT RISK : GENERAL DISCLOSURES
Qualitative Disclosures:

(a) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the possibility of losses associated
with diminution in the credit quality of borrowers or
counterparties. In a Bank’s Portfolio, Credit Risk
arises mostly from lending activities of the Bank,
as a borrower is unable to meet its financial
obligations to the lender. It emanates from potential
changes in the credit quality / worthiness of the
borrowers or counterparties.

Credit rating & Appraisal Process

The Bank manages its credit risk through
continuous measuring and monitoring of risks at
each obligor (borrower) and portfolio level. The
bank has robust internal credit rating framework
and well-established standardized credit appraisal
|/ approval processes. Credit Rating is a facilitating
process that enables the bank to assess the
inherent merits and demerits of a proposal. It is a
decision-enabling tool that helps the bank to take
a view on acceptability or otherwise of any credit
proposal. In order to widen the scope and coverage
further and strengthen the credit risk management
practices, the bank has developed additional risk
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sensitive rating models in-house during the year
for use at branches in future.

The internal rating factors quantitative and
qualitative issues relating to management risk,
business risk, industry risk, financial risk and project
risk. Besides, such ratings consider transaction
specific credit enhancement features while
assessing the overall rating of a borrower. The data
on industry risk is constantly updated based on
market conditions.

Credit rating, as a concept, has been well
internalised within the Bank. The rating for every
borrower is reviewed at least once every year. As a
measure of robust credit risk management
practices, the bank has implemented a three tier
system of credit rating process which includes
validation of rating (third stage) independent of
credit departments. In respect of proposals falling
under the powers of bank’s Head Office, the
validation of ratings are done at Risk Management
Department. The bank uses the credit ratings for
deciding the interest rates on borrowal accounts.
The advantage of credit rating is that it enables to
rank different proposals and do meaningful
comparison.

The bank follows a well-defined multi layered
discretionary power structure for sanction of loans.
Approval Grid has been constituted at all levels
covering Exceptionally Large branches / Regional
Offices / Central Offices for considering fresh/
enhancement proposals. A structure namely New
Business Group (NBG) headed by CMD has been
constituted at Central Office level for considering
in-principle approval for taking up fresh credit
proposals above a specified cut-off. The bank has
put in place a risk management framework for new
products which lay down minimum processing /
assessment norms to assess risk in a New Product
prior to its introduction.

Credit Risk Management Policies

The bank has put in place a well-structured Credit
Risk Management Policy duly approved by the
Board. The Policy document defines organization
structure, role and responsibilities and, the
processes whereby the Credit Risks carried by the
Bank can be identified, quantified and managed
within framework that the Bank considers consistent
with its mandate and risk tolerance.

Credit Risk is monitored by the bank on a bank
wide basis and compliance with the risk limits
approved by Board/RMCB is ensured. The CPC
takes into account the risk tolerance level of the
Bank and accordingly handles the issues relating
to Safety, Liquidity, Prudential Norms, Exposure
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Limits by aligning the Past experience and
performance like default experience, recovery
experience etc and also take into account any
regulatory and legal issues. The quality of internal
control procedures is also monitored and internal
expertise is built up to tackle all the facets of Credit
Risk.

The Bank has taken earnest steps to put in place
best credit risk management practices in the bank.
In addition to Credit Risk Management Policy, the
bank has also framed Board approved Loan Policy,
Investment Policy, Counterparty Risk Management
Policy and Country Risk Management Policy etc
which forms integral part in monitoring of credit risk
in the bank. Besides, the bank has implemented a
policy on Collateral Management & Credit Risk
Mitigation with the approval of the Board which lays
down the details of securities (both prime and
collateral) normally accepted by the bank and
administration of such securities to protect the
interest of the bank. These securities act as
mitigation against the credit risk to which the bank
is exposed.

Classification of Non Performing Accounts

The bank follows the prudential guidelines issued
by the RBI on classification of non-performing
assets as under.

(i) interest and/ or instalment of principal remain
overdue for a period of more than 90 days in respect
of a term loan

(ii) the account remains ‘out of order’ if the outstanding
balance remains continuously in excess of
sanctioned limits / DP for more than 90 days in
respect of an Overdraft/Cash Credit (OD/CC)

(iii) the bill remains overdue for a period of more than
90 days in the case of bills purchased and
discounted

(iv) the instalment of principal or interest thereon
remains overdue for two crop seasons for short
duration crop

(v) the instalment of principal or interest thereon
remains overdue for one crop  season for long
duration crops.

Where the interest charged during any quarter is
not serviced fully within 90 days from the end of
the quarter, the account is classified as non-
performing. A non-performing asset ceases to
generate income for the bank.
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ATATcHSh Yehe TehTuT %‘Hﬁ dqdh T [SLUN Quantitative Disclosures Applicability to our Bank
. AU SURWET , Aftrmenia  fyfy 61057.59 a) Total gross credit risk exposures, Fund FB 61057.59
e e smenfa gos-g g B 31366.29 based and Non fund based separately NFB 31366.29
. RUTE Wores T, Fildr smenRa b) Eeogre:)phic (;iistrigu}\i‘on off exgosuresd, " -
sk Frfer s gaw- g frfey # By und based and Non fund base
separately
faeoft 57260.46 27688.94
) . Domestic 57260.46 27688.94
. i 3797.13 3677.35
a; ? ’ . Overseas 3797.13 3677.35
TR ok AT iTeh Yehr ahr feremm,
By smemia 24 A=t smemia c) Industry type distribution of
. exposures, fund based and non fund
- ' MESH based separately. Annexed
@ Y d) Residual contractual maturity
THSI N breakdown of assets Annexed
. T (Heher) <t 09T e) Amount of NPAs (Gross)
. TS S11.83 . Substandard 511.83
. HfeE (E,E,€3) 454.19(209.37, . Doubtiul (D1,02,03) 454.19(209.37,215.55,29.27)
. 215.55, 2927) 3093
. Loss :
Trrerer Tt 30.93
: f) Net NPAs 363.20
T ST 363.
’ 63.20 g) NPA Ratios
: aﬁ’rﬁ T i 163 % . Gross NPAs to gross advances 163 %
R S fo 0.60 % . Net NPAs to net advances 0.60 %
— ( ) h) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
' . «Opening balance
. URRET 1120.21 pening 112021
dre 665.00 . Additions 665.00
. W 298,26 . Reductions 788.26
EORLE 996,96 . Closing balance 996.95
. T R T T R TR ‘ j. - Movement of provisions for NPAs
. ORI 787.97 . Opening balance 787.97
. sErHENERRTTOTEYE  125.44 . Provisions made during the period ~ 125.44
A CCRCInE: R IRIR 341.00 . Write off 341.00
. AR Y U@ 9 47 . Write back of excess provisions / 247
/ TTAT=ROT Transfers
. aIw 569.94 . Closing balance 569.94
TS Ta9T &t T 459 k. Amount of  Non-Performing
. . Investments 459
Srten foreott oh fg R TO grert.
5T : I. - Amount of provisions held for non-
) 5 performing investments 4.59
. Fewiw YT T
e fere m. Movement of provisions for
SN - =g depreciation on investments
: Wﬂzﬁﬂ 158.19 . Opening Balance 158.19
. EtrddRE gEe= 184.95
R mm{ . Provisions made during the period 184.95
. STAT =T 0.00
N . Write-off 0.00
. A& yEuH e gfeaeT 28.73
F v 314.41 . Write-back of excess provisions 28.73
’ ) . Closing Balance 314.41




RN T AT F TN TR SRS
(5. BT H)
fer1 27% 814 15-28 29/*-3  3-6WeW-1a8  >1W3 >3WS >5
£ R @ o aow
292,56 442248 387514 193245 553217 5982.86 1333874  44879.13 724887 4674103
2Yftg uR=Ered & U Gehar 3fkaal #t Herst
SANTER KT JRaw
(2.50T ¥)
AT SeHTAT
I 4091
ECic] 165.14
eitg 3R T 2669.16
3 YT o g 3T 594.16
geft =i 1508.93
U8 ¥ gAdI 281.13
Ferfaeifaet 751.54
it = A 1894.14
S g9 3 51.90
3 IE I 751.20
=it 453.29
Eie) 89.32
T G 3901.38
T de A aTEfd 86.32
T 3R T IS 23493
FHITS 3 HITS 3cUTE 600.13
g 3 W 3G 381.38
WRA, S, U=y g 1206.08
3T F 39{H 68.50
39 9 ULl WA 172.70
I T Sy S wmiEfen 91.33
gz 418.93
ELE] i THSI 3N 388.95
TEHH I o 30T 642.32
femfor 1912.36
veiferam 749.37
HAeraEd e 2% o e 8 1151.00
FIRLT FHRAR 83.16
T TR 3942.40
3™ 9 wife 753.38
3™ ¥ IR TuR 98.68
9 § U AW 39235
3T 3T 3484.32
TTNTHRTY 3 MR 2299.16
T 1 AT 3T
Tt M 32257.61
A 61057.59

Residual Contractual Maturity break down of assets
(Rs. In crores)

Day1 27D 814D 1528D 20D-3M  3-6M  6M-1 >1to3 >3to5 >5years
Year  Years years

2292.564422.483875.14 1932.45 5532.17 5982.86 13338.74 44879.13 7248.87 46741.03

Covers Gross Assets for domestic operations

INDUSTRY WISE EXPOSURES
(Rs. in Crores)

INDUSTRY NAME Outstanding

Coal 40.91
Mining 165.14
Iron and Steel 2669.16
Other Metal and Metal Products 594.16
All Engineering 1508.93
Of which Electronics 281.13
Electricity 751.54
Cotton Textile 1894.14
Jute Textiles 51.90
Other Textiles 751.20
Sugar 453.29
Tea 89.32
Food Processing 391.38
Vegetable Oils and Vanaspati 86.32
Tobacco and Tobacco Products 234.93
Paper and Paper Products 600.13
Rubber and Rubber Products 381.38
Chemicals, Dyes, Paints, etc. 1206.08
Of which Fertilisers 68.50
Of which Petro-Chemicals 172.70
Of which Drugs and Pharmaceuticals 91.33
Cement 418.93
Leather and Leather Products 388.95
Gems and Jewellery 642.32
Construction 1912.36
Petroleum 749.37
Automobiles including trucks 1151.00
Computer Software 83.16
Infrastructure 3942.40
Of which Power 753.38
Of which Telecommunications 98.68
Of which Roads & Ports 392.35
Other Industries 3484.32
NBFCS & Trading 2299.16
Residual Advances to

balance Gross Advances 32257.61
TOTAL 61057.59
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et R o & faenfadel & srER d% 4 31-03-
2008 T 3uR S o forw gsft & stfirper o fore 78
St FRTear SR & A ieehiuT Sl 379 fora
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TSR 1 SEH 91 3Eed a1 T 81 38k fo
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fre gfear fo1. =, smgdiemu 1., it T &1 yam &
# sAfa & 81 ST Rk & e ¥ wad gu
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TSR & I T¥etar | aed ST ITa i | Ferar
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Table DF-5

CREDIT RISK: DISCLOSURES FOR PORTFOLIOS
SUBJECT TO THE STANDARDISED APPROACH

Qualitative disclosures:
(a) General Principle:

In accordance with the RBI guidelines, the Bank
has adopted Standardized Approach of the New
Capital Adequacy Framework (NCAF) for
computation of capital for credit risk with effect from
31.03.2008. In computation of capital, the bank has
assigned risk weights to different asset classes as
prescribed by the RBI.

External Credit ratings:

Ratings of borrowers by External Credit Rating
Agencies (ECRA) assumes importance in the light
of guidelines for implementation of the New Capital
Adequacy Framework (Basel-Il). Exposures on
Corporate / PSEs / Primary Dealers are assigned
with risk weights based on the external ratings. For
this purpose, the Reserve Bank of India has
permitted Banks to use the ratings of the four
domestic ECRAs namely (a) Credit Analysis and
Research Ltd (CARE), (b) CRISIL Ltd, (c) FITCH
India Ltd and (d) ICRA Ltd. In consideration of the
above guidelines, the bank has decided to accept
the ratings assigned by all these ECRAs.

In order to facilitating the process of external rating
and enabling the customers to solicit external
ratings for their exposures smoothly, the Bank has
taken initiatives by entering into separate MOU with
all these four Credit Rating Agencies. The
agreement provides for extending concessional
fees by the ECRAs for rating bank’s Customers.
The MOUs, however, do not have any exclusivity
clause to deal with. Borrowers, at their option, can
approach any one or more of the above ECRAs for
rating their exposures. The bank shall use the
ratings assigned for any type of exposures by any
of these ECRAs as accepted and provided by the
borrowers. External ratings assigned, fresh or
reviewed, at least during the previous 15 months
shall only be reckoned for capital computation by
the bank. Wherever, a borrower possesses more
than one rating from ECRAs, the guidelines
prescribed by the RBI shall be followed as regards
to assignment of risk weight for computation of
capital.

The bank has well-structured internal credit rating
mechanism to evaluate the credit risk associated
with a borrower and accordingly the systems are
in place for taking credit decisions as regards to
acceptability of proposals, and level of exposures




g1 T, St AHE % AR gRIHIT o ded
Sfaw R & oy & fau o=t ST @it &m 7 78

AT ST HehdT |

TETER 5% 7, 31-03-2008 T 38R Sitfeaw & forw gsft
1 AHAT F T, S F SFHI T IR T
TSRl SR ST SRl &1 F0T TSR ST Bt
FHIURE R TTEE 1 & @Uel o dad [ g |

e / ftueg & forgs frfa § o & faw & qma &
AT aTed SER AUST Terh # foheht frfw faew &
forw 3T bt g & ferar S @ 3 deTER g
R d% o feenfes § & 7 ST @het & qHad!
fortar fRafer & e Sfaw 9 HT ST e e 8 |
A GIeHIUT oh Tad Goft o ST oh ST AR
T SR TFUISR o FaX o Yol H Yl hi SURarsi
& e gaferd fpar ST € 1fh 370 TTeehi i g
T & for Iy goft Tad e Iomn S w1 3IH
U | W &, g e d% & fRnfadeER
% 1 facha v 2008-09 & IE £.50 Fg (FE /
e e ) & sife v Tt 7 SR o
& Heag d ST & fHU T TSR & AU 3=
SEa 97 (150% ) 1 AT T i FTHHR ¢ HAL A
T frdar e | (1 39e 2009 § %2 A6 %10 FAS &
STE) |

and pricing. However, such ratings cannot be used
for application of risk weight under Standardized
Approach of capital computation. Accordingly, the
bank has taken into consideration the borrower’s
loan exposure ratings assigned by bank’s approved
ECRAs, while computing capital for credit risk as
on 31.03.2008 under segments namely Corporates
and PSEs.

In case of bank’s investment in particular issues of
Corporate / PSEs, the issue specific rating of the
approved ECRAs are reckoned and accordingly the
risk weights have been applied after a
corresponding mapping to rating scale provided
in RBI guidelines.

As regards the coverage of exposures by external
ratings as relevant for capital computation under
Standardised Approach, the process need to be
popularized among the borrowers so as to take the
benefit of capital relief available for better rating of
its customers. This will take some time. At the same
time, the bank is well aware and prepared for the
application of higher risk weight (150%) for the
unrated exposures relating to all fresh sanctions or
renewals in excess of Rs.50 crores (in Corporate /
PSE segments) during the FY 2008-09 (the cutoff
will become Rs.10 crores with effect from April 1,
2009) as per the RBI guidelines.

TATATHE Tehe et . Quantitative Disclosures
% F0et A Rs. In Crores

afferor T A At T e Classication Booswe  EAMcovered  Urvaed

UIEITETSRUT % Ed(3UT) afterMiigation  under External

(5Tm) (EAM) Raing
arfirm / e ADVANCES/INVESTMENT
100% & A Sfaw 9~ 41243.14 493773 3630541 Below 100% risk weight ~ 41243.14 4937.73 36305.41
100% R R 39592.712 000 3959272 At 100% risk weight 39592.72 0.00 39592.72
100% SifEq aR @ 3 4333.54 0.00 4333.54 Above 100% risk weight ~ 4333.54 0.00 4333.54
FT T R 0.00 0.00 0.00 Deducted claims 0.00 0.00 0.00
kX 35169.40 493773 80231.67 85169.40 4937.73 80231.67
3 3t OTHER ASSETS
100% & &5 SiRaw 91 11836.98 0.00 11836.98 Below 100% risk weight ~ 11836.98 0.00 11836.98
100% Siftgq 91 2042.96 0.00 2042.96 At 100% risk weight 2042.96 0.00 2042.96
100% <ifag 9R T 317 0.00 0.00 0.00 Above 100% risk weight 0.00 0.00 0.00
FRUITEE 0.00 0.00 0.00 Deducted claims 0.00 0.00 0.00
FA 13879.95 0.00 13879.95 13879.95 0.00 13879.95

——
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IUR WIRaH A ShIAT : ATHhiehd SIEehRITT o T CREDIT RISK MITIGATION: DISCLOSURE FOR
YeheTehIuT STANDARDISED APPROACH

Wm Qualitative disclosures:

) SUR ARG et &7 A UL At Policy on Credit Risk Mitigation:

fafame sToeTst o ST®Y e Ffayfd Faee qr
IYR SGH H FHH B o b1 T 9g7 & T Al
% GRS T € ST dh o Hed gR e srmfed
21 ifq & 3% g0 FOT I THT T SR F T
gfefral & TSR q91 T WG 3 gU Sad F H
H & aR F St ¢ A1 5% & fed 1 g/ wna
e Tt wfefaat s geme / geres oft 8@ 1 % g}
AR Ft T gfafeR (e don Gurvess a4 & I
TR | WU / SN0T, T S JHI0-T7, $e e
W, e e o, 10 FuTg | qee JH1uT-v,
IR T fedwR, Hh3 791 To7 THR ' gfaqferar, shae
e ifafial, REstd he e, staa qufcaal, 9337
3 AR, Tt oot AT a%q, 71 o gh-faia, qR
I, 6 A1 3 9 St e § s de @
oft s oft € | S 3 e Guferl S g qe
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2, S YR Sftt & ufa gfasgfea (qer aar gues)
Ul T T SHUe A & o AT 391 8 s
giosferll W SN [ 510 i Tie & g g
T T ST Wbl § | 37: U fofta iy wfeferat
1 IR W Ysft & ufisher § SYR SifEd it F7 FH
o foTT Q-0 ST foham ST Hehell © | THT B A dh
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ot / SrquoT ) Sftee st uiferst =) fha faer
(2 1/2 = &} AAfeh-37 A FH 918) ) T wheregfoar
) WA HE H A S adftd {5 % F:;
femfadsii & srqey €1

YA 38k SUR SEH i HH HA & 3 SFTAINCT &Y
“3f Setg s AT S “um TR i Sue
2| it s e o faenf=en & HAee SURehdr
ol / S & uf (Sifaw & fawR q%) o4 Iy
3fte AT i SuerE SHRIRET & Fatfae (ST |
T 3UR SfEw St & ufiwer § ardy ied 9% &
feremfdel & STEY SfaH &7 & & fore 7=y TRfa

In line with the regulatory requirements, the Bank
has put in place a well-articulated Policy on
Collateral Management and Credit Risk Mitigation
Techniques, duly approved by the bank’s Board.
The policy lays down the types of securities
normally accepted by the Bank for lending, and
administration / monitoring of such securities in
order to safeguard / protect the interest of the bank
S0 as to minimize the risk associated with it.

The main types of securities (both prime and
collateral) accepted by the Bank includes Bank’s
own deposits, Gold/Ornaments, National Savings
Certificate, Indira Vikas Patras, Kisan Vikas Patras,
10 year Social Security Certificates, Shares and
debentures, Central and State Govt. securities, Life
Insurance Policies, Mutual Fund units, Immovable
Properties, Plant and Machinery, Goods and
Merchandise, Documents of Title to Goods, Book
debts, Vehicles and other moveable assets. The
bank has also framed a well-defined policy on
valuation of immovable properties and Plant &
Machineries, duly approved by the Board.

Credit Risk Mitigation under Standardized
Approach:

As advised by RBI, the Bank has adopted the
comprehensive approach relating to credit risk
mitigation under Standardized Approach, which
allows fuller offset of securities (prime and collateral)
against exposures, by effectively reducing the
exposure amount by the value ascribed to the
securities. Thus the eligible financial collaterals are
fully made use of to reduce the credit exposure in
computation of credit risk capital. In doing so, the
bank has recognized specific securities namely (a)
bank deposits (b) Gold/Ornaments (c) Life
Insurance Policies (d) Kisan Vikas Patras (after a
lock-in-period of 2 '~ years) (e) Government
Secuirities (f) Units of Mutual Funds, in line with the
RBI guidelines on the matter.

Besides, other approved forms of credit risk
mitigation are “On Balance Sheet netting” and
availability of “Eligible Guarantees”. On balance
sheet nettings has been reckoned to the extent of
the deposits available against the loans / advances
of the borrower (to the extent of exposure) as per
the RBI guidelines. Further, in computation of credit
risk capital, the types of guarantees recognized for
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taking mitigation, in line with RBI guidelines are (a)
Central Government Guarantee (0%) (b) State
Government (20%) (c) CGTSI (0%) (d) ECGC (20%)
(e) Bank guarantee in form of bills purchased /
discounted under Letter of credit (20% or as per
rating of foreign banks) (f) Corporate Guarantee
(AA- or better) (as per external rating). The Bank
has ensured compliance of legal certainty as
prescribed by the RBI in the matter of credit risk
mitigation.

Concentration Risk in Credit Risk Mitigation:

All types of securities eligible for mitigation are
easily realizable financial securities. As such,
presently no limit/ceiling has been prescribed to
address the concentration risk in credit risk
mitigants recognized by the Bank.

Quantitative Disclosures: (DF6)
(Rs. In crores)

Total Eligible Financial Collateral after
application of haircuts

Table DF 7

8418.76

Securitisation: disclosure for standardised
approach

Qualitative Disclosures

F) frafafad o=t & WHd &6 31.03-2008 F T a) The general qualitative No securitisation
gﬁm%gﬁgﬁw I A5 T ot disclosure requirement with for the year
%QW TR HIT (t?IrlJTCB QWV% fé;; respect to securitisation, e n d i n g
10.13) - including a discussion of: 31.03.2008
L . The bank’s objectives in relation
° afe ﬂ T m%waﬁw to securitisation activity, including
1 38V, T Al @‘ T TaT the extent to which these
g]‘%r&l\ﬁzpa\’sﬁ THl | 3N activities transfer credit risk of the
STRad &t S T 3 hEaAl underlying securitised
1 FARA HL AT | exposures away from the bank
. to other entities.
. @1 wfehar & 5
W AR gSE T o oAF 5 . The roles played by the bank in
ol .95‘_"” A securitisation process and an
WY % A A S indication of the extent of the
. Wqﬁwmagma;m bank’s involvement in each of
e = farferarmeres Sf 1 SToTET them, and
g . The regulatory capital approach
P 7 that the bank follows for its
@) jl’éﬁ > mﬁg securitisation activities.
Ut T AR At b) Summary of the bank’s
R accounting policies  for
securitisation activities,
including
2]
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Recognition of gain on sale,
and

Key assumption for valuing
retained interests, including
any significant changes
since the last reporting
period and the impact of such
changes.

c) Names of ECAIls used for
securitisations and the types
of securitisation exposure for
which each agency is used.

Quantitative Disclosures

d) the total outstanding
exposures securitised by
the bank and subject to
securitisation framework
by exposure type.

e) For exposures securitised
by the Bank and subject to
the securitisation frame
work.

Amount of impaired/past
due assets securitised; and

Losses recognised by the
Bank during the current
period broken down by
exposure type

) Aggregate amount of
securitisation exposures
retained or purchased
broken down by exposure

type

g0 Aggregate amount of
securitisation exposures
retained or purchased
broken down into a
meaningful number of risk
weight bands. Exposures
that have been deducted
entirely from Tier 1 capital,
credit enhancing 1/Os
deducted from Total
Capital, and other
exposures deducted from
total capital should be
disclosed separately by
type of underlying
exposure type.

NIL
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I 7 a1 FR AT AR SifEd g i 3%
T 3T Jeie (TUSATH) I A fha € aifeh a6 o
ISR STEH 1 TA10! Faier foham ST §eh | SR Sifiae
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h)

Summary of securitisation
activity presenting a
comparative position for two
years, as a part of the Notes
on Accounts to the balance
sheet

Total number and book value
of loan assets securitised — by
type of underlying assets

Sale consideration received
for the securitised assets and
gain/loss on sale on account
of securitisation; and

Form and quantum
(outstanding value) of
services provided by way of
credit enhancement, liquidity
support, post securitisation
asset servicing, etc

Table DF-8

MARKET RISK ; DISCLOSURES RELATING TO
MARKET RISK IN TRADING BOOK

Qualitative Disclosures:
(a) Market Risk:

Market Risk is defined as the possibility of loss to a
bank in on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet
positions caused by changes / movements in the
market variables such as interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates, equity prices and
commodity prices. Bank’s exposure to market risk
arises from domestic investments (interest related
instruments and equities) in trading book (both AFS
and HFT categories), the Foreign exchange
positions (including open position in precious
metals) and trading related derivatives. The
objective of the market risk management is to
minimize the impact of losses on earnings and
equity capital arising from market risk.

Policies for management of Market Risk:

The bank has put in place Board approved Market
Risk Management Policy and Asset liability
Management (ALM) policy for effective
management of market risk in the bank. Other
policies, which also deal with market risk
management, are Investment Policy, Forex Risk
Management Policy and Derivative Policy. The
Market Risk Management policy lays down well
defined organization structure for market risk
management functions and processes whereby the
market risks carried by the Bank are identified,
measured, monitored and controlled within the
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ALM framework, consistent with the Bank’s risk
tolerance. The policy sets various risk limits for
effective management of market risk and ensuring
that the operations are in line with Bank’s
expectation of return to market risk through proper
Asset Liability Management. The policy also deals
with the reporting framework for effective monitoring
of market risk.

The ALM Policy specifically deals with liquidity risk
management and interest rate risk management
framework. As envisaged in the policy, Liquidity
risk is managed through the GAP analysis, based
on residual maturity / behavioral pattern of assets
and liabilities, on a daily basis based on best
available data coverage, as prescribed by the RBI.
The bank has put in place mechanism of short-
term dynamic liquidity management and contingent
funding plan. Prudential (tolerance) limits are
prescribed for different residual maturity time
buckets for efficient asset liability management.
Liquidity profile of the bank is evaluated through
various liquidity ratios. The bank has also drawn
various contingent measures to deal with any kind
of stress on liquidity position. Bank ensures
adequate liquidity managed on a real time basis
by Domestic Treasury through systematic and
stable funds planning.

Interest rate risk is managed through use of GAP
Analysis of rate sensitive assets and liabilities and
monitored through prudential (tolerance) limits
prescribed. The bank has also put in place Duration
Gap Analysis framework for management of
interest rate risk. The bank estimates Earnings at
Risk (EaR) and Modified Duration Gap (DGAP)
periodically against adverse movement in interest
rate (as prescribed in the Policy) for assessing the
impact on Net Interest Income (NIl) and Economic
value of Equity (EVE) with a view to optimize
shareholder value.

The Asset-Liability Management Committee
(ALCO) / Board monitors adherence of prudential
limits fixed by the bank and determines the strategy
in light of the market condition (current and
expected) as articulated in the ALM Policy. The
Middle Office group at the Treasury also monitors
adherence of prudential limits on a continuous
basis.

Quantitative Disclosures:

(b)

In line with the RBI’s guidelines, the Bank has
computed capital for market risk as per
Standardized Duration Approach (SDA) of Basel Il
framework for maintaining capital. The capital
requirement for market risk as on 31.03.2008 in
trading book of the bank is as under.
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ANA
O
(5.0 H) (Rs. In crores)
AR AREURIYRR  Fgw 9ia TSt Type of Risk Weighted Capital
i (i) ETIHAT Market Risk Asset (Notional)  requirement
e &L Sag 3030.56 272.75 Interest Rate Risk 3030.56 272.75
et frafy Sifiam 1950.56 175.55 Equity Position Risk 1950.56 175.55
fasft fafoma sifaw 115.99 10.44 Foreign Exchange Risk 115.99 10.44
5097.11 458.74 TOTAL 5097.11 458.74
wfeTeRt ST - 9 Table DF-9
TR eR Tehe tohTuT : TTHT Yehe TehIuT OPERATIONAL RISK: GENERAL DISCLOSURES
T[UTTeHeh TeheTeRtul Qualitative disclosures:
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(a) Operational Risk:

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events. Operational risk
includes legal risk but excludes strategic and
reputation risks.

Policies on management of Operational Risk:

The bank has framed Operational Risk
Management Policy duly approved by the Board.
Other policies adopted by the Board which deal
with management of operational risk are (a)
Information Systems Security Policy, (b) Forex Risk
Management Policy (c) Policy document on Know
Your Customers (KYC) and Anti Money Laundering
(AML) Procedures (d) IT Business Continuity and
Disaster Recovery Plan (IT BC-DRP).

The Operational Risk Management Policy adopted
by the Bank outlines organization structure and
detail processes for management of operational
risk. The basic objective of the policy is to closely
integrate operational risk management system into
the day-to-day risk management processes of the
bank by clearly assigning roles for effectively
identifying, assessing, monitoring and controlling/
mitigating operational risks and by timely reporting
of operational risk exposures, including material
operational losses. Operational risks in the Bank
are managed through comprehensive and well-
articulated internal control frameworks.

Quanitative disclosures:

(b)

In line with the final guidelines issued by RBI, our
Bank has adopted the Basic Indicator Approach
for computing capital for operational risk. As per
the guidelines, the capital for operational risk is
equal to the average over the previous three years
of 15% of positive annual Gross Income as defined
by RBI. As per such estimate, the capital
requirement for operational risk as on 31.03.2008
is Rs. 446.85 Crores.
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Table DF-10

INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK
(IRRBB)

Qualitative disclosures:
(a) Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book:

Interest rate risk is the risk where changes in the
market interest rates might affect a bank’s financial
condition. Changes in interest rates affect both the
current earnings (earnings perspective) as also the
net worth of the Bank (economic value perspective).
The risk from earnings perspective can be
measured as impact in the Net Interest Income (NII)
or Net Interest Margin (NIM). Similarly, the risk from
economic value perspective can be measured as
drop in the Economic value of Equity (EVE).

The bank identifies the risks associated with the
changing interest rates on its on-balance sheet and
off-balance sheet exposures in the banking book
from a short term (Earning perspective) and long
term (Economic value perspective). The impact on
income (Earning perspective) is measured through
use of Gap Analysis by applying notional rate shock
up to 100 bps as prescribed in bank’s ALM policy.
Prudential limits have been prescribed for such
impacts as a percentage to NIl of the bank and the
same is monitored periodically on a fortnight basis.
For the calculation of impact on earnings, the
Traditional Gap is taken from the Rate Sensitivity
statement and based on the remaining period from
the mid point of a particular bucket the impact for
change in interest rates up to 100 bps is arrived at.
The same is reported to ALCO and Board
periodically along with the Rate Sensitivity
statement i.e. at every Reporting Friday. The limits
are fixed based on the previous year’s NII.

The bank has adopted Traditional Gap Analysis
combined with Duration Gap Analysis for assessing
the impact (as a percentage) on the Economic Value
of Equity (Economic Value perspective) by applying
a notional interest rate shock of 200 bps. For this
purpose, a limit of (+/-) 1.00% for the Modified
Duration Gap on the balance sheet is prescribed
in bank’s ALM Policy and the position is monitored
periodically on a monthly basis. As per the Draft
Guidelines issued by the RBI (DBOD. No. BP. 7/
21.04.098/2005-06 dt April 17, 2006), Bank
calculates Modified Duration Gap (DGAP) & the
impact on the Economic Value of equity (EVE).
Assets, excluding Investments and Liabilities are
grouped as per Rate Sensitivity statement & bucket
wise Modified Duration is computed for these
groups of Assets and Liabilities using common
maturity, coupon and yield parameters. For
Investment portfolio, the Modified Duration of
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individual items are computed and taken. The
DGAP is calculated by the Bank once in a month
(Based on Last Reporting Friday data) and is
reported to ALCO and Board.

The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
/ Board monitors adherence of prudential limits fixed
by the bank and determines the strategy in light of
the market condition (current and expected).

Quantitative disclosures:

(b) Theimpact of changes on Net Interest Income (NII)
and Economic Value of Equity (EVE) calculated as
on 31.03.2008 by applying notional interest rate
shocks as discussed above are as under.

(Rs in crores)

(5. el #)
e S Change in ALM Policy Earning at Risk (EaR)
A RN ﬁ:ﬁ\f?rﬁq ST R 37 Interest Rate Limit for EaR 28/03/2008
YUcTuH » 28/03/2;)28 Upto Upto
[T S 1 Year 5 years
0.25% aRadT  123.63 0.25% change  123.63
(frect ad & (5% of NIl of
AR ARH5%) 12.39 16.33 previous year) 12.39 16.33
0.50% uRada  247.27 0.50% change  247.27
' (Rrer o 3 (10% of NIl of
MR 10%) 2478 32.66 previous year) 24.78 32.66
0.75% ufadd 37091 0.75% change  370.91
. (ﬁéﬁaﬂ‘a\am (15% of NIl of
AFARH 15%)  37.17 48.99 previous year) 37.17 48.99
1.00% uftads 37091 1.00% change  370.91
' (Rt a3 (15% of NIl of
M A 15%) 4956 65.32 previous year) 49.56 65.32
?ﬁﬂﬁwam"@fa;m 28/03/2008 ECONOMIC VALUE OF EQUITY 28/3/2008
R MODIFIED DURATION GAP (DGAP) 0.7556%
st vty Sftadt (Stsfrud 0.7556%
TS (m : LIMIT AS PER ALM POLICY (+/-)1%
UTeuH h 3TTHN +/-)1%
(+H)1% MODIFIED DURATION OF EQUITY (MDE) 8.03%
# ] ( ) 8.03% FOR A 200 BPS RATE SHOCK THE DROP
200 e & yod & T gfemaet & 2o 16.06% IN EQUITY VALUE 16.06%
121
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Cash Flow Statement
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31.03.2008

(Rs. in ‘000s)
Year ended 31.03.2008 Year ended 31.03.2007
I) Operating Activities
Income
Interest Earned 79 68 25 17 58 32 07 35
Other Income 8110752 87793269 3846586 62167321
Expenditure & Provisions
Interest Paid 50 38 30 12 30 4573 14
Operating Expenses & Provisions 14101968 64484980 13266924 43724238
Net Increase of cash on operating
activities prior to the effect of changes
in Operating Liabilities & Assets 23 30 82 89 18 44 30 83
Cash Profit generated from Operations 23308289 18 44 30 83
Il) Cash Flow from Operating Liabilities & Assets
Net Increase / Decrease in Operating Liabilities
i) Deposits from Customers 155 85 16 79 182 11 09 99
i) Borrowings From Banks & Financial Institutions 34 57 41 88 21 59 60 01
iii) Other Operating Liabilities & Provisions (-) 10 94 27 14 68 80 50
179 48 31 53 204 39 50 50
I11) Net increase / decrease in Operating Assets
i) Investments 45 00 23 48 50 22 18 93
ii) Advances to customers 133 63 55 80 123 04 08 41
iii) Other Assets 3291792 181929720 2477631 1757403 65
Net Increase in Operating Liabilities over Operating Assets () 2 44 65 67 28 65 46 85
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 20 86 17 22 47 09 77 68
IV) Cash Flow from Investing Activities
i) Sale / disposal of Fixed Assets 649 16 56 93 61
i) Purchase of Fixed Assets 1319375 172 85 51
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (-) 1254459 (-) 1159190
V) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Inflow
i) Proceeds of Tier | & Tier Il Bonds 13 23 00 00
Outflow
i) Redemption of Tier Il Bonds 157 00 00 257 74 00
ii) Interest Paid on Tier Il capital 25049 11 22554 23
iii) Proposed Dividend 1912166 16151 41
598 70 77 6 44 79 64
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (-) 59870 77 6 78 20 36




(Rs. in ‘000s)
Year ended 31.03.2008 Year ended 31.03.2007

TOTAL CASH FLOW DURING THE YEAR

(A) +(B) + (C) 13 62 01 86 527206 14
Balances at the Beginning of the year
Cash & Balances with RBI 46 86 10 79 30 77 95 84
Balances with Banks & Money at Call 42931947 89793026 6292828 37072412
Balances at the end of the year
Cash & Balances with RBI 91 24 23 28 46 86 10 79
Balances with Banks & Money at Call 121708 84 103413212 42931947 89793026
TOTAL CASH FLOW DURING THE YEAR 13 62 01 86 5272 06 14

This Statement has been prepared in accordance with Direct Method.

V. Krishnaswamy S.A.Bhat
General Manager Chairman & Managing Director

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE

We , the undersigned Statutory Central Auditors of Indian Overseas Bank have verified the above Cash Flow
Statement of the Bank for the year ended 31.03.2008 . The Statement has been prepared in accordance
with the requirement of Clause 32, of the Listing agreement with the Stock Exchange and is based on and
in agreement with the corresponding Profit and Loss Account and the Balance Sheet of the Bank, covered
by our report of even date to The President of India .

S.K. Singhania & Co SRRK Sharma Associates R.S. Sipayya & Co

Vaithisvaran & Co Maharaj N.R. Suresh & Co Om Agarwal & Co

Place : Chennai
Date : 28.04.2008
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To

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The President of India

1.

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet
of Indian Overseas Bank as at 31t March 2008,
the Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flows
Statement of the Bank for the year ended 31¢
March 2008 and annexed thereto in which are
incorporated the returns of 20 branches and
38 Regional Offices audited by us and 1522
branches including 6 Overseas Branches
audited by other auditors. The branches
audited by us and those audited by other
auditors have been selected by the Bank in
accordance with the guidelines issued by
Reserve Bank of India. Also incorporated in
the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account,
the returns from 341 branches / centres which
have not been subjected to audit. These
unaudited branches account for 1.27% of
advances, 5.08% of deposits, 0.38% of interest
income and 2.41 % of interest expenses. These
financial statements are the responsibility of
the Bank’s Management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
the auditing standards generally accepted in
India. These standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material mis-statements.
An audit includes examination on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosure in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made
by the management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statements presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss
Account have been drawn up in Forms “A” and
“B” respectively of the Third Schedule to the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

Reference is invited to:-

i) Significant Accounting Policy No.2.2, 2.5
& 2.7 (Schedule — 17) regarding revenue
recognition which are not in conformity
with Accounting Standard — 9 issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.
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i) Note No. 3(a) to Notes on Accounts
(Schedule — 18) regarding recoverability
of claims pending and / or yet to be lodged
with Guarantee Institutions.

The impact of the items stated herein above
on the Profit & Loss Account, Balance Sheet
and Capital Adequacy Ratio and business
ratios as stated in Notes on Accounts
(Schedule-18) is not ascertainable. Reference
is also invited to Note No.3(e) to Notes on
Accounts (Schedule 18) regarding non -
classification of advance as per prudential
norms of RBI.

The additional disclosures made in Note No.
4.2, 5, 6 and 7 to the Notes on Accounts
(Schedule 18) with regard to information in
respect of Restructured Accounts, Business
Ratios, Maturity Pattern of Assets and Liabilities
and Exposure to Sensitive Sectors,
respectively are based on the records/
information as certified by the Bank and relied
upon by us.

Subject to the limitation of the audit indicated
in Paragraph 1 above, and as required by the
Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer
of Undertakings) Act 1970 and subject to the
limitation of disclosure required therein and
also subject to our observations in Paragraph
4 & 5 above, we report as under:

a) In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the
explanations given to us and as shown by
the books of the Bank maintained in
accordance with generally accepted
Accounting Principles in India.

i) The Balance Sheet is a full and fair
Balance Sheet containing the
necessary particulars, and is properly
drawn up so as to exhibit a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Bank as at
31 March 2008 and

i) The Profit and Loss Account shows a
true balance of Profit for the year
ended 31t March 2008.

i) The Cash Flows Statement gives a true
and fair view of the cash flow for the
year ended 31 March 2008.
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b)

We have obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit and have found
the same to be satisfactory.

c) The transactions of the Bank, which have

come to our notice have been within the
powers of the Bank.

d) The returns received from the offices and

For S.K. Singhania & Co  For SRRK. Sharma Associates
Chartered Accountants
(RAJESH SINGHANIA)

Partner
M.No. 52722

For Vaithisvaran & Co
Chartered Accountants
(R. VENKATESH)

Partner

M.No.203816

branches of the Bank have been found
adequate for the purpose of our audit.

For R.S. Sipayya & Co
Chartered Accountants
(R.S. SIPAYYA)
Partner

M. No.17762

Chartered Accountants
(SRRK. SHARMA)
Partner

M. No. 18088

For Maharaj N.R. Suresh & Co
Chartered Accountants

(N.R. SURESH)

Partner

M.No. 21661

For Om Agarwal & Co
Chartered Accountants
(0.P. AGARWAL)
Partner
M.No.016603

Place: Chennai
Date: 28.04.2008
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FORM ‘B’
FORM OF PROXY
See Sub-Regulation (jii) of regulation 70)
(TOBE FILLED IN AND SIGNED BY THE SHAREHOLDER)

Regd. Folio
No.
(If not
Dematerialised)
D P Id No.
Cl. Id No.
Y resident
O e e e e e e e e e bbbt e et e e e e e e e e e — in the
(0153 £ X 0 PP in the
5] €= L= , being a shareholder / shareholders of Ifpdian
Overseas Bank, hereby appoint SNIi/SMLE ..........ooooiiiiiiii e residegnt of
................................................................... in the district of ..........ccccceee e et s N thE
State Of ..oeveeiiiiiei e as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my / our bghalf

at the 8th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Indian Overseas Bank to be held on
Saturday, 14th June 2008 at Narada Gana Sabha, (Sathguru Gnanananda Hall) 314 TTk Road,
Chennai - 600 018 and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this ... day of ...ccccvveeiiinnn 2008.
(Signature of the Proxy) Pf:se_aw
Name ... Rmf:g';mp
AdAress ...ooooveeiiiiis
......................................... Signature of the first named/sole holdgr

ATTENDANCE SLIP - CUM - ENTRY PASS
(Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall)
Name and address of the SharehOlder ............oo e

If not dematerialised)
DP ID NO: e Client Id NO: ..ooovveeeeieiie :
(If dematerialised)
| hereby record my presence at the 8th Annual General Meeting of the Bank held on 14th June 20()8 at
11.00 A.M. at Narada Gana Sabha, (Sathguru Gnanananda Hall) 314, TTK Road,
Chennai - 600 018
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Instructions to Shareholders : Most Urgent and Immediate

The Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) and Financial Institutions Laws (Amendment)
Act, 2006, which has come into force on 16.10.2006 has inserted a new section 10(B) in the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970 which provides as under:

= Within 7 days from the expiry of 30 days from the date of declaration, if any shareholder has not encashed/
claimed the dividend, such amounts lying in the bank Dividend current account, shall be transferred to a
separate account styled “Unpaid Dividend Account of 0B for the year ....”

= Any money transferred to the Unpaid Dividend account which remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of
seven years from the date of such transfer, shall be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF) established under Section 205 (1) (C) of the Companies Act, 1956.

Hence the Shareholders who have not received / encashed the dividend for financial years 2000-01, 2001-02,
2002-03, Interim/Final Dividend 2003-04, Interim / Final Dividend 2004-05, 2005-06 and for the year 2006-07 are
requested to send their claim along with details of Folio No (s) to Investor Relations Cell, Indian Overseas Bank,
Central Office, 763 Anna Salai, Chennai - 600 002.

Shareholders are also requested to send their claims, if any incase of non receipt of refund orders in respect of our
Public issue 2000 and Follow on Public issue 2003 along with Application Number to Investor Relations Cell,
Indian Overseas Bank, Central Office, 763, Anna Salai, Chennai - 600 002.

The Shareholders, who are holding shares in electronic form through a DP, have to approach only the DP
concerned and not to the Registrar for any change in the mandated particulars like change of address, Bank
Account. Please note that the Registrar would send the dividend warrant (or credit to the mandated account in the
case of shareholders who have opted for ECS credit) based on the particulars furnished by DP to the Registrar as
on 06.05.2008.

Consolidation of Folios : It has been found that many shareholders maintain more than one folio (ie.) multiple
folios. In order to provide efficient service to shareholders, we request the shareholders to consolidate the folios
by forwarding their share certificates to our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent for necessary corrections in their
records.




